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At Tasty Bite, we believe we are what we eat. In
our consurmer business, we are committed to the
principle that any product that carries the Tasty

Bite brand will necessarily be natural, perhaps
organic, and will coniain no chemical preservatives,
additives, artificial colors or flavors.

Our Food service business has seen tremendous
growth these last several years. But, growing
demand for fast food need not mean we sacrifice
nutrition in the pursuit of taste. We believe in
convenience without compromise.

Our versatile product range comprises great
ready-to-cook and ready-to-eat recipes, with a fine
selection of natural ingredients and the mazaa of
lip-smacking delicacies.

b4 wff

/INR 641\ INR3gm1

EBITDA 17.8%  Net Profit 13.6%

INR3552T /INR T 72“1 4NR13%Q@

Revenue 17.2% EPS 13.6% Net worth 33.0%

*% arowth is over (ast year number
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Tasty Bite Eatabies Limited (TBEL) 5 forrmed frazen products, pallies, sauces
the keading brand for Indian and Aslan and gravies, and cater to several renowned
prepared fonds We had our humible players i india's food service induting.
beginning badk in 1995 in the LS, with flve
all-natiral, ready-to-eal Indian endrdey,

It has only been two decades and TBEL
has avoheed gy Amaerica’s laagest braand for
prepared ndian food Today, our preducts
rw vastable in the LIS, Canad, Australia,
Maws Fealand, Japan, Germany and tha UL

While, thie market or o consumer
products somtinues o Aowrish entingly
outssde India throasgh our parent
company, Prefemed Brands Intemational
Inc., i Meérth Amenca and throuogh Mars.
inearparated in ather regions THEL caters
to the local Indlan manksss wa our food
Dur product rangs comprises ready-1o- sarvice products, These ans markelsd
eat and ready-to-cook Indkan and Aslan directly by the Company to major 058
enirees, saucas and aversatile range of {Duick Sarvice Restawsrants) and HORECA
ready-to-eat crganie rice and gralrs. {Hotals, Restaurants and Catererd) players.

In 2006, we simad ot benging the THEL Besidies our presence i the afore
famdly home, as we unched the Tasty

Bite Food Service business [TES) in India
Linder TES, we make a range ol speciality

mentioned tesritores, the Compary has
also expanded its base in Souwth East Asia,
Mididle East and Adrica. for its food sendce

products through the QSR channel,
We pride ourselves upon our
commitment to only using high-
quality vegetarian anc natural
products, with no preservatives
and no GMO. The utmost quality
of our products fares well on
both taste as well as health—
giving us a strong edge in the
emerging food trends.
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OUR MISSION STATEMENT

Purpose Advantage
To b= a soclally responsible comparny Great Taste, Good Value and
that will defight corsumers Real Convenience
Scope Ervironment
Manufacturing & Marketing Mafural, Knowledge-driven,
Convenient & Specialify Foods Energetic and Fun work
ETVEROTIMETNT
b5 proud 1o be acknowledged among Top Vertlcally integrated and
~ Tasty Bite has condstanthy 50, ranking 35 in Indla’s Greal Mid-size versatile technology with
baan commitied to the LN workplaces 2018 and Tog 35 Best Warkplacasin ahalf-stable, chillad and frozen
sustainable developmant Goals, banulacturing Sector m indla Jam 20149, Tood mamufaciuring capabiliby.

Has been witnessing a CAGR of Awarded the best R&D Awarded the most mnovative
1955 over the past 5 pears team 2016 by Food supplier repeatedly by
Frocessing Magazine leading O5Rs




Positioning
Consumer Businass
«  Fastest growing Indian food brand in the US

Fastest growing Asian brand In the US {largest in natural channel)

«  Fastest growing RTE Rlcein the LS fargest in natural channel)
Food Service

Trusted partner to leading $58 brands and new age food tech
::dmpanll-s

« Strong innovalion capabilithes

Versatile product and packaging sodutions with fast, agile
response

LSPs

Consumer Business

18 1o 24 Months Shelf Life

«  Pioneersd retort technology for Indian culsine

Uses farm-fresh veggies

«  Wertlcally-integrated manufacturing facility In Pune
«  Cegtined with 15022000, BRC, FDA, 15014000, C-TPAT

In-hause arganic demaonstration farm

Food Sepvice

Large range of sauces, hﬂmn@du:h and gourmet sauces
Eguipped with In-house techinclogy such as refort, emulsion,
asaptic, frazen, formed frozen food line and pie line
Certifications from FDA, BRC, HACCPE, HALAL, KOSHER and FS5AI

D5IR-recognised RED centre and collaboration with Purdue,
Rutgers & Leading Unlversities drives excallenca and inngwvation

Highly trained cullna_ryad'ld food technology experts
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Presence
Consumer Business
us - our largest market

OTHER MARKETS

fen /8]

Australia  New Zealand Germany

Canada

Food Service

India - sur largesy markst

+ - Strong distriibution

= 40,000 = stores

« Matonal on-ground sales force
s Top norch Marketing team
Fepresented by the US' largest CPG broker

Japan

OTHER MARKETS
&

8 . R

/ s
5ri Lanka Kerya Maldives Kuwiait LHE & Orman

"?; ool "‘-

;_. -
Fhilippines Thailand Singapone Qatar



CONSUMER PRODUCTS
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T

" Operational Review

Performance & Key Trends

(INR crore)
iStatement of Profit and Loss 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 J
Net Revenue 1782 208.8 256.8 303.1 - 355.2 )
Gross Profit 715 853 108.7 131.7 1493
Operating Profit (Profil before Interes, Tax,
Depreciation & Amorlisalion) 261 342 158 . o4
Profit Before Tax (PBT) 165 248 3422 41.0 471
Profit Afier Tax (PAT) 108 16.) 220 26.5 30.1
Eamings Per Share of Face Value of INR 10 420 628 85.7 103.1 117.2
Dividend Per Share of Face Value of INR 10 10 20 20 20 2.0
_Bglia_n_ce_s_l‘leEt 2(_)1_4_—1 5 201_5-16 2(11 6:17 ?9_17:12_ 2018-19
Cash and Cash Equivalents 6.2 73 6.3 S8 7.8 ]
fixed Assets(Net) 61.0 615 65.2 763 82.1
Net Current Assets 9.6 24.0 370 S24 63.0
Share Capital s
Equity Shares 26 2.6 26 26 2.6 -
Redeemable Preference Shares 0.6 0.6 & -
Reserves and Surplus
Reserve for Premium of Preference
Share Capital He e )
Others 300 461 719 96.7 129.4
Long Term Borrowings 212 19.7 360 306 25.8 :
l Key Ratios 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 ‘
EBITDA (% of Revenue) 14.7% 16.5% 17.8% 17.9% 18.0%
PAT/Revenue % 6.1% 7.7% 8.6% 8.7% 8.5%
Fixed Assets Turnover Ratio 29 34 39 40 4.3
Current Ratio 1.2 1.5 1.7 20 2.1
Debt Equity Ratio 10 0.7 08 05 0.3
fRetlurn on Capital Employed 28 7% 34.1% 358% 338% 33.6%
Others 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
TBEL Share Price on BSE (INR Per Share of e e W
Face Value of INR 10) 605.0 1,690.5 4,6585 7,4632 8,358.6
155.2 4338 1,954 1,915.1 2,144.8

Markel Capilalisation (INR in Crore)

“ Tasty File Falables | imite)
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I 355.2

2018-19

2017-18

2016-17

2015-16
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2014-15

303.1

256.8

208.8

178.1

Revenues (INR Crore)

I 0.1

2018- 19
— 26.5
2017-18
| 22.0
2016-17
) 16.1
2015-16
— 10.8
2014 - 15
Net Profit (INR Crore)
0.3
2018-1%
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2017 -18
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20016-17
[ 0.7
2015-16
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2014-15

Debt Equity Ratio (%)
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I 64.1

2018-19

I se4

2017-18

|—— 45.8

2016-17

I 34.2

2015- 16
| 26.1

2014- 15

EBIDTA (INR Crore)

——— 145.4

2018-19

2017-18

2016-17

| 93.4

2015-16

[ 86.0

2014 -15

1271

105.6

Fixed Assets (Gross)
(INR Crore)

I 1320

2018-19

I 993

2017-18

1 74.4

2016-17

[— 60.8

2015-16

H | 44.7

2014-15

Net Worth
(INR Crore)
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We ended the year up 17% with
INR 3.6 Billion in revenues and INR
301 Million in PAT (up 14%). The
consumer business grew 15% and

crossed the INR 2 Billion mark.

Dear Shareholders,

We just completed the first year in our naw avatar
as a Mars, Incorporated subsidiary and | am pleased
to report that the track record of profitable growth
your company has witnessed these last severa) years
continued through 2018-19.

We ended the year up 17% with INR 3.6 Billion in
revenues and INR 301 Million in PAT (up 14%). The
consumer business grew 15% and crossed the INR

2 Billion mark. The Food service business in both
categories of sauces and frozen formed products each
grew 34% pushing the TFS business across INR1 billion
in revenues.

Here are some quick highlights:

« Inthe consumer business both branded (2 1%)
angd private label (25%) saw robust growth

<« With the help of our parent Mars, Incorporated we
have begun geographic expansion in Australia, UK
and Germany

+ Inthe TFS business International markets grew
from INR 18.4 Milfion to INR 28.7 Million in 2018-19

Fasty Bile Fatatles Limisad

- TheTasly Bite foundation got undesway and is now
asection 8 company. It will lead the company’s
CSR efforts and will strive to become a catalyst
for occeleroting sustoinoble ond inclusive rurol
development

The US Government anagunced earlier this
year that it would terminate GSP benefils for
Ingdian exports to the US claiming indla had a
wide array of trade barriers that affected US
commerce. We have constantly taken the view
that GSP is beneficial to both US and India. It
makes Indlan exports competitive even as it
creates American jobs. We will soon need to

review its &Conomic impact on our margins

(t has been my tradition in the Annual Reports of the
last 20 years to look around the industey and look
ahead, s0 | can share my views on how we see the
future and how your company is kitted out for the
joumey that lies ahead, the journey we ealled Tasty
Bite 3.0, the journey we called Wholesome Mozoo. We
spoke about it last year and we remain committed 1o
continue an that journey for the foreseeable future,
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The consumer business has long been on this road.
The products thal carry the Tasty 8ite logo are
necessarily natural and increasingly organic. The
simple oath has always been thal we will nol put
into Tasty Bite what we will not put into our moulhs.
Hence there is no place for chemicals, additives,
synthetic preservalives, artificial colors and flavors or
even GMOs in any pack of Tasty Bite.

The Tasty 8ite Food Service (TFS) business represents
our next journey. Its stated mission is to become
the natural pariner of choice o leaders in the food
service industry. Hardly a decade old, it is today
35% of our company’s revenues. The strategy of
Wholesome Mazao, if challenging in the consumer
business, is even more so in the food service
indusiry, as they increasingly face consvmer
pushback against excessive added sugars, saft

and saturated fal. Al TFS we remain committed

to the idea that every new product launched

will be natural. This is more than a technological
commitment I£s a stalement of purpose. Whal part
can we play with our partners (0 remove junk oul of
junk food?

The (0od industry is wilnessing an interesting global
phenomenon of emerging trends and counler trends
whaere opposites are \rue- 2 Dickensian tale of iwo
cities. Here are Lhree that | believe will influence our

industry and your company’s strategy going forward.

1. Eat In, Eat Out:

The food Industry is bioadly splil evenly between
vetailing and food service (or eating in and eating
out). The largest single markel is the US where the
$1.5 tnillion food indusiry is split evenly between
Grocery and foodservice.

Over the last 25 years the fastesl growing segments
of the grocery industry have been natura,

S1atutory Reports 21-82

Financial Stalement §3-143

convenient angd ethnic foods globally. increasingly
the perimeter inside the stores has become a large
revenue generator for supermarkets worldwide.
Perimeler producis include fresh produce, fruits,
meal, eggs, dairy and take away prepared foods
largely consumed at home. Grocery has been the
major macket for Tasty Bile since its launch in 1295
and one that has seen 25 years of continuous

qrowih.

E2ling inisin.

The Global foodservice indusley is a whopping
USS3.6 Trillion with 3/4th of the business in three
major geographies: Asia (43%), N.Amenica (22%)
and Europe (13%). The amorphous segments

in this mammoth space include the (ull service
restaucants, QSRs, Streel carts, HORECAS, PBCL (Pubs,
Bars Clubs), HMRs (home meal replacement), OOH
(out-ol-home), dark/cloud kilchens, commissaries,
inskitutions, corporate cafeterias, travel & leisure,
non-commeraial food service establishments,
hospilals, etc. The list is long and presents both
heady and confusing opportunities.

£aling oul isin too.

Al Tasty Bite, we recognize this dual opportunity
ang while we continue 10 make major sirides in
expanding grocery disliibution (n new markets
we are also expanding TFS business in India and
the region. The cover of this year's Annual report
emphasizes this strategy.

2. Staying well, getting sick:

The wellness industry (there is even such 2
classification)) is estimaled 10 be US $4.2 Triflion
this year. The awareness of everything we put in
our body, on our body and do with our body is
increasing al a dizzying pace. In our indusicy, the
arowth in nutri-label awareness, local sourcing,

S Armual Repon 2015819
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. Ehéirman’g Messagé co

vegelarianism, veganism, glolen ree, organic &
super (0ods, just to name a few are all major drivers
of wellness. This combined with 3 heightened
awareness of climate change bodes well for
consumer, plant and planet health.

The world is getting healthier.

Diet related diseases though, are 3 major cavse

of illness in the word not just oul of hunger and
malnourishment but also in prosperous countries
due to unhealihy {ood choices. A recenl Lancel study
claimed 1} million deaths (One in five) wordwide
was linked Lo poor foad choices. Even the US ranks
43rd in diet related deaths, India scored even worse
at118.

The world is getling sicker.

The term consumer delight in our mission statement
includes both (asle and wellness. The Tasly 8ite
Research Center (TBRC) 2ims to create a center for
excellence in prepared foods R&D.You've heard

me vse the expression “Conventence without
compromise’” TBRC measures effectiveness through
a series of melrics we call Innovation Index. This is
nol just to measure revenue and margin growl(h
attributable (o lnnovalion bui also to conlinuous
improvemenl iin nutrtional density.

3. Connect, disconnect:

Theve is a new sense of conneciedness that has
emerged as a resull of social media, upending 2
lifetime of entrenched behavior. Physical introverts
are digital exroverts, privacy in the real world

has \uined to open season online and even (he
corporate supply chain has been Wansformed
through \ransparency and (raceability- all in search
of some ephemeral connectedness.

What slarted as a safety and quality assurance
mechanism, traceability has become a connecior
and with Vhe intervention of Al and block chain
techinology promises (o connec( millions of
consumers and farmers thousands of mles apart.

We live in a connected world.

Today more than 2.5 billion people spend more

than 2 hours everyday on \hewr favorite social media
platforms 1aking away a significant amount of real
connectedness. This digital overdoad comes with a
stiff price (ag. People are awkward in face-toHface
conversations, have difficully ronning thirough daily
checklists and we are witnessing an unforeseen
increase in mental issues in 16-24 year olds, affecting
celationships and pulling families apart.

We are deeply disconnecled.

The term consumer delight in our mission

statement includes both taste and wellness. The

Tasty Bite Research Center (TBRC) aims to create a

center for excellence in prepared foods R&D.

Tasty Bile Falables | mite]
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Diet related diseases
though, are a major
cause of illness in

the world not just

out of hunger and
malnourishment but
also in prosperous
countries due to
unhealthy food choices.

We'd love to bring families together over a Tasty Bite

dinnerd Improving real connectedness should be in
every brand’s DNA. For us Wholesome Mazaa will
now have an added dimension. We are increasing
our efforts on Lraceability and provenance. This
will not just provide comfort on safety and quality
assurance but polentially enhance consumer
connectivity with our farmers. Soon, | believe Tasty
Bite consumers in N. America, EU or Australia will
be able to connect with ocur farmers in Urtaranchal,
Maharashtra or Gujarat. And in the not 100 distant
future our farmers will be able to connect with our
consumers 1,000 miles away!

Satutory Reports 21-82 ||| || Financial Siatement 83-143 |

Traditional CPG food companies know they must
have the consumer at the heart of their business.
Most believe they do. Some of the indices used to
test this commitment are shore of mind, share of
wollel ond shore of plote. But ace these real indicators
of consumer focus or are they self-directed at the
brand?

I believe it is time for us to ask the question: What is
our share of wellness?

The theme of this year’s Annual report addresses
this rssue head on. At Tasty Bite Wholesome Mozao
is more than a slogan, a taglne or even a brand or
advertising positioning statement. For Tasty Bite, it
s a commitment, indeed even a responsibility. The
2 words cepresent the essence of the company’s
mission statement that states its purpose to be

3 “sociolly responsible company that will provide
consumer delight’. But as | mentioned, this is a
joumey- not a destination and this is the road that
we will travel forever.



nlesume Mazaa

Tasty Bite prides its brand reputation with a
unique blend of taste and nutrition - a strong
USP maintained over the years.

Our products could e charactensed as the Anest
quality af ready-1o-2at and asy-ta-cook, Our endesvaur
started oul with avision to preesant rich indian and Aszlan
deficacies 1o tha waorld,

The richer a maal, the mom i1s prep Timal This s true for
owrrich and glorious Indian cuisine in partcular. Cur
ready-to-cook solution paved a new path farméllions

1o sadiate their taste buds withaut a hassle With yeae

of commitment, we launched our Ready to Eat’range
wihith waesld just take a minute of yoir hectic day to
make it 3 little hnghier We have aheays bean indusie
and thoughtful 5 mnovatars. Being food enthusiasts
ourselves we undessiand the oy of cooking. Sa for those
wha would rather soak themsefves in the art of prepasing
& sl we chose 1o make an exception, Cur Spice &
Simmer sauces range is especially crafied 1o do away with
the cumberiame and ovarwhaelming pre-preparation
processes whils [Eaving the best parts of cooking baaur
CONSEMETs., .

Wil erver weo decades in aclion, Tasty Bae hps become
a hitamong tha markets of the U5, Canada, Australia,
Hawr Zealand, Germany and the UK, While our temitcriss
and reach may be internalional, we keep our recipes
and kitchim triss 1o the desi standards with cwr state-of-
thie-art production facility in Pune, The nich indian taste
15 combined with technological methads by our master
chefs ints cresting an all-natural and presarvitive-free
delicious meal

Upan feceiving 3 mass Appreciaion for aur products
acrass difierant countrias, we knew the bar had (o be
raised. Thus, Tollowed an srray of bold Mavours with exotic
vei affordable naw afferings. and thane wese a lol mare




Conponma informanon 91-20 Sahnory Aeports 31-82 | Financial Seement 83-143

= P W L
7 NP @Ur ready-to-cook

* ﬁ‘mﬁ‘ﬂ!ﬁsﬂn paved a new
£ for millions to

te their taste buds

Sl

withouta hassle.

addions 10.0ur already wholesome produc
réngs. Ak we continug with Sur Wronghald on the
global food madkets, we have baen ambithously
expanding across India with cur foad service
business.

The Asian taste buds have long been pampered
wilh a wide plethara of spicy, sweet, and
avarything in bebaean, Howsver, aur laeal euigines
dom't fall sha on aulition eithar Maintaining the
samie aesthatic value of food, aur TFS segment
provvides preservatve-ree, natural, quick and
tasty solutions for modern India’s cravings. W
chaber s iop Q551 and BORECA brands with aur
formied frazen products and sawces. Moreover,

tha Aaurishing fast lsod culture snd oui-growing
demand lor Aine dining oplions in India has
increased the prospect for our TFS segment. Thi
fentures of cormeniEnce, taste, snd nutrticn have
lod 13 cur populariy among the couniry's fep QSR
brands a4 a highly innovative snd ralisble leod
supolier. Besldes, we have also been serving some
of the prominent namie beyond India,

B it our consumer business or our TRS segmeni,
wit hamids caly the Best-in-marks! (#chnalogy
1o develas food solutions. This coupled with aur
afficient team, methods and vears of sxperience
misked us & name ragidly making it way ingide
ewery kitchen and haaril

vl rccsi e 10 [
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CAMEL RIDE
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We, at Tasty Bite, are a pack of innovative
people who stick together and nurture each
other. At the heart of all good things is a
unified sense of serving people well. Across
our organisation, each individual strives to set
the bars higher on a personal as well as an
organisational level,
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Great place to work®
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= Installed vain waler harvesting system

Impact
Successful in raising the ground water level

* Implemenited \echnigues such as crop rolation, use of natural fetilisers and pest
control methods, and vermi composting in our in-house farm

Impact
Successtul in improving vield in the most natural way

» Usage of effluen( water

Impact
Successfu! in famm irigalion

* Extensive usage of alternative and renewable sources of energy such as wind and
solar pawer

Impact
Reduction in energy cost and CO, emissions

» Commissioned bio gas facility

Impact
Converts all organic wasle into elecincity, which further helps in powering the £ETP
and R&D center

o Usage of sugarcane briqueties (bio-fuel)

Impact
Steam generation for mandafacturing processes

The commimen 10 produce maximum ulilily with minimal was{age has been driving us (or yeass, and will continue Vo remain

our foremost commilment L0 0ur &co syslem
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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that ine thiny-Allh annual general meeling of the shareholders of Tasiy Bite Ezables Limited will be held on
Thussday. 8111 day ol August. 2018, at 11,00 a.m ai Hoiel Shetaion Grand Punc, RBM Road, Pune - 411 001 10 iransact ihe followmg
business.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1 Toreeesive consider and adop: the audred financial sialemen:s of the Company (o year ended Masch 31, 2019, and ihe repofs
of Ihe Board of Direciors and ike Auditors ihereon

2  Todeclare divdend ol INR 2 perequity shiare on 2565 000 oquity shares of INR 10 each for the financial yaar 2018- 19

3  Toappomi adirectorin piace of s, Dawn Alien. who retites by roiaiion and being sligible offers hersel for re-appoinimern:
SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4 Regularisation of Additional Director Mr. P.V.V. Srinivasa Rao
Tooonsider and il thought fi1, 1o pass the (allowing Resolulion as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr PV V Srinivasa Rao [DIN 8E805347), who was appoinied as an Addinionsl Dicecior under non-execulive
carvegory with effec™ from Febuary 06, 2019, on ihe Board of lhe Company inienms of Section 1671 and 148 of ihe Compeznries Act
2013 {"Ac) reac wiih provisions of Anicle of Associalion of the Company ang who holds such olfice up 0 the daie of ensuing
Annual General Meeting, and in respect of whom a notice has been received rom a member in winiing undgr Sectics 160 o1 e
Act and who s also recommended by the Board of Diseciors for such appoiniment. be and is hereby appoinicd a5 a Director of
Ihe Company liable to retre by roiaiion.”

& Fixation of remuneration of Mr. Abhijit Vishwanath Upadhye as Managing Director till March 31, 2020:
To consicer and if thought fit. io pass the: [allowing Resolution as Speclal Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuan! io Secuons 188, 197, 198 203 ang such omher provisions as may be applicable, 1 any, of the
Companics Act, 2013 I"Act"), which shall include any s aiutory modificaiion(s) or re-enactmeni(s) thereol read wiih Schieduls V
of Ihe Acl, the consent of the Members of she Company be ard is Nereby accordad for rernunicration of Mr Abhiji: Upadiiye as
Managing Director from Aprit 01, 2019 tll March 31, 2020 upon such terms and condlitions ais are set oul indrafi of 1he agreamant,
eniered inio between ihe Corrpany and Mr Abhijit Upadhye. ihe ierms of which are mentuoned in the Sisiement sciling ou:
Material Facis annexed heewilh be angd is hereby specifically approved with an auhority :0 1he Board of Direciors (hercinafier
refemed 10 a5 the “Board”, which term shail be deemed 1c include the Nomination and Remuneration Commitiea of the Board of
Direciors! fo add allerand vary the lenns and condinons of the $aid appoinimeni/ remunsration and/or Agreemen subgc! (o ihe
elevan: provisions of Ihe Acl

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subect 10 oiher applicable provisions. the aforesaid remuneration be considered as ihe mininnum
remuneration, noiwithsianding thal the Company may make losses or madequate profiis dunng ihe tenure of e Agresmeni for
hnanoia year fcom Apil 01, 2019 il March 31, 2020

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT 1he Board of the Company ba and is hereby authonsed wiih Iiberty 1o aler or vary the terms
and corditions ol the said remunce@tion, 50 long as t does not excecd the overall imiis of jen percent of 1he nei profis of ihe
Company compuled in 1he manner sel oul in Scciuon 198 read with Schedule V of 1he Companies Act, 2013 (including any
siaiutory modilication of re-enactmen theredd for the limie being in lorce] and also 10 do all such acts, deeds, matiers and ihirgs
as may bacongidered necessary. desirable or expedient 1o give aifes 1o this resolurion

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT :he Board (Including the Comminees of Direciors) be and s hereby authonsed 'o doall such acis,
deeds, maliers and things and (0 exsCule any agreements, GOCUMENS, INSIUMEN:s and writngs as may be sequired, wiih power
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NOTICE cContd.)

1o setlle all guesiions, difficultics of doubis that may anse inregard 1o the said remuneraiion as it may in iis sole discretion deem
fir and io delegaie all orany of 15 powers conferred herem 10 any directors) ancifor officerts) of ihe Company in gve effeci 1o thes
resolution”

Re-appointment of Mr, Kavas Patel as an Independent Director;
To consider and il :hougnt fit, 1o pass Ine (ollowing Resolution as Speclal Resotution

"RESOLVED THAT purs.an: (0 the provisions of Seciion 149, 152 of ine Companies Aci 2012 ("Acl’) and other applicable
provisions, If any, of the AcL lhe Rules framed thereunder read with Schedule IV 1o e Act Mr, Kavas Paiel [DIN 00002634).
Independen: direciar of ihe Company, whose ierm as independent Disec:or 1s coing 10 an end ort September 04, 2019 and
whio has subrnitied a declaraiion that he meels he ofitena for Indeperidence as providad in Section 149165 of he Actand whois
eligitle for rc-appointment be and is hereby re-appoinied as Independen: direer of the Company (rom September 10, 20131l
Sepiemoer G3. 2024

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuan: 1@ the provisions of Regulation 17A of the SES! (Listing Obligaton and Disclosure
Requiremenis) Regulations, approval of the memiiers 15 also accorded 1o conlinuation of mMr Kavas Patel as Independant Direcior
il huz e ends on Sepiember 09, 2024 nowirthsianding him atianing ihe age of seventy-five years.”

Issue of equity shares on preferential basis:
To consider and if inougii fit, 'G pass, the lollowing resolusion as a Speclal Resolutfon

"RESOLVED TRAT piursuan! 10 1he provisions of Section 23, Secuon 42 and Seciion 62 (1) [¢) of the Comipanies Act. 2013, 1ead
vaih ihe Companies {Prospecius and Alloimen! of Securities) Rules, 2014 and oiher applicablz provisions, If any (including any
saitory modifcanons!s) or re-gnactment theredf, for the Ume being i forced, and subyect 10 the prowisions of the: Securiies and
Exchange Boand of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure Requiremenis) Regutations, 2018 ("SEBI (ICDR) Regulations”), Securnties
arxd Exchange Board ol india [Listing Obliganons and Disclosure Reauiremenis) Regulalions, 2015 as amended upio daic {'SEBI
{LODR) Regulations”) as in force and subject 10 other applicable rules, regulations and guidelings of Securitias and Exchange
Boand of Incia {"SEBIM and/or ihe slock exchanges where ihe equily shiates of Tasty Bie Eaiables Limited {'Company’) are iigied
and enatling provisions of the Memorandum and Aricles of Associauon of 1he Company and subject 10 requistie approvals,
conseris, permissions and/ or sanctions of regulaiory and ciher appropriate authoriies, as may be required ard subject (o such
conditions as may be prescribed by any of them while granting any such approvals, Consents, Permissions. and/ of sanctions
and wihich may be agreed o, by :he board of directors of ine Company [‘Board”, which e shall be deemed 10 Include any
commiiiee considiuied by :he Board 10 exefcise (s powers including the powers coniemed hercunder of arty parson authorised
by e Bosrd or iis comanillge for such purpose), the consen; and approval of tha sharehiciders of the Company be and is hercby
aranted 1o create. offer, issue and allot by way of preferential alloiment, up © 15.500 equity shares of face value INR 10/ each
{"Equity Shares’l {or cash a1 a price of INR 9.030 - (including a premiurn of INR 9,020/ per Equity Sharc) to Preferred Brands
Foods (India] Private Limiied ("PBFIPL"), for a i0ial consideraiion of INR 13989.65,000/-, as specificd below:

|
Name of allottee No. of Equity Shares to % of shareholding post allotment
be allotted

Pralerred Brands Foods ndia) Private Limiied 15,500 7438

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT aloresaid issue and alloiment of Equity Shares shall be subjec 1o the condsiions prescribed under
the SEBIHICDRA) Regulaiions, including ihe lollowing

»  Theconsideraiion for alloimen) of Equily Shawes shallbe paid to 1he Company from 1hie iank accounis of PRFIPL

b  TheEquity Shares shall be locked 1 as per 1he provisions of the SEEB) {ICDR) Regulaisons relaling 10 prefefenial 1ssue

m asly Bile Lalapies | imned
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NOTICE contd.)

¢ The Equity Shares io be allotied by way of this preferential 1ssue, shall be In demaierialized form only and shall sank parf
passu In all respecis Including as 1o dividend will 1he exisung iully paid Up equtiy shaics of face value INB 10/- each of he
Company, subjecl o the relevani provisions conialned in the Memorandum and Asticles of Asscciaion of ihe Comparny.

d  The Equily Shaies so offered issued and slloticd will be lisind and raded on the stock exchanges where thie eguity shares
of ihe Company are lisied], subjec: 10 ihe receip! of Necessary eQuistosry DRIMISSIONS and approvals, as the case may be,

RESOLVED FURTRHER THAT purstizni 10 the provisions of 1he Companies Ag, 2013, the ¢conseni and approval of ihe
sharsholders of Company be and 18 hereby accorded (or he issuance of a pivale placement ielter and application for in respect
ol the Equity Shares 10 be subscribed by FBFIFL, in the form and manner prescnbed under the applicable provisions ol 1he
Companies Act 20 13 and the rules and repulaiions thereunder, each as amenged.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT 'he price of the aforesaid Equity Sharas has been calculaied In accordance with ihe provisions

of Ine SEB! (ICDR) Regulations and Ihe “Relevart Daie™ for ihe purpose of calculating the pace of the Equity Shares is the daie.
30 (thiy) days prior 0 ihe daic of 1hc proposed annual genaral meeting. Lo, July 9, 2019,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Ihe monies recaved by the Company irom PBFIPL for applicaton of the Equily Shares pursuani
10 lhis privaie placement shall be kepi by the Company In 2 separaie Dank account.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT (ox the purpose of giving eflec: 1o ihe above, the Board be and is hateby auihorized on banalf
of ihe Company 10 1ake all aclions and Jdo all such scis, deeds maiiers and things as it may, n iis absoluie ciscrelion, deam
necessary. desirable, ncdenial of expedieni (0 (he 1ssue and alloimen: of the Equity Shareg, including Su: no: fimited 10 seeking
lisiing of ihe Equity Shares on the retevant siock exchangels), making application io iha relevant deposiiory lor admission of 1he
new aquily shares as appropnare, and 0 resolva and setlie all quesions and Gifficuliics that may arise in relanion ic the proposed
preforential issug, offer and alioimeni of any of The said Equity Shases, ihe uiiization of the 1ssue precesds and lodo all 2cis. deeds
and things in conneclion thesewllh and incidenial thereto as the Board in its absclue discretion may deem fit, wiihoul being
reguirect to sesk any [urhier consent or approval of the membaers or olhenwise 10 the end and Inien: thai they shiall e deemed 1O
have given their approvat ihareic expressly by the authority of this resolulion

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT lor :he purpose of gwing elfect 1o the rasolunon, Me Abhijn Upadhye - Managing Deecior,
Mr Gaurav Gupla -Chief Fimancial Officer and Alierriate Direcior and Ms. Minal Talwar -Company Sccreiary or any oiher Dirccior
be and are hereby scverally avihorized 10 engage / appoint deposiiosies, ogisiarns, bankers, legal counsel and such other
consullants and adwisors [0 1he 183Ue and 1o remunerale them by way of brokerage. fees and/or oiner chacges and also io enier
inio and cxecuie alt such arangements, agreements memoranda, documenis, eic. with such agencics as may be required, and
as permiiedby law,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT :he Bosrd be and s heneby aurthorized (0 delegaie all or any of ihe powers confesred by ihiis
ragolution ors ti 10 any commiier of tha Board. any other diregto(s) or officer(s) of :he Company or other avthoxized persons 10
glive effeci 1o the afloresaid resolutios

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT alt aciions iaken by the Board or a commities of tha Board, any oihar direcior(s) or offioze(s) of the
Company or any oiher auihorized persons in connecion with any matier(s) referred io or coniemplaied in any of the foregoing
resolutions be and are hereby approved, ralified and confirmed in all respacts.”

By order of the Board of Dirsciors
Tasty Bite Eatables Limited

Abhijit Upadhye
Place Pune Managing Direclor
Dawe July 12 2019 DIN 02076451
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NOTICE ccontd.)

NOTES:

1.

N3

o

10.

1.

12

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (meeting) IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF RIMSELF/RERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED
NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. Proxies in order io be effeciive mus! be received al the regisered office of the
Company not less than 48 hours before the mesting duly stamped and signed. Mermbars are requéesied io note that 2 parson can
aci a5 proxy for noi mare ihan 50 members and not exceeding 10% of oiat share capral

Membets/ Proxies should bring duly-Alied Alkiendance Slips/ Proxy Forms sent hiecewiin io azendihe meeting Members who hold
shares in demalernalised form are requesied to meniion their Client ID and DP 1D and ihose who hold shares in physical lorm are
frequested io mention therr Folio Number inthe attendance slip (or atiending the mocung.

Corparaie Members aic frequesied 1o send (1o the Compsny, 3 duly cenified copy of the Board Resolution authonsing ther
repieseMialive 1o al.end and vare on thair behall ai the mesing.

In caac of joint holgers attending 1he meeting. anly such joint holder who is higher i the ofder of names will be enttied 10 VOie,
providien 1he voies 8re nG: alicady cas: by riemole ¢-voiing (acifiy Dy first holder

The Regisier of Membais and the Shiare Transfer Books of ihe Company will remain closed from Saiurday. July 20 2319 10
Thursday. August 08, 2019 [zoth days inclusive) for delermining the names of members ehgitle (or dividend on equiiy shares, i
declared 51 the meenng.

The dvigend, upon daclaraiion by ihe members ai ihe AGM shall be ciediled 7 dispaichad befere Sapiember 07, 2019, 10 those
members whose names appear on ihe Regisier of Membors of the Company after gwing effoct 10 all valid share fransfers in
physical form iodged wiih ihe Company of .5 Remswar & Transler Ageris (RTA} on or belore Frday, July 19, 2019 Inrespeci of
shares held In demaiariatised form, the dividend will be paid on 1he basls of pariculars of benchicial ownership furnished by the
Cepositories as on the elosing hotrs of business on Frday, July 19, 2019 Aler dispaich of dividend msirumens, any requas! for
chiange in :he Bank Account will noi be enterianed by the Company ofils RTA The Company has ag per SEBIguidelines, 1ssued
letters Lo physical sharaholdars for updaion of PAN and Bank details Also, intmations were sent 1o shareholders holding shares
in phygical form, Inimaring ihe demaledislisailon need and deadiing

Members desirous of obraining any deailed informaiion conceming ihe accoun:is and opaiaNons of the Company ace requesico
lo addsass helrquenes io ihe Company Secreary so 88 o reach the Company ai least seveen days before ihe date of the meciing
sohar the required Infosmation may be made avallable atthe mecung The Sraiuiony and Secretaal Auditors have issued vanous
audit repong wilh Unmodificd opinion {withoui any gualifcaiion),

Members are requesicd 10 bring iheir own copy of the Annuat Repon to lhe meeung. No evira copies of 1he Annual Repor will e

distibuted ai the mesing

Al the documenis referred io In ihe Nouce, il any, and Siarutory Regisiers are open for inspeciion 3i the regisiered oflice of ine
Company on all working days viz. from Monday 10 Friday baiwesn 13:00 am 10 100 pm up 1o (he daie of meaung Notice calling
meeung and Annuat Report are available on Gompany's websai: /| ils

Shareholders/investors may comiaci the Company on designated e-mai id secratanal@tasivbite com for speady action from
Company's end

The Company has paid :he annual lisiing fee to BSE Lief, National Siack Exchange of \India Limited for financial year 20 19-20.

Members are requresied 10 nolify changes. il any. in therr segisiered addesses and all conespondences, including dwidend
maiiers 10 :.he Company's Regisirarand Transler Agen: (RTA) - M/s Kanvwy Finioch Pvi, Lid a8t Ka vy Selenium, Tower B, Pl 31-32,
Gachibowl, Financial Disinci, Nanakramguds, Hyderabad 500032 (Unit- Tasty Bitc)

asly Bile Lalaptias Limned
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NOTICE contd.)

13

14

16.

17.

Mombers wha have neiiher seccived nor enceshed heir dividend warrani{s) for the financial years 2011-12 onwards, aic
requesied 1o wiiie (o the Company or its RTA menlioning the rzlevant lolio number(s)/ DP 1D and Clieni ID, locissuance of demand
dralt

The amount! of the divicend remaining unpaid or unclamed for a period of seven years from the date of transfer 1 unpaid
cividend sccouint of the Company shiall be [ransiered 10 ihe nveslor Education and Aroteciion Fund (the "Fund’) set up by ifig
Governmsni ol indha

k may be noted hal the dividend lor the Tinancislyear ended March 31, 201 1 {daclared on Sepiembzer 05, 201 1 wiiich rermained
unpaid or unclaimed over a perded of seven years, was ranslencd 10 the nvesior Educason and Proiection Fund as required
unoer Saciion 124(5) of ihe Companies Act, 2013.

Any person/ Member who has not claimed the dwvidend in respec! of Ihe financiat year ended March 31, 2012, of any ycas
herealier, 1S requesied o approach the Company/ Registiar and Transler Agen: of she Company for claiming 1he same

Merbers are reauesied 10 note that no claim shall lie agains: ihe Company in respec: of any amoun: of dividend femaining
unclaimed / unpard for a peniod of seven years from the cares ihey became first due for payment

In order 10 help Members 10 asceriain [he siaius of Unglaimed Dividends. the Company has uplcaded the Information in espect
ol Unclaired Dmidends Tor (he inancial year ended March 31, 2013, on the wehsie of the Company wwwIasivhiie oo in

Securiiies and Exchange Board of India ["SEBIY) has made 11 mandaiory for ranslerces requesing lor ransfer of shares of Isied
1ed o the RTA whilsi lodgmen: of such shares

companies in physical form 1o [urnish a copy of their PAN, duly self att

In suppon of the "Green Intuative”, announced by the Govemmmient of Inidia, elacironic copies of the Annual Repor and 111s Noiice
inies alia INdicating ihe process and manner of e-voiing along with Aitendance SIip and Proxy Form are being sent by e-mail o
ihose mernbers whose ¢-mall addressas have been made available 10 the Deposiioly Panicipanis/ Company, unless the member
has specifically requesicd o & hard capy of the seme. For members vwho ~avi not fegis.ored ihelr e-mait addresses, physical

copies of this Notice
sen! 1o themin the permitied mode.

er alis Indicaling [he process and manner of e-voing slong with Alendance Slip and Proxy Form, will be

Mermbers holging shares in pnysical fomm are requesied 1 submit ieir e-mal address o ihe RTA, duly auoting their Folio number
and Membears holding shares in elecironic lorm who have noi regisiered thedr e-mall address with their DP are requesied 10 o sO
al Ihe cariies! so a5 10 enable the Company (o senct the said documenisin eleciionic form, thereby supporing ihe green intliative
of the MCA

Measa note Ihat ihe sad documentiswill be uploaded onthe websiic of the Company wiz. wwwiasivbis.co in and made available
for sspeciion . he registercd office cf the Company during business houss.

Voting through electronic means:

L Fursuan: 1o the provisions of Seciion 108 of ihe Companics Act 2013 ead with the Companics (Managemen: and
Adminisization) Rules, 2014 and any otheriule as may be applicabie including amendmenis therec!, a member may axerise
right 10 voie by electionic rmeans (remoie e-voing) Inrespect of 1hie Resoluiions contained n this nouce.

i.  The Company is providing INe e-voting facility 1¢ 1s members io enable them to casi thetr voles elecifonically. The Company
has engaged 1he servicas of M Kanvy Finiech Privaie Limited Karvy) a8 the authonsed agency 1o piovide e-vo.ing lacility
which is approved by Minisiry of Comporaie Affairs and has also obiained a Cerificaiz lrom the Standardisalion Tesiing
and Qualily Certificason Disecioraie, Deparirnent of Information Technology, Ministry of Cormnmunications and Infonmailon
Technolegy. Govermnmen: of India, as prescabed under the Companics IManagemeni and Adminsiraion) Amendments
Rules. 2015,
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NOTICE cContd.)

Vi

vii

Vil

Xt

The noiice calling mesiing is placed on :he websiie of the Company (wywiasiybra.co ) and on the websile of ihe Karvy
(hupsevosngkany com) agency annomied lor congducing the voiing by electronic means

Themembers whio opl 1o cast heirvalas by iemoie g-voling prior 1o he meeling, imay allend the meeing, however, shall no!
be entilled 1o cas! 1heir voie again

The Boatd ol Direcicrs has apponied mM/s Pareck V R & Associates, Prackcing Company Scererarnices, Pune s the Scrutiniser
for conduciing e-vling process in fair and ranspaseni manner

Mempers arc requesied 1o careluily road the insituctions or o-voiing before casting iheir volc.

The evoling modude stialt be disabled for vaiing on Wednesday, August 07, 2018, 21 500 pm Once the vole on the resdlution
15 cast, 1he Member shall not be allowed o change i subsequenily. The voting right of the shareholders shall be In
proportion to thelr share In the pald up capital of the Company as on the cut-off date l.e. August 01, 2019 (end of
day).

The remote e-voing faciity will be avallable dunng the {oliowing vaiing perod allecwhich the ponal will be blocked and shall
not be avaiiabic fer e-voting:

Commencement of e-voting August 03, 2019- from 8.00 am (IST)
End of e-voting August 07, 2019 - up to 6.00 pm (IST)
Coniaci deiails for it rlarng 0 ervonung: WY/s. Karvy Firiech Services Pvl Lid a1 Karnvy Selenium Tower B, F:ot 31-32,

Gachibowli, Financial Distric!, Hanakramquds, Hyderabad - 500 032 Toll free no. 1800-345-4007. E-mail- pvoiing@kanvy
com! ramesh desaj@kany com O visll FAQ's secion avalable a1 Karvy's websne ims//evoling karvy com

Deiails of Scruiiniser, M/s Paregk V R 8 Assocaies, Pracicing Company Secreianes has been appon:icd as Scrutiniser 10
scrutinise e e-voling process in fair and (ansparent mapner. The Scatiniser shall within a penod of noi exceeding ihree
working clays ltom conciusion of e-voling period unblock ine votes in presence of a1 ieas! iwowWINgsses Noiin employmeni
of ihe Company and present his repor! of voles cas! in Tavour and agains: e msolutions t¢ Chaimian of the Cornpany or
any ohier person as auhoniaza by him

The procedure and insinucions lor iemole e-voling are as under

A, Incase a Mermber receves an emall from Karvy (for Memibers whose email IDs are regisierad vall the Company/
Depository Paricipanis (s}

1 Launch inlerme: browser by typing the URL: hilns/levoting kany com

i Enier the login ceedenugls (ie. User ID and password as meniionad in email). In case of physical folio, User 1D will be
EVEN {EVoiing Event Numbar) xxxx [ollowed by folio number. In case of Demat account, User IDwill be yeur OF IDand
Client 1D However, if you are already regisiered with Karvy for e-voting you can use your exisling User 1D and password
(o casing your voic,

i Alierenicnng these derails appropriaicly, click on "LOGINT

v You will now reach password change monu whetcin you are requises (o mangalority chonge your password The
new password shall comprise of minimum & characiors with aileas' one upper case {A- Z), ane lowcer case (a-2). one
numercvalue (0-9) and a special character [@.7.8, cic) The sysiem will prompr you to change your password and
updsie your contacl detads like mobile number, emall 1D eic. on fir! Yogin. You may also enier 8 seCret ques:ion and
answer of your chaice Lo reirieve your password in case you forge: i It is sirongly recommended ihal you do not share
your password with any oilier person and that you iake uimos: care io keep your password confidaental

1sly Bile Lalanlas Limnad



Comporate Informaion 01-20|| ||| Statutory Reports 21-82 | Financigl Statemeni 83-143

NOTICE contd.)

vIL

viil

XL,

«ii

You need [10login again wiih iFe new crédeniials.
Cn successiullogin, the sysiem wilt prompt you Lo select the "EVENT 1e. “Name of the Company”

On the voling pags. enter the number of shares (which epresents the number of voies) as on 1he cut-off date under
TFOR/AGAINST” or aliarnaiively, you may partially enter any numbar in "FOR™ and paclially "AGAINST" but ihe osl
number In "FORJAGAINST" laken iogether shiall noi exceed your [ofal shareholding as mentioned herein sbove. You
may also choose 1iie opLon ABSTAIN. If the Member does not indicaie aither 'FTOR or AGAINST il will be reaied as
“ABSTAIN" and ke shafes held will not be counied under enher head.

Members holding mutiiple {olios/demal accounis shall choose the voting process separately lor each folio/demat
ATCOUNIS,

Volng has iohe done foreach lem of the nolice separately. In case you 6o na! 0esire 0 Cas! your vole 0N any Specific
iem. i will be tfeated as absiained

You may :hen cast your voie by selocting an appropriale opliont and chick on“Submir®

A confimation box will be displayed. Click “OK" 10 corfim else "CANCEL” 10 modify. Once you have: voied on the
resalution s, you will not be allowed 1o maciify your voie. During thie voling period, Members can login .y naumber of
iimes ull ihey have voied on the resclution(s)

Corporate/Insiiutional Mambens e oiher ihan Individuals, HUF, NRI el¢c) ate also required 1o send scanned ceriled
true copy [PDF Formait) of 1he Board Resolullon/Authoniy Leler £i¢, igeiher with allesied specimen sgnaturels)
of the duly authonsed represeniativelss, 1o the Serutiniser at vineni@cunousmindsoluiions com with a cory marked
10 avoina@karvy.com The scanned image of ihe above mentloned documents should be in ihe naming format
‘Comporate Name Event No”

In case of Membars receiving physical copy of Noiice [for Members whoss emat [Ds are not regisiered with 112
Company/Deposkory Panicipan:s (s))

£-Voling Evenl Number XXX (EVEN), User ID and Password as provided on the cover page of noiice.
Plzase folowall sieps rom St No [ 10 [xih) above 10 cas! yousr voie by eleciionc n'aans.

Voiing 88 AGMW The Members, who have noi casl iher voie ihvough Remote a-voing can exercise thenr voiing righis ai
ihe AGM, The Company will make necessary arrangemenisin this regard at the AGM Venue The facility for voring shalt
e madeavailable @) ihe Meaiing. Memberswho have slready cast inelr voles by Remoie e-voling are €ligible 10 atiend
ihe Meeling however those Membess are no: entided wo casl thelr vote again in the Meeling

A Member canont lor ondy single mode of voling i e through Remole -voling or voing al the AGM. If 3 Member casis
voles by bolh modes 1hen veiing done through Remaie e-voung shall prevail and voic at ihe AGM shall be liregied 3s
invalid

Othoer insltuciions

In case ol any quary and/or grievance, in respect of voung by clecironic means, Members may 1cfer io the Help &
Frequenily Asked Quesitons (FAQs) and E-voling user manual availlable a1 he download secion of hilps//evoing
karvy.com [Karvy Websiie) of contact Mr G Ramash Desar {Unit Tasty Biig Eatables Lwd) of Karvy Fintech Pnvaie
Limited, Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32 Gachibowl, Financial Disiricl, Nanakiamguda. Hyderahad - 500 032
ot 3 evosing@kanvy.com or phone na 040 - 6716 1500 or call Karwy's ol free No  1-800-34-54-001 (or any further
clarificanons
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NOTICE ccontd.)

I Youcan also updaie your mobite numbier and e-mailid in the user profile deialls of the lolio which may be used for
sending future communication(s)

W Incase any person becomes mamber of the Company aflter cut off dale ol dispaich of Notice of AGM and Annual
Reponie. June 21, 2019, and holds shaies as on (hs cui-off daie for e-voing ie. August 1, 2018, he/she may ob:ain
the User ID ano Password in 1he manner as meniioned belove:

1 If the motile number of the memter s regisiared against shaies held in demat form, the member may send SMS
MYEFPWD<space> DP ID Clieni ID 10 92129283393

Example {or NSDL
MYEPWO <SPACE> IN123456 12345378
Example for CDSL:

MYEPWD <SPACE> 1402345612345678
Example for physicat
MYEPWD <SPAGE> xXXX(1234567830

N If e-mail adaress or mobile number of ihe membter s regisicred aganst Folilo No /DRID Client ‘D, then on ihe home
page of hipsffevoling karvy.com, the member may click *Forgot Password” and enter Folio No. of DP ID Clicat 1D and
PAN ‘o generaie 3 passwors

i Membarmay call Karvy's ol free number 1300-3454-001

v Member may send an e-mat feques! (o evoiing@kay,com Howeves, Karvy shall endeavour 1o send User ID and
Password 10 Ihose new Members whose mallids are available.

h)  Once the voie on a lesoiution is cas! by a Membear, ihe Member shall no: be allowed o modify it subseqienily. Thie Company
shall also provide (acility for voling through palling ai the Meeting and membpers aianding the megling who have noi alieady
casied therrvoie by remole evoting shall be able 1o axercise therr nght 1o voie a1 the AGM A Mamber can opi for ordy sngle mode
ofwaiing 1e ihrough Remale e-voting or voling at the AGM If a Membor casis votes by both modes than vidiing done icugh
Remoie cvaing shall prevat and vole at the AGM shall be treaied as invatid

) The Memibas who have casied ther voie by remote evoling prior 1o ifie meeting may also atlend the meeiing but shall not be
entiiled '0 cast theirvoie again

p The voung righis of ihe Members ghall be in proportion 10 the paid-up velug of their shares in the equity capital of the Company as
onthecut-off dale iie Ihe rscord date), being August 01, 20198 A personwiio is nala member as on the cul-oll dale should reai
this noilee for mformanon purmpose enly.

ki Theresulis shallbe declarad onaraller ihe AGM The fesulis alongwith ihe Scrutinisers Repor, shall also ba placed onife websiie
ol he Company lwwwasiybie.coin)

il Any peison, who acquires ihe shares of ihe Company and becomes a members afier dispaich of Novice of AGM icur-olf daze for
dispaich of Annual Report & Notce 18 June 21, 2018 end of business hours) and ishalding shares as on the cutoff daieie, Augus
01. 2018 mayobiain the userid and password by sercling & reques: 2 Karwy/s e-mall id evelino@kany com? ramesh desai@karvy,
comor ai Company’s e-mal id secrelanal@asivbile.com or by willng 1o the Company o Karvy.

i The Scnutniser shalt afier the conclision of the voing ar the mesiing fitst count 1he voing at he meeling and then unblock the
voies cas! through evoling in ihe presence of of 12ast wo (2) winesses nol In e employmeni of the Company and he shall
fonhwithmake a Consciidated Scuainizers Reponiof he ioalvates cast Infavour of agains:. d any, 10 the Chairman of (he Company
or person authensed by Chaimmanwho shall countemign tha same,

xiv  The Scruiinizers decision on the validily of e voie shall be final and binding

xv  The Chairmnan or person authonsed by Charman shall mmedhaielylonhwith declare the result of the voling
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NOTICE contd.)

wi.  The result on the Resoluiions shall be declared on or alier the meating of the Company and ihe Resolulions shall be deemed
10 be passad on the meeting date subject 1o receipl of the requisiie number of voies in favour of the Resolulions,

xvii.  The resulis declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shiall be placed on thewebslie of ihe Company (www iasivbiie oo in
and onwebsie of Ihe Karvy (ilps/evaiing kanvy com) imrmadiaicly afier resull 1s declared by the Chaimman ard lonvardied
10 Stock Exchanges where 1hie sharas of the Company are lisied.

18 Brlef resume of the dlrectors, proposed to be re-appointed vide ltem No. 3 as mentfoned In the Notlce calling
AGM, pursuant to the Regulatlon 38(3) of SEBI (LIsting Obligatlons and Dlsclosure Requirements) Regulatlons,
2015:

Ms Dawn Allen
Ms Dawn Allen has heen a non-executive direcior saa Novembes 2017 Stie is proposed o be re-appoinicd as a difeclor

Abned profile of Ms Dawn Alleriis a5 [ollows:

Daie of Birth & Age Sepwmber 16, 1968- 50 years
Date of Appoirimen! November 14, 2017
Oualifications Ms. Dawn Allen holds BSc in Chemisiry degree from Bath

Unnversity and 15 also an ACA (fom the Instiuie of Chanered
Aocounianis of England and Wales

BExperiise inspeaific luncional areas Ms Dawn Allen has worked al the Mars, Incorporaied group of
companias for 20 plus years ana duting this ime she has held
a number ol finance postiions. She is currently CFO of Giobal
Food, Drinks and Mulii sales ai Mars, Incormporated.

Diteciorship In other Companiss as on March 31, 2079, | Prelerred Brands Foods (india) Pvi Lid- Direcior
(including Privaie lmied companies and excluding foreign
companics!

Chairmanshipd  Membership of Commitises of above |NIL
mentioned Companics

shareholding in the Company MIL

Aparn fromher, no other DireClor of Key hManagenal Personnel of ther rel atives are interesied in the Resolution

19.  Route map lor reaching ihe venue of AGM is given ai the end Of 1he arnual repor.

By order of the Board of Dirtotorns
Tasty Bite Eatables Limited

Abhijit Upadhye
Managing Dirsctor
DIN 02076451
Hace: Pune
Date July 12,2019
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ANNEXURE TONOTICE

STATEMENT SETTING OUT MATERIAL FACTS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND OTHER
APPLICABLE PROVISIONS

Item No 4:
Mr Sninivasa Rao

Mr Snnivasa Rao Pydisatiy. additional director of the Company, has been a non-exec tive direcior since February 2019. Heis proposed
0 be appoinied as a direcior.

A bref profite of Mr. Snnivasa Rac Pydiselly is as follows

Maie of Bith & Age July 0S 1668, b0 vears
Date of Appoinimzn! February 08 2019
Cualificanons M Rac holds Post Graduaie Diploma in Business Managemeni

from livi [Calcutial He has also coniplaisd Bacheiors in Technology
Chemical Enginzenng from IT (Chennai)

Experisein specific luncional ateas Mr. Rao has 24 plus years of experiance apanning auiomobile
Indusiry, iclecom industry, FMCG with mix of Iniernational glinis and
domesi exposurs:

Oirectorship in oiher Companes a5 on March 31, 2018 | NIL
fincluding Privare imued companies and excluding foroige
cornparies)

Chairmanship/  Membership of Commilleas of  above | NIL
mentioned Companias

Shareholdmg inhe Company NIL

Apan from Fum, 110 other Director of Key Manageral Personnel of theif telatives aré inieresied m e fesaiution.

Item No. 5:

M Abhiil Upadhye was appoinied as Exascutive Direcior and designaed as Managing Diractor of the Company wel Novembear 03.
2018 for a penod of 3 years. The Board of Direciors and shareholders haed given ihalr approval 10 pay remunaration io M( Abhijt
Upadhye we November 03, 2018 tilt March 31, 2019,

The Remuneration & Nominanons Commitiee at thelr meeung held on May 18, 2019, recommended payment of remunaraion fof
period of one financiat year ig. From April 01, 2018 tll March 31, 2020 irespecive of adeguacy of Ihe profiis ol the Company The
recommenclaiion was spproved by the Board of Direciors al heir mesting Feld on May 16, 2019, The remuneralion is subjgot 1o he
approval of members by way of special iesolution at the Generat Meeting

In consideration of Lhe duties and obligaions undenaken by the Managing Director hergin above, the Company shall pay Him ihe
remunerancn as por the ierms and condiions detalled we.f Aprit 01, 2016 1l March 21, 2020 subject 10 the approval of sharcholders.

The proposed remuneration from Aprit 01, 2019 1s as (ollows”
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|
No |Remuneration Stab (amount in INR) per annum
] Annual gross salaty INR 201,368,800 (Rupees Two Crore One Lakh Thimy Bighi Thousand Eight Hundred oniy)
2 ' Perqguisies Yeatly - Leave Trave) allowance {or ssll, spouse angd children for iravel 10 any place in india up io
INR 27600

Books & periodicals up 10 INR 50,000

Peuol/ Fuel Reimbursement INR 1.20.000

Cai gllowance & chaulfer reimbursemeni- INR9.57.428
Medical allowance umio INR 15,000

Leave encashment as par Comparsy Policy

3 Other Bencfiis . Coriribution 1o Providen! Fund as per applicable nules &6 Company Policy
Grauwily as per Company Policy
Medical Insurance & Group Accideni as per Company pohicy shall noi be considered as
. perguisite
4 . Perfomance bonus INR 70,00.000 (Rupees Seventy Lakhs only! par annum s assured
) Cash basedlong iem Maxirnum amoun! of *INR 2.50,00.000 {Rupees Two Croic Filty Lakhonly) aslong-iemn inceniive
inCcenives amount payable in January 2022 subjecl io achievament of company’s pedomance iarge!s lor
| 3years (CY2019 £v2027) operating plan and approved by Board

1 Incase ¢f absance or Inadequacy of profit in any financial year, the aloresaid remuneration and perquisiies shall be paid 1o
Mr. Abfijli Jpadhye as minimum remuneraion,

2  Thewrmsandcondiions of appomimen; of Managing Dyegior may be aliered and vaned [rom me 10 ime Dy the Board in such
manner as may be muiually agreed, subjiec! io such approvals as may be required and within overall imiss of 20% of nel prafiis as
set out in Section 188 of the Companies AcL 2013 and Schedule V of the Act.

3 TheManaging Director shall noi be paid any siting fee for attiending the Board or any other Commilice meeings

4 The Managing Cirecoris notlizble 1o raiire Dy rotaion

5 The above may be irealed as an absiract as required undes Section 190 ol the Aci. Drali Agreement propoasad 10 be entesed into

by the Company and Mr Abhiit Upadhyo is open jor inspeciton by Membeis at the Regisiered Office during the working days.

The othet information required Is given as follows

GENERAL INFORMATION:
1. Nawre of Indusiry. Prepared lood consising ready 1o senve producis and intermediaie [ood pioducs
Commencement ofl commorciat production 1587

3. Incaseof new companies expacied date of commencement of aCIvilES &S Per projec! approved by ihe finanoial Insiiluiions
appeanng in the prospecius No! Applicable

4, Financial perdommance o} ihe Conypany in previous 2 financial years,

(INRIn lakhs)

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Total revenue 3, 15.80 30,310.98
Profit before;x A,707.63 I 4104 0_0
Profit after tax 3,006.32 2,645.65
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&

Export pedomance and nel loreign collaborations'

(INR in lakhs)
Particulars 2017-18 2017-18
F.O 8 valye of exporis 2220384 18.03365

6. Foreign imvesimenis or collaboraions, if any.

There 1s o direct foregn equity parnicipaiion The shareholding of Non-Residan; Invesiors as on March 31, 2019 15 8,483
shares {0 37%), foreign Promoier holds 300 shates (001%) and (oreign Fort{olin corporaies hold 70,874 shares {2 78%]

il. INFORMATION ABOUT MR. ABHIJIT UPADHYE:

1. Background & deiails as prer Regulaion 36(31 SEBI (Listing Oblgations and Disclosure Requirameant) Regulaions, 2015

Dalg ol Binth & Age Aprl 13,167 1- 48 yzars
Dals ol Appomnimean; November 03, 2018 as Managing Direcior
Qusliicatons Mr Abhijit Upadhye 5 38 BE (Mech) from VJT| Mumibar and holds 3

Masicr in Managemen! Siudies Degree in Markeiing from Narsee
Monjee Instiiule of Management Studies.

Expenisain specific funcional aseas Mr Upadhye has 22 plus years of axpengnce spanning 6-Commercs,
Food Senvice, Consuling and FMCGwithamixof Inlernaiional asyvvell
as within counlry leadesstup roles. He has worked wih McDonald's
Corporailon, Flipkari, Infosys, eiconame a (ew,

Decrotship in other lisied comparues Mr Upadhye s no! adiraciornany cinertisied company, However, he
Is a girzcior In Raigad Eleciricals Prvaio Limiied, Westerm Elecincals
Privare Limited and Prefered Rrand Foods {(Indis) Privale Limited

Chamanship/ Membershyp of Commiitees of [NIL
above meniloned Companies

Sharcholding n the Company NIL

Comparalive remuneraiion profile Having regard 10 the lype of indusiry, the irend in 1he ndustsy, the
size of the Company, 1he growth ol ine Company, the profile of the
Managing Direcior, his contribuion and meriis, his esponsibililes,
the ramuneration proposed & al par with the remuneration being
pad [0 the senior executves in ot domeshic as well as mullinational
comoraie secior in [he food processing indusiry. CoOmMpanies AC
2013 has ptaced enormeus responsibiliies on the management. 1o
order io compensate with increased responsiblllty, 11 1s proposed 10
remurierale the managing direcior with appropriaie remuneraiion.

Fecuniary relationship with the Company and | M Abhilil Upadhye is not relaled 10 any direcior or Key Managgernial
Managetial Personal Person of the Company. He recenves iemuneralion as Managing
Direciorof the Company.

No othar Direcior or Key Managerial Parsonnet is imeresied in the Resolution He is noi a Promoier/ Fromaeler group member
and is appoiniad under the professional calegory on the Board.
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Pasi Remunetation Mr. Upadhye |oined the Company on July 12 2018 as Chief
Oparaling Officer (COO) Remuncralion mentioned in 1abie above s
e remunerzlion received by him as COO.

Recogniions or awards M. Upadhye has over 20 years of well-rounded expenence across
various industries including iood senvice, e-Commerce. Consuliing
and FMGG He (oined s in July 2018 as Chicl Operasing officer
(COQ) from Flipkan India whera ho served as Chief Bxacunive Officer
of Jeeves Consumer Services and F1 Info Solutions {(Flipkan group
companies). During hys 1enuse, he was responsible lor & turn-around
of the Company. Jeeves saw a muti-fold jump In revenue and
profitabilitywhils: improvingoiher metricsike employec andcusiomer
salislaction He was also responsitie ‘or Me acguistion of F1 Info
Solutions which helped bring new service and category capabiliios
for Flipkar., While warking for McDonald's Comorailon, Ahiil was
awarded he prestigous “Global Circle of Excellonce Award” o
imes in a row During his consuliing rale In iInfosys. he received the
‘Chairman’s Award of Excellence” “wice for contibuling towards
developmeni of the mui-million dollar Master Daia Management
Sciutior He has also co-awhored a case siudy for Stanfora Graduate
Schiool of Business on the development of MacFry in India

Joh Profile and Suilability Mr. Upadhyc is @ Food Industry veieran having ex:ensve expercnog
a1t McDonald's Corporatlon. He warked for 13 years with McDonald's
boih within India and 1 Hong Kong flor regional as well as globat
roles While in india. he was the counity lead for Supply Cham, QA
5 Menu Managemen: and held P & L responsibility brand excensions
like McDelivery and Desert Kiosks. Successiul products like Chicken
McNugge's. McSpicy Pancer & Chicken EViM's and plailorms
ke Broakfast were launched dunng Mis jenure He led soma
rransfomanonal supply chain iniialives and changod seversl supply
modelsinthe fam-io-fork value chan (e.g lenuce. fries) 1o previde an
edoe 10 McDonald's over s compeiiions, White In Hong Kong, heled
menu sirategy and regional product innovaiion taunching plallorms
like "Dinner” and "Cresle your Tagle” He led e Go To Marke! projec!
for McDonalg's APMEA and hislped improve reiuma for new siore
openings In emerging markers like Ching, Inda znd Indonesia, He
was paf of ihe core new country opening eam thal helped open
McDonald's Vieinam and was the: supply chaimn relationship panner
for McDonalds Japan As a global caicgory lead (or Sauces, Daiy,
Beverages and Toys he was esponstbie (or siralegic sourcing of a
few bllllon § and capabilinvicapacity planning, ABhI has also worked
inthe Domain Compeiency Group of Infosys as a Principal Consuliani
and Group Lead for Reiail and CPG Indlusiry.

Mr. Abhiiit Upadhye has a proven record of merit as narated above
and has strong knowledge of the food indusiry within and ouiside
of India. His diversiied experence and high pardormance 15 an
indicator of his capabiliiieg. He has been In urm-arpund SILBIoNS,
has managed mulu-billion $ portfolios, and has aiso worked m high
growth environments like Fligkan His expernence will be beneficia!
for overall management of the Compary Conirtuting 10 continuous
growth, increased productivity and enhanced quality
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OTHER INFORMATION:

a. Reasons for loss or Inadequate profits; The Company has noi inguired losses and hos had adequate profiis over the past
14 years, however [his s an enabling jrovision In the event [he poposed remuneralion were 10 breach e imil sei under the
Companies Aci 2013

b. Stepstaken or proposed to be taken for improvement: The Company IS on g growih paih and s expecied (¢ make higher
profits in future.

c. Expected Increase In productivity and profits In measurable terms: Managemznt expecis 10 have higher produciiviy
and profits In line wiih the estmatod budge:.

DISCLOSURES: The Board of Direciors recommends Lhe resolutions for approval of the members. None of ihe other Dieciors and
Key Managegrizl Personnel of the: Company 0 anyway, concemed or inieresied in e 5518 resolustions, Above may alko be realed as
an abstract ol 1he 1erms and conditions governing 1the appeiniment anc remunergiion of ihe Managing Drgalor pursuant 1o Section
196, 197 and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedute V of ihe Companies Act, 2013 and SEB! (Lisiing Obligatrons and
Disclosura Requirermen:s) Regulation, 2015

Item no. 6.

Mr Kavas Palal was appointed as an Independeni Direclor no! kaple o relre by ro:ation o ihe Board of Ine Company. vide orriinary
resolution passad by the Members of the Company dated Sepiember 10, 2014 and will accordngly hold ofica up I Sepiember 09,
2019 Mr. Paic! has submitied a declaration that he meeis 1he criweria for independence as provided m Section 149(6) ol 1he Actand ha
is cligible for re-appoinimeni L. for a second ierm as Independent direcior of the Company from Sepiember 10, 2019 iill Seprember
9 2024,

Securniies and Exchiange Board of India ISEBI vide 115 Noiificalion No. SEBILAD-NRO/GN/20 18410 daied! May 09, 2018 nolified the SEBI
[Lisiing Obligetions and Disclosures Reguremen)) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 (the Amendment Regulations’) 10 be offective
from April 01, 2019 Cne of ihe amendmenis requires the lisied entiiies 10 seck approval of kMembers by way of Specisf Resciution.
while appoiriing or conlnuing the dueciorship of any Nos-Execulive Direciorwhio has ailained ihe age of seventy-five years

Mr Kavas Patel if elccied as Independent Director for 3 sceond e, will atiain e age of severny-ve years dusing stich torm ang
pussuan: 10 the Amendmen: Regulations. approval of 1he Members s being soughi (or conlinuaiion of his apponiment as per the
exianl Torm, tll Sepiembes 09, 2024

Mr Patel B 3 Fellow Member ol Instiiuie of Chancred Accoun:anis of England & Wales. He brings Independeni judgement on she
Board's giscussions, His expenise lies in Augii. corporaie inancg, siralegic financiat planmng budgeling, margers and acquisiions,
business siaiages, Invesiment Wealth Managemeni eic He fas shown exemplary thought leadership dumng ihe course of hus ienure
as a Drecior. He brings in vast CEO/ Seniot Managemenl experience (o ihe Board and/or Commitices. He: fas been a kean observer
ol she lood ndusiry since decades and his vision in this domain has helped the Cornpany o achicve significant growih in operalions
and business, He has vast knowledge in Accounting and Finance ficlds and has a proaciive and (uturdsiic approach lowards Risk and
Compliance Managemeni. Accordingly, the Nominaiion Remunexation Commitiee 21 113 meating held on May 18, 2019, formed a view
that his expertisc and valuatie guidance are immensely benaficial o The Company. I its pursun of growih and hence recommend 10
the Beard 10 approve his re-appoiniment as Independent Direnior and coniinuation of his drecicrstup on the Board of ine Company
up io Sepiember 0Q. 2024 nolwiths:anding him atiaining age of seveniy-ive years

The Board of Direcioss in \heir meeting held on May 16, 2018 and on 2asis of riecommendation of Nominaion and Remuneration
Commitiee, approved the re-appoiniment and such con:inuanon

The Board {urher seek the approval of Membars, in 1ems of ihe provisions of the Amendment Reguiations and such other iies,
rcgulaiions, provisions as may be applicable, lor continuation of directorship of Mr. Palcl as an Independerit Direcior, not kable 10 (etire
by roiation, il expiry of his termup 1o Sepiember 10, 2024

asly Bile Calatles Limnad
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Section 149, sub-seciion (10} of ihe Companies Act 2013, provides ihat an indepanden direcior shigl hold offica {fora lerm up 0
five conseculive yasrs on the Board of a company, bu: shell ba eligible for reappoirimearnt on passing of 3 Special Resolution by 1hs
Company and disclosure of such appomiment in Ihe Board's repor]

Secuon 149, sub-secilon (11} provides (hay no independeni direcior shali fiold office lor mora han wo consecuilve ierms. Explanaiion
to sub-secions {10) and (1 1], provide tha! any ienure of anindependen direciar on ihe date of commencemen of this Ac: shislt nal be
couned as a term under 1iose sub-seciions. The exiantierm of Mr. Fatelia his first igrm as independent direcior uncer tha Companics
AcL 2013, pursuary; (0 :he provisions of Section 119 and explanation(s) thereunder The Board of Direciors, is thus. of the opinion thal
he fulfils the requistie conditions for re-appoiniment / continuation on the Board of the Company. as an independgen direcior

His brief profile along wiih Directorships, membership of Commitiees of the Board and other interest i any is 35 below

Daie of Biih & Age Februaty 21947, 72 vears

Daie of Appointmeni May 28 2009

Qualifications Mr Paielis a Bachelor of Commerce from Mumbal He is 2leo a Fellow Member of the Instiule of
Charigred Accounianis in Enaland and Yales

Experiisz inspecific Mr Patel stared his career with Frankin Wild and Co., Chariared Accounlanis, Londen as Clerk He

funclional areas hert joined Polaraid Corparaton in 1974 and worked willl [hem invarious intemational assignments in

Europe FarEast USA and India. His last assignments with Folaroid was Direcior of Finance, Asta Paclfic
Region and Country Bitecior India.

Oireciorship in other 1. Indian Oxides and Chemicals Privaie Limied
gomgagléfsas onMasch 2. Zinnia Properies Privaie Limied

1, 2019, lincluding -
Srivate limiied companies 3. INARCO Frivale Limied
and excluding forcign 4 DailchrKarkaria Limied
companies) 5. UNIXungerismisd

8. Nalco Champron Dai-lchi India Privaie Limsied

Chairmanship/ Audit Commitiee Chairmansiin-
Membership of . T
Beriiacs of above 1. DailchiXatkasia J_|rlnned
menlionad Companies 2 UNIXinges Limied

(other than TBEL
Commiiizes)

Shareghciging in 1he NIL
compary

His brief profile along with Direciorsips, membership of Cormnmintaes of the Boarsd and othet inieres). if any, Ioms 9 paf of 1his Nouce.
Thera 18 NO inter-s relaiionship beween Mr Paiel and any olhier Director on the Board None of the Direciors and Key Managenat
Personnal of :he Company and Lheir relaiives, except Mr Patel and his elaivels). 1s in any veay concained of nteresied {inancially or
oltherwise), In Ihe proposed Special Resoluiion.

The Board accardingly recommends ihis resoluilon o e passed as a Special Resolunon 1o the Membars [or their consideration and
approval

itemno. 7.

The board of diteciors ol the Company ["Board™) in tharmeeing heid on July 12, 2019, subject io necrssary approval (51, have appioved
the proposal (ot raising of 'unds for an amouni no. axcoeding INR 13,99,.65000/- by way of issue of up to 15,500 equity shares having
(ace value of IMR 10/ cerii "Equily Shares” . on a prefereniial basis, 10 raise lunds {or [} funding working capital requiremenis of the
Company., (0 repayment of loans avalted by the Company, and liil) general Comorale purpose

in terms of the provisions of Seciions 42 ang 82 and piher applicable provisions, I any, of (he Companies Ac:. 2013, and rules lramed
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thereunder, gach as amended {the “Acl’) andihe Securities and Exchiange Board of Indis (1ssue of Capital and Discloaure Requiremeiiy
Regulanons, 2018, as amended, ((SEBIICDR) Regulanons”), prefarential alioiment can be made only wibh ihe approval of the members
of the Company by way of spaciat resalution.

Subjert o approval of the shareholdacs of the Compéry, ithe Board vide i1s board 1esolulion daied July 12, 2019 has authorzed the
issuance and alloiment of up o 15,500 Equity Shares al a price of INR 9.030/- per EqQuity Share {including 3 premium of INR 9,020/~ pet
Fquity Sharg), 10 Prefered Brands Foods {Ingia) Privaie Limiled UPBFIPLY). by way of a preferential aliownent for a 1oial consideration of
INR 13,20,65 000/- ("Frefereniial issue”)

The infarmation as required under the SEBY (ICDR) Regulatons and the Ac or the Preferenial ssue, 1s 2sunded

8) Obijects of the Preferential issue: The funds to be rased from ithe Prelereatlal lsste will be wiilised for 4 lunding working
caprisl rexLirementts of Ihe Company, () repayment of loans availed by the Company, and (i} general corporale purposes.

b} Total number of Equity Shares to be issued: The resolution set ou! In the accompanying Natice eniitles the Board 10 18sue
Equrty Shares nol exceeding 15,500, as may be cleemed approprizi2 in the best interesi of the Company.

C) Paniculars of subscribers and Intention of promoters/ directors/ key managenial personnel to subscribe to the
Preferent(al Issue: Except for PBRPL, being one of ine promotais of Iha Company, none of e promoters, direclors or key
managenal personne! of the Company are subscibing to the Prefcrential Issue

d) Shareholding pattern of the Company before and after the Preferentlal Issue s as below:

Pre-Preferentlal 1ssue’ Post-Preferentlal Issue’
Sr. No. Category ENqo'_‘“ct’; % of No of Equlty| % of
Shares held shareholding | Shares heid| sharehotding
A Promoters’ holding
1 inchion
inchvidual - - 1 -
Bodics corporaie 1904510 74.22 16.20010 74.38
Sub-total 18,04,510 74.22 19,20,010 74.38
2 Foreign promorers 300 001 300 00N
Sub-total (A) 18,04,810 74.23 19,20,310 74.39
B Non-promoters' holding
i insiuional Investors 85,880 33b 85880 332
2 Non-instnunion 103708 4,04 1.03708 404
Privéne coporaiz bodies ] : -
Direciors and relailves - - ’ :
Indian public 460,464 1784 4.60.464 17584
Others (Including NRIs) 11,138 043 1113 043
Sub-total (B) 6,61,180 25.77 6,61,180 25.61
GRAND TOTAL (A+B) 25,66.000 100.00| 25,81,500 100

" As per beneficiary posiion staiement dated July 5, 20 19.

e) Time frame within which the Preferentlal Issue will be completad: As required underthe SE8 ICDR) Regulaiions, the
Equity Shares shall be issued and alloned by the Company 10 PEHIPL within a penod of 15 days from ihe daie of passing of this
sharehalders' rasolution, provided iha where any approval or permission by any regulalory auihorizy or ihe Cerital Governimani
for ihe allormen: of the Equity Shares 1s pending as on ithe daie of the shatcholders’ resoluiion, 1he period of 15 days shall be
counied lrom the date of approval or permission as Ihe case may be.

PBFIPL 18 mieresind in (e proposed rescluiion 10 the exicnt of their shaeholding in e Company. Mr. Abhijit Upadhye and Ms,
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Dawn Alien, being directors on the board of ihe Compariy asweall a3 on ifie board of PBFIPL, are inieresied in the above esolution
None of 1he diseciors, managers or key managenal pessonngl, of any of their relalive. § in anyway, concemad of Inieresiad,
financially or ciherwise, in 1he above resoluiion

f) Identity of the proposed allottees: The allornent of the equily shares of (he Company will be made 1o ihe lollowng persons:

Names of allottees | No. of Equity | If aliottee Is not a ngtursl Pre-Preferential Issue* | Post-Preferentlal issue’
Shares to be | person, identity of the No. of o of No. of & of
allotied natural personwhoisthe  |Equity | shareholding |Equity |shareholding
ultimate beneficlal ownerof | shares Shares
the Equity Shares proposed
to be Issued, If applicable.
Prafered Brands 15500 Not apphcable 1904510 [ 7422 19,20010 | 74238
Foods (India) Privatc
Limhed

“As per beneficlary poshion stalement daled July 5, 2019,

The name of proposed alloniees 8 perceniage of sharshalding pos: aloiment

Name of the proposed allottees % ‘ﬁ;aarﬁ:frﬁsg
Preferred Brands Foods iindal Private Lientied 7428

'As per beneficiary position slatement daled July 5, 2012.
h) Change in conirol There will be no change in conirol of 1he Compary pursuam 10 the Prefereniial Issue
) Undenakings.

1 li Is hereby confirmed thar nerher the Company nor ils direciors and (6 the Company's knowledge, any of iIs promoless 1S a
wilful defaulier.

i Since the Equiy Shares of ine Company have been lisied on recognized siock exchanges (o a pericd of more han 26
{tweriy six) waeks prior (o ihe Relevant Dale, the Company 18 Not required 1o re-compuie the price per Equily Share and
1herefore the Company s no; fequiied 1o submil ihe undenaking specified under the SEBIICDR) Regulations.

f)  Relevant Date with reference to which the price has been arrived at: July 9, 2019, which s 30 Jays prior (0 (e daic of
passing of special iesolution by 1he members of the Company for approving ihe Proizrential Issue.

k) The price at which the allotment Is proposed: The alloiment is proposed io be madce ai price of INR©,030/- per Equily Sharc
{including a premium of INR 9020/~ pey Equiy Sharc), which i1s deiormined in accordance wiit thie SEBI (ICDR} Reguiaiions,

)  Basis on which the price has been anrtved: The price has been arived at n accordance with the relevani provisions of the
SEBI [ICDR) Reguialions

The Equity Shares are lisied on BSE Limiied and the Nationa! Sicck Exchange of India Limiied, and ihe Eguiiy Shares ae infrequenily
lraded in accordanice with the SEBI ICDR) Regulalions. As per Reguialion 165 of the SEB! ICDR) Regulations, when the sharss of an
issuer are noi frequenily tradect ihe paoa delermined by the issuer. shall [ake Inlo account valuztion parameters including book value.
oornparable 1rading muliiples, and such oiher parameters as are customary [or valualion of shares of such companies and should be
done by an inciependent valuer and a ceriificalein this regard, under Regulaiion 165 of 1he SEBI (ICORI Regullalions, has been oblained
arid shall be submiltied io he siock exchange where the shares of the company are lisied.
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Accordingly, ihe Company has oblained a valuaion repor! frorm M. Anandkumar Gawade, Reqgisiered Valuer ("Valuatlon Report”)
Acopydi the Valuauon Repor shall be avatabie for inspeciion al (he regisisred office of the Company on all working days from 11:00
A and 100 P iill the conclusion of this meeting ang shall atso be lald balfore Lha memibers &1 the meeling

The price per share has been determined m accordance wilh the provisions of the SEBI IICDR) Regulations. The Equiy Shares,
being infrequenily raded, the price per Equiiy Share is deiermined 1aking into account vaiuaiion parameers inctuding book value,
comparable rading multiple @1¢. The price per Equily Share has heen determined by iaking into consiceralion financial parameiers,
grove:h in business in the recant years and lulure momenium, angd by giving ceriain weightage 1 the {air value of the Equity Shares,
derved using *he Markel Price Meihad and Comparable Companies Quoied Mut sy Method Further, an adaditional premium has
been adoed o ihie fair value, as arved al in accordance wih the: fofegoing meihods, considening 1he Prefareniial Issue 1s beng made
only 10 one of the promoiers The business valualion has been carried o using approaches and methadologies gven under ihe
Imernaiional Vatustion Standards According 1o the Valualion Repor: ihe prce per Eguity Share comes i INRSG Q30/-

m) Lock-In: The securies issugd under the above prefereniial issue shall be subjae! 10 a lock-in pericd In accordance with e
applicalies provisions of the SEBHICDR) Regulaiions,

n) Auditors’ Certificate: The ceriicaic from /s B S R & Assocaes LLP, Charered Accouniants (Firm Regisiraion No
118321WM 100024), the Siaiutory Audhitors of the Company, cenmfying 1hat the Prelerential Issue is boing madem accordance
wilf| tha requiremeants coniained m thie SEB! (ICOR) Regulalions shail be placed before the shareholders of the Company a1 the
Annual General Meeiing of the Compary and shall be available for inspeciion ai the regisiered ofice of ihe Company during [Fhe
business hours excep! public holtcays.

o) Relevant Date: The Relevani daie lor Ihe pumose of determining 1the price of shares In sccordance with pricing method given
in the SEB! ICDR) Regulalions 1s 30 days prior (o dag of the annual general meeling and n case where relevan! dale falls on
werkend/ holiday. ihe day preceding the weekend/ haliday is rackenad as Relevant Date Accordingly, the Relovani Daig is
July & 2019

p) The number of persons to whom allotiment on preferentlal basls have already been made during the financial
year2018-2019:

Nil
By order of ihe Board of Dicectors
Tasty Bite Eatables Limited
Abhijit Upadhye
Managing Direclor
DIN 02076451
Place: Pune

Date .July 12, 2019

m asly Bile Lalapies | imned
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

i)
The Membars,

Your Diraciors ase pleased io piasent the thiny-filih anaval report icgether with audiied siaiemen: of accounislor Ihe yearended fMaich
31,2019

1.  KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (AS PER IND AS):

{(iNRin lakhs)

Highlights 2018-19 2017-18
Revenue from operaions 3369286 20.632.30
Other income 182284 678.68
Total Income 35,515.80 30,310.98
Profit before depreciaiion, inieresi and aw 6.40537 513561
Profit after tax 3,006.32 2,645.65
Earnings per share (INR /share - basic and diluted) 11716 103 10
Net fixed assels 821073 763201
Long term borrowings (excluding curen! pefiion) 258128 3057.01
Profit/ (Loss) transferred to balance sheet 3,006.32 2,645.65
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) transferred to balance sheet 218.60 (128.69)

2. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE & OPERATIONS:

Your Company grew ai 3 healthy Y-O-Y rate of 17% 1o achieve revenues of INR 355 2 crore during the year againss INR 202 1 crore
in the previous inancial year The Expors led Consumecr Business grew by 15% Y-0-Y with sales of INR 217 4 crore aganst INR
189.3 crore In the previous year while the Tasly Bite Food Service (TFS) business regisiered a sirong grow:n of 34% wiih sales
of INR 1195 crore aganst INR 833 crore In 1he previous year Tasty Biie continues 1o relain in position ol marke: leadership iniis
key markets including 1he Uniled Siates, Canada, Ausiralia and New Zestand. Profi. afier 1ax for Ihe financial year ended 2019 a1
INR 30 1 crore againsi INR 265 crote in previous financial year 2018, a growlh of 14%

3. DIVIDEND:

The Board of Direcioss at their meeting held on May 18, 2016, recommended 3 final dividend of INR 2 0 per equity share, subject
10 ihe approval of sharehiolders at the ensuing Annual General Meeiing

The 10:8) dvicend payoul on equity shares would Invelve a cash ouigo of INR 51 3 lakhs ang dividend 1ax of INR 10.6 lakiis

Upon dedaration by the members at ha ensuing Annual General Meeang, dividend shatl be pad 10 ihose members, whose
names appear on the Register of Members of itha Company alier effecting all va''d share transfers 1~ shysical formlodgedwilh the
Company or iis Registrar g Transier Agenis on or before July 13, 2018, In respeci of sharcs held m demaieralised form, divicend
will be paid on the basis of pariicutars of beneficial ownership flumished by Depesitories as o 1e closing hours of business on
Juty 19, 2019,

4. RESEARCHAND DEVELOPMENT:

Tasly Bile Pesearch Centre {TBRC). locaied veithinihe laciory carnpus continued 1o build on lis mission 1o be acentre of excellence
in produc:, process and ingredient innovaiion. Duning the course of year, seveml new innovalive producis were developed oy
TBRC keeping in mind the evolving needs of our consumers. The Deparimen) of Science & Indusinal Resaarch (DSIR) of the
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Union Minislry of Science i Technology renewed s accreditaion 10 TBRC ill March 2012, Applcation for renewsl has been
made by :he Company foffunher accreg;son for 3ycars o ihe depanmen: New producis developed ai TBRC inthe lasi 2 yeass
conifbuted 26% of Ihe company's revenuas

5. FIXED DEPOSITS:

The Company has ne: accepied of inviied any deposiis {lom the public dunng the yearunder review.

6. DIRECTORS:

During [he year under review, Mr. Ravi Nigarn, Managing Director of ihe Company and Mr. Sohel Shikar, Chiel Financisl Officer of
the Company: and allema’c direcior 1o Mr. Ashok Vasudevan resigned wilth effect from Novemiber 2, 2018 (end of business bour)
from tharr respeciive posts. Me. Abhijit Upadhys was appainted as Managing Director with affec from November 3, 2018 and Mr.
PVV Sririvasa Rac was appoinied as an Addilional Director and as a Norn-Execuive Direcior viith elfec: from Febuary 6, 2019 As
per Ihe provisions of Seclion 1671 of the Companies Acl 2013 (e erm of Mr PV Srinvasa Rao a3 Additional Direcior is only upto
ihe daie of ensuing Annual General Megting. The Cornpany has racered a proposat for his appolnimen: as Direcior The Board
of Dircctors recommend his appoiniment as Non-executive Direcior for sharcholders’ approval a: 1he ensuing Annual General
Mceung

Mr Gaurav Gupia replaced Mr. Sohel Shikari as Alternaie Direcior 10 br Ashok Vasudevan during ihe year.

Ms. Rama Kannan, Mr Kavas Paiel and DI. Chengappa Ganapati coniinue i0 acl a3 ihe Independent Direciorson ihe Board of the
Company

Mr. Kavzs Palel was appainicd as Independent Direcior In the year 2014-15 for a period of five years and iherefore his iem is
endingon Sepiember08, 2019, As perthe provisions Secion 142 0f ihe AcL anindependeni direcior 5 eligible [or two conseculive
izms Therefore. the Board recommends Mr Kavas Patel for appointmieni as Independent Disecior for ibe second lenm of five
vears effecive llom Sepiember 11, 201910 Seplember 10, 2024

In addiiion 10 this, Mr Kavas Paiel will be completing 75 years of his age, during his tenure as an Independeni Direcior. As pef
e provisions of Regularon 17{A) of :he SEBI Fegulanons, no lisied entity shall continue the direciorship of any person as 3
nof-executive direcior whe has aitained ihe age of 75 vesrs, unless 3 special rmsclution  passed (o thal effecl. An explanatory
s@awment 18 annexed 10 the noroe regarding this

Al independent directors have provided declaration as provided in Seclion 149{6) of the Comparses Acit 2013 along with Rules
framed Ihereundee and Regulaion 18{11{b) of M2 Securilies and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligaiions and Disclosure
Reguirements) Regulauons, 2015 stating ther independences pursuant 10 provisions of section 144 of Companies Aci, 2013
{"Acy) and SEBI (Lisilng Obligation and Disclosure Requiremen:s) Regulalions, 20 15 {'LODR)

In accordance with ihe provisions of she Companies Act 2013 and dicmorandum and Articles of Association of the Company;,
Ms. Dawn Allen, retire by rotation a1 The ensuing Annual Genera! Mesting, and boing eligible;, has offered herself lor reappoimment

. Board evaluation:
Pursuani i provisions of the Gompanies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Lisiing Obligaiion and Disclosure Requiremienis) Regulaton,
2015, the Board ceamed oui evaluaton ol iis own performance indesdusl pedonmance of the dircciors as well 85 ke
respecive Commiliees, Evalation of Chairman was alse camict out, Trie manngr of cvsluaiion i« mentioned i Corporaie
Govemance Repoxi.

. Remuneration & Evaluation Policy:
Thie Board on recommendation of Nominalion & Remuneration Commiler adopied Remunerahon and Evaluaion Policy lor
selecuon, apporr ment and remunai@lion of Direciors and Senior Management Parsonnel including crilena for delermining
quallfica’lons, pos e ainbuies, Indepandenca of a direcior and other matters as required by the Companies Act, 2018
Necessary diversity in the board was ensured. Detalled policy is available at Company's websile wwwiasivbile coin
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10.

’ Meetings:
Dudng the year under review, B (sx) board meeiings were held lor which proper nofices were gven o 1he 8oard of Direciors
These wers held on May 16, 2018, July 8, 2i3 &, August 8. 2018 Ociober 11, 2018 November 12 2018 and February 8,
2019 The maximum interval Deiwenn any iwo meciings was ool more ihan 120 days. Deialls of thgse meaiings are s:aind
in Corporale Govemancs Repon

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The exirac of Annual Reium as provided undos Secuon 92(3) in Form MGT - 9 is available for inspecaon on the websiic of ihe
COMpPany wyw [asvhite 0o i

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
Dircciors confirm thai-

{2). inthe preparation of the annual accounts lor the year ended March 31, 2018, applicable accouniing standads have baen
Tollowed along with proper explanaiion relaiing (o matenal depaniums, 1 any.

(b} 1hey nave selecicd end consisicnily applied such accouniing policies, jucgmen:s and esimaics ihat are reasonable and
prudeni ioensure a 1Irug and fair view of siete of affsirs of the Company a1 ihe end of the knancial year and of the profit of ine
company lor thal penod;

{c). they have 1aken proper ang sufficien! care for The mainenance of adequale accouniing fecords in acoordance veh the
provisions ol Comipanies Act, 2013 for safequarding she asse:s of the Company and for preveniing and detecting (raud and
other regulaniies;

{d). 1hey have prepated Ihe financial sialgmeants / annual 3cCounis O a going concarn basis:

le). ihey nave laid down iniemal hinancial controls 1o be Idliowed by the Company arid thai such inlemal inancial conirols are
adequaie and are operaiing effeciivety; and

(N 1hey have devised proper $ysiems 10 ensure compliance with he provisions of all applicable laws and thai such sysiams
were adequate and operaling effecimely.

Bascd on ihe framework of inernal tinancial conirols and compliance sysiems established and maintained by the Company, 1he
work performed by the imemal, siziuiory and secreianal auditors and esaernal consultanis, including ihic avdi of internal financial
corls over financial reporing by Mg $13iutoy audiors and ihe reniews perdormed by the management and the relevant board
commiliers, Including audil comminze, the Roard is o the opinion thar the Company's iniemal inancial conirods were adenuaie
and elfeciive during the 2018-19.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12):

During ihe year undar review, there svere no 1auds reporled by he audilos (o ihe Audil Commiiiae of the Board of Direciorns
under seciion 143(12) of Comparnies Acl, 2013,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Your Company places graal significance 10 good Corporate Governance as an Impornan: step towards bulding mvestors’
confidence, IMprove INvesions’ pro:eciion and maxmiss ong-tem sharcholders’ value Accordingly, )1 has laken adequaie
steps o ensure 1hat the provisions of Comporate Governance as prescribed under the SE8I (Listing Oblgaion and Disclosure
Requirament) Regulation, 2015,
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11.

12

13.

14.

A ceriicare fiom Sizlsory Audeors of the Company egarding compliance ol condilions ol Coporaie Govemance 15 in
‘Armexure A’ 10 this Repor. A delailed repon on Comorais Govermnance lomms a pan of [his Annual Repon.

AUDITORS:

. Statutory Auditors:
M/s BSR & Asscciales LLP, Chanered Accounianis [Firm Regisiration No, 118321WIW - 100024}, Pune, were appoinied by
the shareholders as the Siawtory Auditors ol the Comparty in 1he thiry-third Annual General Meeting for a period of & years
and they hold office up 1o the 1hiry-gighth Annual General Mesing of the Company.
The salutoty audiors i therr independen: audil repor have reponad “provision {or inveniory wiite down’ 55 a key audil
maiier, This mater was addressed by Auditors in :ho contex of audit of 1he financial siatements as a whole which were most
significant during the course of audi: [or the perod uncer 1eview

. Internal Auditors:

Pursuan: 1o seciion 138 of Companies Act, 2013 :he Company appainied M/s Suresh Surana & Associaies LLP, Chariered
Accounianis as intemal augiior for inancial year 2018-20 Thc scope and fee of interna! audil s fixed by the 8oard on
recommendation of Audi Comiillee

. Secretarial Auditor:

Pursuiant 2o section 204 of the Companies At 20 13, 1the Company appainied M/s Pareck V.R & Asscoiales, Praciong Company
Secfeiznes. Pune as Secreiprial Audior of ihe Company [or financial year 2018-18 on May 16, 2018, The Secretanal Auchi Repon
daed May 23, 2019 15 atisched as "Annexure 8" 1o ihis report Mr Abhishek Jagdale, Praciicing Company Secretary msigned
from acting such. Based on the Audi Commiitiee iecommaendalions Board has approved ihe appoiniment of M/s Pamok V.R. &
Associales, Praciicing Company Seoreianss, Punc as Secretarial Audiior for financizl vear 2019-20

WHISTLE BLOWER & VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY:

In compliance with the provisions of Seciion 17712} of ihe Companias Aci 2013, the Company has esiablished Whisile Blowear

and Vigll Mechanism Policy [or Its direciors and employees 1o repor Their genuine concems and 10 deal wiih 1he insiances of

fraud and mismanagemenis, Il ary. The deials ol the Policy are explaned in the Corporale Governance Repar and 1he policy 1§
available on the websie of the Company wwwiasivbie.cain

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

In compliance with the provisions of Seclion 177 of the Companies Acl. 2013 and SEBI Reguiaiinng, the Company has 3 duly
consiuled Audis Cormmilies, The composiion and oher relevant detals of he Audil Commitles arg given in The Comomnie
Govemance Repori annexed herewiih All suggestions of Audit Comminiee during ihe year were accapied by 1he Board. Dunng
Ihe year under repor. Mr Abiilr Upadhye replaced Mr Ravi Nigam as the member of the Audic Commitice consequent 10 his
appoinimeni as Managing Direcior of the Comnpany.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

Dunng the year under review, (here 1s nothing o be reperiad under ihe head - 1oans. guarantess o1 Invesiments covared undar
Ihe provisions of Secnon 186 of the Companies Ac, 2013
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15.

16.

7

18.

18.

SHARE CAPITAL.:

financial Statemeni 83-143

During the year under reviaw, the Company has neilher issued any shares wiih differeniial voing nghis nor issussid swea! equily
shares Furher, the Company dict not grant any siock opions dunng e year under review Ag on March 31, 2019, deiails of 1the

shares held by Dirgciors in the Company are 35 under.

Name of Director No. of Equity Shares No. of Convertibles
held held

Mr Ashok Vasudevan -~ NIL-—- -=— NIL —
Mr Ravi Nigam (1[Il Nov 2. 2018} 200 | NIL -
Mr. Sotriel Stiikan (Ul Nov 2, 2018 NIl NIL —-—
Mg Dawr Allen - NIL - - NI -—-
Mr. Kavas Faiel - NIL -~ -~ NIL -
Mes. Rarma Kanmnarn -~ NIL e NIL =
Dr. Chengappa Ganapaii —NIL-—- -—- NIL —-
Wi Snnivasa Rao Pydlselly -—- NI -—- ~—NIL—
Mr Abhijit Upadhye fwel Nov 3 2018) - NI = e L
Mr Gaurav Gupia {alierate direcior) (wel Nov 3 2018) meven NI woren weaen B e

Therg are no convermble nsirumants issued by the Company.
1000 shares held as oint holder

SEGMENT WISE OR PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE / NATURE OF BUSINESS:

The Company operales inone segrment Prepated (cod consisting ready 10 serve products and inlemmediate loed producis such
25 prepared meals, Irozen formed fonds and sauces There is no change in nature of business of the Company.

BUYBACK OF PREFERENCE SHARES

Dunng :he year undaer review, ihe Company has successiully completed he buyback of 58,530 1% Non-Cumulalive, Non-
Cernverible Redesmable Praference shares of INR 100/- each a1 INR 2050/- per share. The Buyback consiiluied 125% of the
paid-up shamre capiia: and lree reserves of the Company as ¢n March 371, 2018 and the t¢ial amouni paid for the buyback was
INR 122 crore. The b ayback was ffom :he exising preflerence shacholdes of the Company and i was mainly done 1o provice exi
opporuniy (o such preference shameholder. The buy-back process was completed and the shares were exinguished on August
31.2018

Tihe Board of Direc:ors of the Company, at its mesting held on July 6. 2018 had approved the proposal ol 8uyback which was
{urher approved by the sharcholders by means of a speciat iesoluion al the Annual Goneral Meeilng held on Augus: 9, 2018,

THE CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND QUTGO:

The Company has Daen making significan effosts 10 ensure consaivation of energy The deiails ol energy conservation
echnology absemiion, research and developman and loregn @xchange earnings and oLigo are as par "Annexure C

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

In compliance with ihe pravisions of Section 134 of the Gompanies Act, 2013, the Company has ideriiied the elemenis of 1he
risks, industry specific and in general as well which In the opinion of the Board may thieaizn the exisience of the Company The
Company has developed and implenteried a 'Business Contingancy Plan for Risk Mitigation’ for the Company

The deiails of ;he 'Busincss Conlingency Plan for Risk Mitigation' of the Company are given in (e Managemeni Discussion and
Analysis,
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20.

21.

22

23.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The Company has a Policy and a Comemiilee for Carporate Social Responaidility in compliance with [he provisions of Companies
Act 2013 The deialls abow the Policy and the Commiilice are given In Corporae Governancs Reparl annexed 10 this report
Anngal Reporlon CSR activiiies Is annexed as "Annexure D'

As per the provisions of Secilon 135 of the Companies Acl 2013, every Company lalling undet the applicability of Comosale
Sovial Responsibilily is required © spend 2% of ks net prefiis on the acivites given under Scheadule Vil of Ihe Companies Aci.
2013 and CSR policy adopiad by the Board of Direciors The Company has spent INR Rs 408 takhs dunng the financial year
2018-190n CSRactvilies as per the policy of the Company. Company was requircd 10 spend INR 67.21 lakhs during the year, The
cumulaing unspent amount as a2 March 31, 201918 INR 63.15 lakhs.

The dezalls of amouni of expendituce during the ysar are 3$ Io1ows,

Particulars INRIn Lakhs
8] Gross amoun! required (o be spent by the Company during the year 8721
bl Amouni spent dufing the year
(it PFramation of education (Constuction of School)

(i) Other 4106
Total 4.06
¢) Unspen: amount 6315

During the year under review *Tasly Bre Fourdaiion’, 8 oo for prafit company Iimiled by guaraniee recidtered under ihg Companies
Ac) 2013 fihe "Foundetion”) was formad. The Foundation is a dedicazad plaifom for social acivilies The Foundanon wil also carty out
CSRacuviiies of the Company I was registered In Decenmber 2018 andshusine Faundaionisin iis operaiional phases Te objeciiveof
seling up the Foundaon s 1o create acommon plaiform whichwall garne: the resources and uillise the (o Ihe benelt: of Ihe society at
large. Asthe Company 1s keen 1o utilise the parform of Foundaiion forits CSR activities and the Foundaiion could not ix: operaiionalised
dunng ihe yearunder review, INR 83,15 lakhs remained unspen gunng the year

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND POSITION OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES:

Busing the year under review, 1he Company neiher had 8 subsidiary comparty, a5s0013!¢ company nof 3 (oI VENIUIE cCompany.
Hence, commenis and dslalls on preparation of inancials on standalon? basis of report on the parformance of subsiciary
COMPANy Of 8SSOCIBle COMPAaNy NOF a |oinl veniure company are nol required 1o be offered.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

The pariculars of conlracis or arrangemenis with relaied panies In Form ACC - 2 are annexed herewith as "Annexure E' The
Board hereby informs tha: all the relaied party transactions are carmed o in the odinary course of businass and on anm's lenglh
basis. Further, the Company has duly complied with 1he Indian Accounting Standad 24 (eisted 10 ransaciions with elaed
pariies of the Comipany The Company has adopied policy on Related Party Triansactons and same 1§ pasied on websile of the
Company wwwiasivbile ¢o in

SIGNIFICANT/ MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY COURTS / REGULATORS IMPACTING GOING CONCERN STATUS
OF THE COMPANY:

There arc no significant or masenal orders or awarss passed by ihe Cours of any other Regulaiors or Tribunals relailng 10
Companies Acl, 2013 of SEBI (Lisiing Obligation and Disclosure Requitementt Regulaions 2015, which would alfect 1he going
concem sia:us and Company's [uture operations.
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24, APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL.:

1

o Qo

o

The ratio of the remuneration of each diracior io the median remumieraion of (he empioyecs of ihe company lor ihe financizl

year 201819

{INRInIzkhs)
Name of director Remuneration of Median remuneration Ratio (3) =1/2
Director (1) of employeas (2)
Mr_Ashok Vasudevan -—- NIL --—- oo NIL —---- = N[ s
Ms, Dawn Allen -— NIL -~ R [T — —ee- NI[ -
M. Abhilil Jpadhye (rom Nov 3, 2018} 12564 487 2580
Mr. Ravi Nigam (il Nov 2, 2018} 88387 4187 2030
Mr. Kavas Faiel RIS T PO TS NIL -=---
Ms. Rama Kannan -—NIL -—- ——NIL - --- NIL
Dr. Chengappa Ganapati [ I— —— NIL - —- NIL -
Mr. Stinivasa Rao Pydisaily ~-— NIl -—- -~ NIL - =~ NIL --
Mr Gaurav Gupta” —— NIL -—-- —— NIl —-— e NIL -

*Mr Gaurav Gupta receives remeneration as Chief Financlal Olficer nol as Ahernaie Direclor

The perceniage nciease in remuneraion of each drecior, Chief Financial Officet. Company Secreiary or Managey, if any, in

the financial year,
(INR in lakhs)
Name Remuneration in RE eratio Increase
2017-18 Dl & ] (in %)

Mr. Athijit Upadhye Managing Director | NA 125,64 NA

(weal Nov 3 2018)

Mr Gaurav Gupia Chief Financial NA 2640 NA

el Nov3.2018) Officer

Ms. Minal Tatwar Company Secreiary | 1024 1143 11.6%

Mr. Ravi Migam {ill Nov 2 2018} | Managing Direcior | 14865 9887 % Incraase cannot

Mr. Sohet Shikari Chigf Financiat 147.11 8775 be computed

(il Nov 2. 2018) Officer as ihe KMP
resigned from their
respecive roles
dunng the vear

Number of permanent employeas ate 242 on the roll of comparty as on March 31, 2019.

The remurneralion paid 1o The employees is In affirmation valh Remuneration & Bvaluation Policy of ihe Company.

During Ihe year increment was also made: i salary of Company Secreiary and Senlor Managemen: on basis of annual
appraisal by the management on proporionaie basis and as per the Remuneration Policy.

Average percenils incease in salancs of emnpioyees oiher than the manageral personnel in the 1a3st financial year 2018
was 1238%. Pescenile increase in 1he managersl remuneralion n 2019 15 ot applicable as Mr Abhiil Upadhye (oined
35S Managing Direcior only in previous year we [ November 3, 2018 and ai a differeni pay scale than tha of 1he erstwhile
Managiriq Direciorn Hence, the salary is noi comparable.

The Company i3$ < vanable pay compensaiion siruciure only {or Managing Direcior basis achievemeni of iargets (a8
mentioned In Notice convening Annual Genesal Mecting). No oiher cmployee has vanable pay component siruciute The
Company [Lirther confirms 1hal remuneralion paid io employees isin line wiih its Remuneratlon Policy.

Sraiement of employees receiving remuneraiion under Seclion 197(12) of Companies Aci. 2013 and Companies
{(Appointmen; and Remoneralion of Managefial Personnel) Rules, 2014 s ailached as "Annexure F.

Varalionsin the marke! capialisation of the Company, prce eamings ralio as a: [he closing daie of the coment financial year
and previcus financial ysar and parcaniage ncrease ovel / deciease in ihe market quoialions of ihe shares of ihe Cormpany
in comparison 10 the rale a1 which 1hie Company came out with the las! public offaer in cass of lisied companies’
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Particulars Issued capital | Closing Market | Earnings per | Price Eamings | Market capltalisation
price per share share Ratio (In Rs)

As0on31.03 2018 i 2560,000 7,483.20 10310 | 7239 19,15,05,71,200

Ason 310320719 25.66.000 835860 117186 7134 21.44.81467,600

Increase/ decrease NIL 89540 14106 (1.05) 2287596100

% Increase/ Decrease NIL 12% 1364% (1.45) 12%

Triz Company made Fublic Offering in Februacy 1087 of 750000 eqully shares al INR 1000 each. The marke! guolation
ol the gquily shares of Ihe Company as on March 31, 2019, was INR 8.358 60 for shares of face value of INR 1000 each,
represeniing an increase of 83,5686% over the period,
25. INVESTMENTS IN ITS OWN SHARES BY COMPANY, ITS SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES ETC:
Thie Cormpany dunng ihe period under review has not made invesimanis in s own shares, 1ts subsidianes or 85505i31e COMPanics.
26. PECUNIARY RELATIONSHIP OR TRANSACTIONS OF THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Duning the periocd under reviayy, there was no pecuniary relationship or pecuniary iransaclions beiween the Company and 18
non-exerutivg direciors.
27. INTERNAL COMPLAINTS COMMITTEE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
{(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:
Your Company 18 an equal opporiunty employer and salety ol alt empioyees and all olhes persons while wiihin 1he premises Is
of uimost mpernance 10 your Company. The Company has been praclicng safely of women al workplace as part of its formally
adepied Cede of Conduct In order 1o sirengihen 1 and in compliance 1 newly enacied Act lor protecion of women, your
Company has formed Iniernal Comptaints Commiriee and adoped "Folicy on Freveniion Frohibition and Redsessal of Scxual
Harassment of Women a: Workplace” The Commitiee’s mandaie is 10 bnng awareness aboul ensuring safe workplacs for
wornen; receive and |ake appropriale decision on complaints, f any
The Comnillee a8 apponied by ihe Management consisis:
Ms Anlla Thomas - Frosiding Officer
Ms, Minal Talwar - Member
Mr fRajlerdra Jagdhav - Member
Ms. Suman Bhagwal - Member
Mr. Kulgeep Joshi - Independent Mermber
Ms Nirmala Lagad - Maember
No complaints have been receved dunng the year.
28. DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS:
As per SEBI {Lising Chiligation and Disclosure Requeement Regulaiions 2018, the Comporale Governancs Report wilh the
Aughiors’ Canlificaie thereon, and the Managemen: Discussion and Analysis are allached, whick forrs pan of 1his repori.
The Company has devised proper sysiems 0 ensure cormpliance wilh the provisions ol all apglicable Secretanal Standards
issucd by ihe Insitute of Company Secreianes of India and thar such sysiems are adequare and eperaing effeciively

29: PROPOSAL FORRAISING OF FUNDS BY ISSUANCE OF EQUITY SHARES TO PREFERRED BRANDS (FOODS) INDIA
PRIVATE LIMITED (PBFIPL) ON A PREFERENTIAL BASIS:

The Boa@ of Directors ("Board’) in s meeung held on July 12, 2019, approved ihe proposal fof rasing of funds (ot
INR 138885000/ (Rupees Thiricon Crore Ningly Nine Lakhs Sixly Five Thousard only) The Board has passed a resoluiion,
subjec! 1o eceipt of approval of the shareholders and other requisiie approvals consents, as may be required, offer (o issue and
allot by way of preferentiat allolment, up 10 15,500 aquity shars for cash al s price of INRQ,0R0/- lincluding a prermium of iNR 9,020
1- per Equity Sharel 10 PBFIPL

FBFIFLIs Promoter of ihe Company. currenily halding 15.04.510 equiy shares foming 74.22% ool pad up equity share capiial.
Elfem Holaings Limizd s also a Promores and holds 300 equily shares forming 0.0 1% of 1cial paid up equity share capiial Wilh the
1zsue of abovi: meniioned 15560 aquny shares the shareholding of promoter will increase 1o 74 39% of 101l paid up capiial.
Details about ihe proposed issue 1s provided in ihe notice aliached (o this annual repon
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:

OVERVIEW

Tasly Bile is the leading brand of Ready 0 Eal (RTE) prepares foods and s also the panner of choice © leading brands in the food
service indusiny. The consumer Dusiness has a range of ready-10-ca: and msady-10-cook INdian and Asian entrées, sauces and arange
of fready-'o-ea: organic fice and graing; while the Food Service business comprises a range of customized speciaity formed lrozen
producis. sauces and gravies Our consumer producta BuSMESS is curently exporls gnver and the brand is markelad in North Anenca
by Preferred Brands Inc while Mars Food Corporalion manages markeiing and distribuiion for all markets cuiside of Norh America.
Cur food service producis are markeied direcily by your company [0 maor QSR {Cukck Service Restauranis) and HORECA (Hotels,
Restauran(s and Caieersi players In Indis, Souih East Asia and Middle Eas:.

INDUSTRY MEGATRENDS

The vision of the Company, consisicnt formor thar a decade, is 10 be abe a socially responsible comparny that will delhight consumers
by offenng greal 1asle, gooo value and real convenience achieved Hhirough manulaciuing and markeiing of natural convenent
and specialty foods This vision is Like a Norih Star guiding our sirategy, oparaling plans and decrsion making The company’s visicn
coninues jo be a dhiving lorce (or fuiure growth and helps cffectively navigaie some: of *he indusidy megairends mentionad below::

. Better for you

The rend owards healthy, nalural oganic and bererlor-vou food sn% slowing dowrt in fact. i1s popularity & only increasing
Consumers are lollowing healthier llesiyies and moving away from foods that contain additives 10 embrace simpls nawral
irgeedients thal they use alhome lordaity cocking. They are also ready 10 pay a pemium (or orgaric Ioad as they halz chemicals
ihai destroy their body and the land onwhich iheir food is grown This irend Tias been serving us well in our consumer business
which has been recessanly natural and pecierably arganic. Wih Intreduction of five new organic producis. your company
launched :he famiastc fifisen” organic rice porlolio in :he consumer business I North America In addition, your company also
staned us loray inio Organic Enirees by convering ine wwonic Madras Lenil imo Ciganic. This journzy of organic conversion wil
only ncrease in:he near future, The berer-foryou irend is also on the fise in ihe [ood sevice indusiry wiih many global and ocal
prands plediging 10 launch riew products with clean 1abel and have launched saveral indiiaiives 10 rermove adgdiives from thieir
existing products Your company is partnering wiih these customers (o help creals clean 1abel procucts.

- Theadventurous consumer

Wilh increasad globatization, consumears are exloing bolder lavors and seck mulli-sensorial expancnces. Consumers have become
extiremely expenmental verh flavors, are noi affaid of hot spices and love 16 expiors new seasonings. Jalapeno and Cayenne peppers
are he rage in US while ther@s increases consumplion of Sweet Chilll, Figutio and Cayenne Peppers in Europe. Pefi Feid has become
a hougahold »ame in India while Wasabi is maving beyond nuis and sushi 1o varous forms of food like saucss snacks and shakes
Chinese Tha! and kalian curings conirue 1o groew in popularly whie Indian has now become iha second asiest growing cuisine
acioss (e wordh Superfoods like Quinga Amacantn, Chia eic. are fiing off the shalves hacause of Iheir secemingly ‘good for yous
nutnional properies. Fexianans are on the nse especialy because of the growing populariy of plani-based foods These plani-basad
foods acract nos only vegelanansiegans bui Also consumers conoemed about personal health ard food/environmen:ia susiainability
All this bodes izally well for your company which has been al the forefront of creaing plani-based producis with bold lavors and craving
i3ste Tasty Bl exising range of Indian and Asian cuisine producis are enjoying increasing popitanty across all ils markers. Several
new procucislike 'Ancient Graing, ‘Couscous & Guinoa, 'Smoky Chipotle Rice' launched o caler o the changing tasie profiles are doing
exaremcly well We also launched a Ho: and Spicy brand exiansion of our porular Madras Lentils Within 1he lood semce segmen), we
pannercd wih OSRs iolaunch scveral Innavatve Navorul products inline with the customer expaciatons
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(Contd.)

= Technology

Technology is changing the way people ea:. oook and shop for focd Grocery shopping has become more fragmenicd for
families with sponianeous fill " shopping Inps supianiing he Iradional weekly sicck-up inp because of g-commerce While
Americans do dine cui more [han ever before. eporis show ihai four out of five meals are siill prenared a: nome Technology
Is helplng the dramatlc shift away from the traditional weekly stock-up grocery trip to immedlate, needs-based
replenishment, thanks to e-commerce. Consumer preferences for on-demand grocery dellvery, withln one to
two hours, will only grow In line wilh this shifiing rend. Tasiy Bite s also secing an increased demand liom ecommeroe
companicslike Amazon 1hs share s only expecicd 1o youp 1 he future

Technolcay is also playing a major rele in disupling 1he radiiona! {ood senvics Indusiny Not only online resiaurant aggra0a1o6s
such as UberEais, Delveroe. Swiggy but also companies thar run cloud kichens are changing the way consumers aie ordenng
and eailng [cod On one sde, hese Tood iech companics are helping radilona! QSRS by ncreasing 1heir share of delivery
husiness whileon the orfier hand, (hay are compenng with them through their cloud kiichens. The food delivery market In Indiats
growng at more than 45% pecannum and 1his s also helpmg diive same s:0re salas griowth for QSR's. Your company is pannering
wilh leading {0od iach companies in standardizing el focd supply chain and (as1 scaling of (heir cloud kichens,

»  Convenience continues to be king
Thi desire for convenience is ol going away in e fulure. 1H1s only on the fise Consumers are looking for food opiions ihal are
aasy |0 prepare wilhout sacrificing 1asie. The fulure of focd will increasingly revolve amund :echnology n an effor 10 address ihe
necd lor convenience While consumers gravilaie owards natural ‘cleandabet fords. thay also have less time 10 prepare therr
logds and meals from scraich The average cooking iimein the US is dowrto 30 minules per day Tasly Bile range o Ready-in-Eal
and Ready-io-Cook predue:s Telps this [ast paced consumer meet his need 1o have & welt-rounded die: without compromising
on1z5ie or health

The focd sewvices Indusily m India s roughly $60 billion 10day and s expeciad 10 grow ¢ $90 billon over the nas 4-5 years.
The number Includes boilt aqanized and ithe unorgatized secior. The growth would be on the back of a sirong consurner
demand for both ordaring-n and eating ol In marry South East Asian counines, aparments no longer have a kichen. Every
meal s ouisourced While a kilchen-ree world is vt some fime away for Indians, ve are outsourcing ioocd more fregquently than
before Mos: of ine large QSR's have been reponing doubdle digt comparsbie sales while food tech companies have been scaling
much fasicr Tasty Bio's food service business pariners with severat OSR's as 1hey tatiin 10 win an Increased share of the Indian
CONSUMET'S Slomach

«  Transparency and Sustainability

Teansparency haslong been on the food indusiry's radar as a dnver {or building 1rusi and boosing sales. Today's consumers want
-0 know whia's in ihair lood, wihere n comes from, and how 1I's produced. Your cormpany works with sevioral (armers across ibe
couniry and has putin slrong sysiems (0 lrace several of our incoming faw maierial like graing, (rech vege:ables upio the farmlevel
Furiher, sustainability continues 1o hrave an enofmous influence on customer buying decisions When a consurmer subscibes 10
a brand they are alsc subscribing io ihe brand's Ideciogy. iheir vision and :he mpact :he brand has on he environmens, Your
company’s vision for the pas: decade has been 1o be a "Socially Responsible Company” ihat provides consunier delight, This is
maiched with acions across savesal areas around soil and water consenvalion increased use of renawable energy, reduction of
carbon fooipnnL All of the company’s sieam 15 generaied using compacied agrcullural wasie (Brnauelles) and around 14% of
energy 1s sources fromrenewable sources like Wing and Bio-gas. By endof 2019, [his numbarwillinciease 10 25% after insiallation
of solar pancls across 1the eniire faciory A brand thai 'walks-the-:alk’ will always win the consumers hearn and your company has
bocn successiully doing tha. fof ihe past scvarel years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:
(Contd.)

RESULT OF OPERATIONS

in ierms of market share, Tasty Bite coniinusd 1o mainiain its sirong postion as the leading brand {of sheil-siable Indian icods in Noah
America.

Produc: wise parformance

Product Revenue’ Key market areas Customers
Ready-10-0at foed (natural, INR217 4 cr (64.5% ol thecial | LISA Ausialia, Canada New Markered through PBI and
convenient ethnic or specisily | revenue) Zealand and UK ars Foods who diginbuias ihe
food) PIGCUC! i mainsGam reiad

chains such as Cosico, Kehe,
Krogers, Woolworihs and oihers
Fomed frozen food and INR 1185 ¢r (355 % of the iotal | QSR chains and HORECA Dominos Pzza Hui, Subway.
specialiy seces ravenue) (howels restauranis and Faasos, Mc(onalds, KFC,
sererdl in indis, South East Burger King, Hinpdustan Uniiever
sk and Micidlo East

‘exciudss oiher income

Your Company fiad 3 good year with revenues growing 17.2%. The axpor: Business grevy 15% on acaoun: of incressing demand for aus
producis. growih in disiribution ponis as well as sucosss of our new products kg New Rice vaneties, That Entrees and Ancioni Grains,

The Tasty Bile Food Senvice (TFS) business has grown 34% over the previous vear Thisis on accouni of double-dign same siore safes
growth of O8R brands and addnion of new cusiome:s Including new age tood 1ech campanies hat operaie cloud kilchens. Seversl
new producis launched with customers hatped nol only drive addinonal sales lor cur customers but also helped us win awards like
"Best Innovation”, "Mos: Trusted Panner” from our customers

Ready-To-Hear (RTH) business clocked INR 217 4 Crotes of revenue while the Food Seivice segment comprising of Frozon Fomed
Produc:s {FFP) and Sauces crossed the INR10Q ¢r mark 10 end the year at INR 1195 Crorgs Qverali revenue kom Dolh segmenis
touched Rs 355.2 crores Including sncome from expor Incentives on account Of the export business,

Given Ihe relaiively high inz:ion In FY 20718- 19, increass Inour organic Sourcing and long-term contracis for key commoditios ke Urad,
Rice, Dairy anct Tomaio Pasie oul iaterial cos! increased by 1.4% 10 58% of revenues,

Conversion ¢os:s were significantly lower ai 10.1% compared io 14 1% ol evenue in the prévious year This was mainly cue o freght
adusiment as per ithe new fevenue siandard (IND AS 115) applicable from 1st Apnl 2018, Cverall margin alier direc:s (alier all drecl
vanable cosis) Increased by 250 bps 10 31 9% of ravenus Manufaciunng oveihead costs increased 10 6 2% of revenue compared o
58% inthe pravious year mainty because of inciease In warehouse renial cost for siorage of siralegic raw maierial

EBITDA gréw m line wi:h revanues by 17 8% and was ai 4 siable 18% of revenue

During FY'19 Profit before iax (PBT) Increased 10 INR 47 1 crores from INR 41 croes in FY'18 anincrease of 147%. Pofu afic! iax
Increased (o INR 30.1 ¢rores from INR 26 5 crores in FY'18.

Other comprehensive income records the re-measurement gaing/losses on our defined benefit plan (gratuity) and the matk 20 markct
gain/loss on the effective porion of cash flow hedges 1gken by ihe Company 1o hadge its [ofex expasures, net of axes  Thare was an
aciuanal loss nel of axas of INR 33.0 1akhs as cornpared 10 an aciuarial logs of INR 30.3 lakhs In FY*18 and mark 10 market gain, net of
taxes on effective portion of cashilow hedges of Rs 251.6 lakhs as comparsd o aloss of Rs 984 lakhs n FY 18,
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MAN)AGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:
(Contd.

Ratio
Vanous financial rauos are s ioflows:

Ratlo
) Debior Turmnover 2.2
1) Inveniory Turnover 20
liil Interes: Coverage Ratio 118
vl Curreni Ratio 21
V) Debt Equity Ratio 024
vi] Operating Proflt Margin (%) 18.0%
wi} Net Profit Masgin (%] 85%
viil] Deiails of any change in Reiurmn on Net Worth as compared to the immedizicly previous linancial 230%

year along with 8 delalled explanation thereof

During thé year hera s sianificant movement in delil equily rano 1 came down by 52% as compared 10 DMEVIOUS yes! prinarily because
ol buyback of preference shares and efficient cash marnagemen: duiing the year

SOURCES & USES OF FUNDS

As ai March 31, 2019 the Company had three long-lem foreign cunency loans from wo Japanese banks, namely Miuho Bank and the
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishiwilh a loial outstanding balance of $ 4 7 milicn (NR 325 crores) These loans have maturities from five (o eighil
years withan iniarest cost of 3months Lo —0.80% on two loans anct 3monihs Libor = 0 75% on tha third loan. The Company has enlered
inio an nteres! raie swap (IRS) agreement wilh e hanks 10 conver the oaing raie liability of hese loans inlo a fixed rai Tabilly, As a:
WMarch 31, 2019, the IRS has a mark-o-maikel gain ol INRG 7 crores. The Company has not iaken any new long-lemn loans durnd ihe year

The Company avalled working capiial toan from affllsies of INR 12 crores in Indian currency in Augusi 2618 which is repayabile by
Augusi 2018. Out of g INR 6 crores have been repaid and INR 6 ciores cuistanding is vel 1o be paid

The Company has repaid the shior-ierm working capiial bormowing in the form of packing creditin {oreign cutrency from Mizuho Bank
of INRB5 crores in EY 2019

There was no change In equlty share capiial {issuedf paid up) during the linancial yaat. Howevel, the Cempany bouahi back 58,530
1% non-cumeiaive, non-converible redeemable Preference Shares duning he year,

Total nel properiy. plant & equipmen (including caplial work-in-progress) siood ai INRO2.4 croies as compared [0 INR 785 crores liom

DIGVICUS voar Asee!s that were capitalized during the year (net of disposalsi tataled RIR 18.3 crores

Ne: working capilal in the business grew from INR 524 crores in FY'18 1o INR 63.0 croies in FY 16, an Increase of 20% Custeni 1310
increased from 20107 1

OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS

The tusiness 15 bull on the foundation of sirong valuas aconsisient vision and has devdoped a sustainable compeitive advartage in bothiis
segmen:s ihrough vears of experence. This places it in a good pesition competitively and provides significant opponuriies o grow.

Strategy

Our sirategy and mission sialement siated eaflier s to be a socially responsible company that will delight consumers by offering greal
[as1e. good value and real convenience achieved thaugh manufaciunng and markeling nasural, convenien! and specially [bods na
knowledge-drven energeiic and funwork envieonmen;.
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%IANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:
(Contd.)

Qurendeavor and goatis io make Tasie Brie

«  Synonymous wiin ‘Wholesome Mazaa' and & houseshold name in key plobal markeis
. Brand of choice for the Aspirarionals

+ TheYbenchmark {or sustainatillily in the food indusiry

-« Apreferred panner forleading food semvice brands

Strengths

. Brand name: Tasiy 8i¢ 13 one of theleading brands in North Amienca amongst Indian and Asan prepared [6ods. Ining indizn shelf
siable preparcd focds, it commands a dominant markei share and is pne of the fasies: growing brands in ihe Asian and fice caiegory

. Management Experlence: Your Company's senior and middle managemen: has snilficani expenence In the lood indusity
ard a siyong undersianding of consumer business as well 88 the (00d service ndustry.

»  Innovatlon: Sirong markeiing ang consumer nsight combined highly skiled culinary professionals and lood iechnolegists,
makes your company exiremely $1rong in inndvaiion In eddilon. tie INnovaton ieam leverages cur Resesich and Davelopmert
cenrer oquipped with [atest wochnology 8 stale-of-the-an equipment

. Trusted partnerfor B2B customers: Yourcompany panners with leading OSRbrands io provide cuss:omized produc: solutions
in Frozen Formed Product (FFP) and Specially Sauces calegory The several awards recoiverd by yous company are 2 1estimony
10 1his sifong relaionship with 18 customers

- Strongdistribution and marketing: Yourcompany 13 supporied by Preferrad Brands iniematcnal Inc in Nonth America and by
Mars Food Comorailon for all markeis outside of Norilt Amenca. Both st companies have o well-esiablished markeling and
disteibulion nework In hair respeciive markais.

. Strong suppty chaln: Your company is one of the largest organic scducers Inthe counlry andis backed by a very sirong. agile
and efficient supgly chain.

v Product quality: Your Company manufactures nigh qualiy products for s food service as well as consumer business The
manufaciunng facility is audied by several cusiomers and meg:s sinngent quality standards of several countries including US; UK,
Australia Japan and Canada.

Competition

The food ndus:iry globally is atarge and fughly competiive industry hial is subject lo ever changing ConSUMET irenas and consumstion

habils

In our consumer markels, our producis compete not only with other Indian reasy-lo-eat oflenngs bo: il other specialty meal opiions

including oiher cuismes iha: a consumer may consider as alunch or dinner allemnative

Likewnee, In our fcod senice business. ihere are several miernaiional and domesiic comparnies thal fiave the lechnology and capability

o manufaciuce simildf products Some of tham also have global relationships wiih lcading QSR bronds. Cuswomers arc exiremely price

Sensitive and expec! Coninuous INNovaiion from iis supphers

Outlook, Risks and Concerns
The Company intends 1o continue (o focus on both the consumer and food semce business hal sre seeng similar double-gigii growit 1aie,

for 1he consumer business, growsih will be driven by ihe following siraiegics:
Increasing 1:0inis of distibueicn in existing markess ike North America and Canzda
Goographical Expanscr o nevacr Narke:s
Launch of new producis io imprave frequency of purchase and increase customer base.

i Nori Armenca, Preferred Brands Intemationat Inc is coninually adding new supsimarkeis 10 55 potfalio. Apars from thai in-store
product sampling and live produc: demons:ralions are & sirong medivm undenaken [0 improve cusiomer conned: with 1he brand
Cutside of North Amenca, Mars Fonds Corporaion is parinefing veith your company (0 re-launch the Tasty Bire brand in UK Ausliéla
andcther markeis leveraging their strong relanonshipwith large resailers, In adcinon the company plans iolaunch several new preducts
and convern s exisling entrees info Organic.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:
(Contd.)

In the Food Service business, our growth will be enabled by the lecusing on the following:

Supernor cusiomer senvice
Innovationled parnenng
Inlernaiioral Expansion

The lood service indusiry is largely relaiionship drvven. QSR brands expsect very Nigh lavels of CUSIoMEr SeVIoE, supchcs produci gualily
and strong irmovaiion capabiliies Your company has baen a preferred parner for many cusiomers because 1t has been exiremaly
s:rong on these gspecis. The company will continue 1o hold dnve figher levels of pedormance across all parametars During the year
under review, yc..- company expanded 118 presence In many South East Asia and Middle East markels I the coming yesrss, ihe plan
would be 10 \everage this rnewty lormed cusiomer retalionships and grow ihe business n INese new geographics This sicaiegy ano
approach will enable your Company 10 arge! new B28 cusiomers (OSR chams arid HORECA] and enhance iis markel share.

The undedying risks and concems Ihat we see in the business:

- Thiere is intense compelilionlor shall-space in suparmarke.s and lheie is always uncenainty wheiler ibe Company would be able
1o get s producs Isied in grocery stores. AS newy product reviews ake place only once or iwice ayeas any delay ingelling lising
could impact growin

- The success of any product or calegory depends finally on corsumer accapiance and new launches may of may noi be
successluf

- In the focd sernvice busingss, we need 1o cominue 10 Innovaie and ai the same ime be Highty compeatitive in lerms of cas: in order
10 s¢iain and grow our business with our cuslomers.

- We do not have long-iermoonlfacis with our customers and they Could slop purchasing from the company wiih [1kile or no notice
period This coutd negativaly Impac: our revenues and profiis.

- Inpu: cosis of raw material, packaging maienal utlliies labor eic are on the rise in India Out product pricing remalns relatively
siable andwe may not be able 10 Pass on Cos: INCIBASES 1O OUr CUSIOMESS

- W are exposed 10 nsk of luctuations in [eragn cuency on our expor sales We have a robur! forex nsk management poficy
place and this allows us 0 hedge movements in foreign currency exchange raies 1or a penod of twelve months. As we are a nel
exporer, any long-erm sirengthening of the Indian upce would have an adverae impaci on our profisability.

- Allour iaw malerials afe agnculiuial commodihes hat somesimes see significant price volatiiny depending onweather and maiket
cordilions. While we ¢lo siraiegec purchases 10 hedge risk of key commediiies, it would noi cover all the raw maiedals thal we
purchase

- we have one manufaciunng facity that manulaciures all our preducs for cus consumer and {ood service business, Any uniowsrd
incident beyond our contrat can impac: our abilily to fLlill cusiomer orders and our repulation

- Our produc's are shwpped globally and ocean 1rcight forms a maerial portion of cur (oial coss All owr expens are shipped om
NIava Sheva port in Mumbai, Increase (in oll paces. changes in supply-demand of vessels and por disrupiions oould increase (his
CCS: or cause delays in reaching our products (o our markers

- A lew of our raw and packing maienals are imponcd vih longer procurement fead hmes, Changes In exchange &es and any
delays onimpon canimpac: produciion schedutes ang our abitity o {ullill orders

- We have siaried our organic pumey a few yaars ago The oversll policies, imporv/expon regutanions around Organic Progucts
ate coriinuously changing and any policy change could impac! our ability 10 manulacture and/or expori our rganic Jroducts Lo
customers nuiside of India.

= Our insurance coverage may Nol be adequaie io protect us agains! all poteniial losses (o which we may be subject and ihis may
have a maienal adverse elfect on our business

= We are aligible for varicus inceniives Irom :he Goverrment on the sxpori of valus-added aariculiural produc:s Any change on
inese policies ihal reduces thesa incentives coulo adversely impact our net Incorrie.
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(Contd.)

- Any shoncoming in the quality of our producis could have a financial impact zside rom impacting ihe reputaion of the brand

- Wecouldbe the subjec: of ligatian, which if advarsely detemined, could haen our business and operating csulls

- Any changes ic Impon policies and 1axes in the counines where we expot our praducis colld Increase [he cost of our producis
forour consumiers which could Impact demand,

- Weneed io inves! in manulactunng [aciliies and physical Infrasiruciure ahead of marke: demand given ihe tong lead imes in
crealing new capacily. Cur profiatility could be reduced il our business does noi grow proportionaicly.

Supply Chain

The consiart focus of our Supply Chaln team 1s on delivering value through strategic purchases, supplisr parnerships and cost
oplimizaiion initaives Through an clfeciive combinaiion of these initatives they have been able 10 dave consisieni profiabilizy lor the
Company.

with efforts spanning over last several years, we have been able 1o bulld suswainable paninerships for an Crganc Ecosysien. Our
omanic iice portialio is now marke:ed as amastic filtcen” aher the introduction of five naw organic rice variars.

Anoinar significant milesione for your company washie conversion of our iconic product Madras Lentits nto Organic. Your cormpany
is commined to cominue on he organic joumey and several more farmers sre pannenng wilh us @ improve heal:h and wellness for
OUT CONSUIMETS

We puichase over 450 oiffereni kings of raw materials and a smilar number ol packing materals. Our sirengih comes [rom our ability 10
understand market dynamics of each of ihese and mako imely siraicgic buying decisions

Our purchasing siraiegy rangas from spot purchases, lorward oonirasis, seasonal buying and in the ¢ase of a [ew commedities. pre-
processing ihese Ingrediants In1o infermicdiaie forms ihisl can be easily siored and uilized over ihe course of tha yoar This all creaics
abiliy 1o manulaciure a baier and consisten: product leading 1o consumes galight

Human Resources
Buring the year under review, the indusiial relations of the Company conilnued io be cordial and peacelul. Wage agreemen: with itie
Union is effeciive up 10 March 31, 2020 Tortal parsonnel employed Dy 1he Company are 242 a3 on Maieh 31, 2019.

Your company coniinues 0 have very cordial and produciive relazions with its worldorce Several programs, including *Quarnerty
Townhiafl Maeing” and "Monthly Power Up Frdays" allow the managemeni 1o communicaic wiih the workforce on a regular basis
creanng a lransparent work environment Tasty Bite recnils, reians and rewards the bast of talent through its empleyec-orented
palicies and practices The Company believes that ‘'employees’ are the prime reasen behind s success and theircontribution needsio
be reccgnized and rewarded This enzblesin creaing a lun-filed, high-energy, knowledge- driven, vibran; cullure

Programs filke 'Campius 10 Comoraly’ are amed at direciing new entanis from colleges 1o tindersiand ihe campany cutiurg and vision
Several otheriniiatives like 'Workers leadership’ anc "Management Loadership wese also conducted 1o reinforce the beliel ihat ordinary
people can deliver exiraordinary pericrmance”

The company also underiook several activiiies like “Tasry Bile Premier Crickat Leaguc”. ‘OxFam 100 km Tradwalker’ and "AlfHands Day'
10 Improve amployee engagement and creaie (un a1 the work place.

women are encouraged 10 ;ake greaier responsibility in (he company, hence more and more women employec are sean working and
growing in the Company. Women managers now hold saveral key exscuiive posilions i1t Ihe Company. OQur femalemals gender ralio
15 50:50 Including conwaciual ana permanen sialf in faciony. Likewiss, women are also encouraged 10 paricipaie In the Workers Union,
anzia lraditon ¢! having aboul 33% women 1 the Union Commiliee has been sa1 This is agains! the backdrop of a ‘all male’ workers
Lnion commities thai exisied, when the union was inially lomed

Each year, yoL.- Comparny panicipaies in Ihe Greal Flace io Work sunvey 3 survey woinily conducied by the Ecenomic Times of India and
Grea\ Places o Work insiituie, India We are very pleased 1o repon that your Compariy 1S In 1he Top 50 (ranked 35) list of Indla’s Great
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:
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Mid-Size Workplaces In 2018 and Is also ranked in the Top 25 Best Companies to work for In the Manufacturing Sector
2019

Finance, Accounts and Internal Financial Controls
Finance and sccounting lunciidns work with [he business ieams 1o continually increase the inirinsic value of the business and instikuting
srong and effective Nnangial and Management Conircl sysiems in day 10 day operalions.

The Company has a compreh
addilional sysiem (0ols © man:

nsive ERP sysiem 10 manage s cperations and record iis financial transaciions. It has implemenied
> slores, spares and consumables procurgment that also integrates with the ERP sysiem.

Your Company allaches significani impornance on having tesied intemal comirol sysiems, nsk assessmen: and management of
operaing risks. These rigks are acively managed by the leadership team through various commitiees and sireng intemal processes.
Thisimemal contiol siruciure alse has considerable oversighl and is moniiared by an exiemal 21 of audiiors, boih siaiutony and Iniemal
The Company's Intermal conirols are commensurale with the nature of the business and size and complexiy of ils cperations

Some significant aspecis covered in the inernal comrol lramewiork includer

Siandard Operaing Precoduwes ana Risk Conirol Malri for all business processes 1o ensure effeciive inieimal financial conmirals;

Qversigh! by the Audil Commilliee that finalizes the scope of the intlemal audi which 15 camed ou! by an expenenced and qualified
firm of Chanered Accounianis

Irneqration of ERP sysiam acmss Malenals, Manulaciunng and sales processes)
Revicw and approval of annugl operaive and caphal expendiiue budge: and moniily monnedng of aciual spends;
Regular rewew of key business risks such a8 new product developmen, foreign exchange management commadiny nsk
managemen, inancial reponing
Legal framework 1o manage ail compliances applicable (0 1he Company Your company fias Implemenied a compliance icol in
laciony and head office
For overall supeivision of Conirols, your company hgs Streng govermance Commiiees 10 1348 key business decisions
The saiwony audiore have also ssued a clean repor: o inemal conimls ol the Company. The Audit Commiliee and Independen;
chireciors have also provided satisfaction over iniernal controls of the Company

Qualit
The C:crmpa s stared mission [or qualily 18 (o *rise beyond cerlifications” Consequanily, (he company's own Qualiy Managemani
aysiom ealig for higher standards than wiial is specified in vanious 3rd party cenlilicaions
In keoping wilh Induslry requiremenis. the Company conltinues 10 be cenified for the lollowing cerificaiions

ISC-14001:2004 [Envionmenial Managamen! Sysiems)

OHSAS 180012007 [Qccupatconal Heal:h and Safewy)

ISO 22000 {Focd Safcly Managemenl Sysiem)

BRC vB [Global Signdard foi Focd Salely)

SCF code- 7.2 [Sale Qually Food)

Organic

Kosher

Halal
The Cormpany also adheres 10 the Mighest levels of compliance with CT-PAT (Customs Trade Parinarship agains! Terronsm) § andaids,
which gives the company an advaniage for smaoth expors 1o US, cur mos! impariant markel,

Sustainability
The Company [ccuses on baing a suslanable fced manulaciurer throlinh conzaming water (through nsiallation of In-ground -
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water hanvesting’ sysiem) and regiucing is cardon fooxprnt through use of renewwable energy) Around 14% of 1he company's energy
requirement comes from Wind and Biogas Alliis steam generation s done using compiacied agricutiural wasle {triqueties) Monionng
and consenvalion of power and water 18 inbuill into Company processas. Tha Comppany commissioned iz bio-gas facllily Thal now
converts all is organic wasie Ino eleciricity. This is used 1o power ihe effluent reaiment plant and he waier lreaimeni plant Tha
Company intends 1o complets insialling rooflop solar pansia with a101al capaciy of 640 KWP by end of 2019, This wwould provide 10%
ol thg cument power that the Company consumes, thus funhicing ihe percentage of power :hal corme from enewable sources,

YoL: company 8lso uses simple techniques such as ciop maion, use of nalural [enilizers and pes: conioi merhods and green
ocompasting In ks organic farm Moreover. several intliaives have been underakert Dy ihe Company 1owards improvemani of an. soil
and waler qualiy InTis ecn-sysiem,

Your Company continues [0 be remain sifcongly cormmitied 1owards building a sustainable supply and manufaciurmg chain Several

have been adopicd Some o these include Goed Healih, Qualiy Education, Gender Eguality, innavaion 8 Infrasiruciure Reduce
Inequalites. Sustainable Criics and Comnuniies, Clean Waier and Saniaiion, Renewable Ener@y. Economic Growth and Responsibiz
Consumption

Corporate Scocial Responsibility

As per Section 135 of the Companies AC, 2013 8 cormpany, meeting the applicabillly theshold needs io spend al {east 2% of ihe
averzge profiis for the immedialely three proceding financial vears on Corporate Social Responsibility ICSR! acivities. For fiscal year
FY'1G. 1he Company wasrequired 10 spend INR G7.21 lakhs on CSR

The CSR commiiice has isken the foliowing areas 10 focus on, namely, (1) farmer's welfare [2) public healily (3) waser and sol
consanvation and {4) rural education

The Company continued (0 focus Iis CSR acivy tawards smprovemen: of ihe school infrasiruciure ai the lecal Bhandgacn village
school. i provided infrastruciure for ihe school The Company spent INR 4,06 akhs on the above activiiies during the fiscal year

Cautionary Statement

Sutements it Managemen: Discussion and Analysis descriting the Company’s Objeciives. pIOJECtioNs, £5TIMaes. EXPesiaions may
be "forwardiooking siaiemenis” within the meaning of applicable securines law and regulaiions. Actual sesults may differ materdally from
those expressed or implied, imporiani factors ihat could make a difference 10 resulis incluas coonomic condiions sifecting demand
/supply, piice conditions in domesic and overseas markers inwhich thie Company Dperaes. competiive pressures in shese marke's
changes ingovernment regulaiions, iax laws and oihef sianules and mciden:aliacrors.

Appreciation

Your Direciors wish 10 exprass [feir sincere apprecialion (of the co~cperalion eoaved lom ihe banks governmen: aultionlies
cusiomears, vendors and suppliers during ihe year under feview Your Direciors also would like 10 acknowledpe the coniribuiiion
of 115 parent, Frafermred Brands Intermational Inc. in the e of the markeung company in growing and developing the business in all
nigrmalional marke!s.

Your Direciors aiso wish 10 place on fecord !heir deep sense of appreciaiion for the significani coninbulicn made by each G every
employee of [Fie Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ashok Vasudevan

Chairman

Flace. Pune DIN Q0H75574
Date. July 12, 2019

SR ANnUal Fepan 201819 m



ANNEXUREA

Independent Auditor’s Cenrtificate on Compliance with the Corporate Govemance requirements under SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosurs Requirements) Regulations 2015, as amended.

To the Msmibers ol Tasty Bite Eatables Limited

Independent Auditor’'s Certificate on Corporate Governance

1. Thiscenlficate s ssued n acoordarca with the: lemms of our engagement lener dated May 1. 2013,

2. Thig report contains cetats of compliancs of conditions of Comporate Govemance by Tasty Bie Eaiables Limied {The Company), {or
the year onded 31 March, 2019, 85 sipdatadin feguizions 17,18 19,20, 22, 23, 24A, 25, 26, 27, clauses (b} 10 (i) of tegulation 46(2) and
paragraphs C. B and £ of Schedule V o e Secunties and Exchange Board of india (Lisiing Obligaiions and Disclosure Requirements)
Regudations 2015 asamended (he Lising Regulaiions’ pursuant io the Lising Agreemeni of tha Company with Siock exchanges

Management's responsibility

3 Thecompliarice vih e lems and condiions contained in the Corporaie Govemance is 1he responsibility of the management of the
Comparny Including ihe preparation and manignance of all [eevant supporing records and documenis. This responsibiliy ncludes ihe
design, implemenialion and mairianance of inismal conirols ang procedures o ensure complisnce with ihe condiions of Comoraie
Covermance slipulaled 11 ihe Lising Reguiations.

Auditor’'s responsibility

4, Our responsibiity 18 limited 0 ssamining ihe pincedures and mplemernialion Feredl, adoped by 1he Company for ensuring (he
compliance of Ihe condiions of Comora:e Governance. 1L s neliher an audil nor an expression of opyion o ine fingncat slaiements of
the Comparny

5 Fusuant o themequiemenis of ths Listing Regulations. iLis our iesponsibility 10 provide a reasonable sssurarce wheiher (ke Company
has complied with ihe conditions of Corporaie Govemance as stipulaied in the Lising Regulaiions lorthe year ended 31 March 2019,

6. Weconduciedouresamnaiion In acoordance wilh (hig Guidance Note on Reporis of Cenlficzies lor Special Purposes. Guidance Nowe
on Cerilication of Corporate Governance, boih issued by the Instituie of Chanered Accounianis of india (1CAY and the Srandards on
Audiing specified under Seciion 14230 of the Compzanics AL 2013, In 50 lar as appiicable for the purpose of ihis cenificaie The
Guidance Note on Repons of Cenificaies for Special Purposcs requires thal we comply with the ethical requiremenis of the Code of
EthicsIssuad by the ICAI

7. W have compliog with ihe relevant apflicable requiremenis of 1he Siandard on Quality Control {SOC) 1, Quality Cantrct fer Firms that
Perform Audits snd Reviews of Hisiodcal Financial Information, and Oiher Assurarnce and Related Senvice Engagements

Opinion

8  Inouropinionand ioihe best of nunriomaiion and accoiding 10 ihe explanaicnsgivensous, we cenify tha! theCompany has complied
with Ihe condiions of Corporate Govemancs as stipdlated in the above-menioned Lis:ing Regulations.

9  Wasiae iha such complance 8 ralher an assurance as 1o 1he fuiure viability of the Company nor as 1o ihe officiency or effeciivencss
wilh which iha managemen: has conducied the affairs of 1hie Company

Restrictions on Use

10, The cenlificate is addicssed and provided 10 ihe membears of the Company sciely iof the purpose 10 emable the Company 1o comply
with the reguirement of Ihe Listing Regulationg and i shoutd not be used by any oibar person or fof any oiher pumoss. Accordingly, we
donc gccepi or assume any liabiliy orany duty of carefor any ol purpose or 10 any Giher serson 1o whom [his ceniicate 1s shown or

hands it may come wihou: our prior consen: Inwiming

inlowhose

ForB3S R b Associates LLP
Chariered Accovniants
Firm regisiraiion number 118231W/W - 100024

Raajnish Desai

Pariner
Place Pune Membership number: 1017 160
Daia 16 May 2016 ICAIUDING 19701 190AAAAAA2383
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ANNEXURE B

To,

The Members,

Tasty Bite Eatables Limited,
CIN £15419PN1985PLC037347
201-202, Mayfan Tower,
Wakdaewad Shivainagar,

Fune - 411005

Our Secraatial Audil Report for ihe financial year 2018-19:s 10 ba read along wiih (his leiier.

Management’s Responsibility

1 Ills1he responsibiily of the managemani of the Company 10 mainiain secreianal 1eCnIds. Cevise Proper sysiems 1o ensure
compliance with 1he peovisions of all applicable (aws and scgulaicns and 1o ensuic thal ihe systems are adequaie and opcraic
effoctively,

Auditor’s Responsibility
2 Ourresponsibility I 10 express an opinion on these seciaiatial records, standards and procedure lollowead by the Caompany with
fespaCl io secretanal complianoes.

3 Webdlicve thal audn evidence and information obiained lcom ihe Company’s managemen s adequaie and appropfiric [orus io
provide a bas {or our opinion

4 Whercver required. we have obiained the management's represeniation ahoul the compliance of laws, rules and reguiziions and
happening of evenig eie.

Disclaimer
5 The Secresanal Audit Report 18 neither an assurance a3 (o 1he fuiue viabilily of 1he Cornpany nor of the efficacy or effeciveness
with which the management has condugied the allairs of the Company.

6  Wehave notverified e correc:ness and approprialeness of financial records ang books of sccounts of the Company

For PAREEK V. R. &§ ASSOCIATES
Practicing Company Secretaries
Firm Unique Code: $2017MHA98500

Vineet Ramoo Pareek

Proprielor

M.NO. - A48730

Piace. Puns C.P.NO.- 18556
Daie 23 May 2079
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

To.

FORMNO.MR -3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FGR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315t March, 20719
[Pursuani io Seclion 20411} of ihe Companizs Ac:, 2013 and Rule No 9 of the Companics
{Appoinimant and Remuneration Personnel Rules, 2014)

The Members,

Tasty Bite Eatables Limited,
CINL153419PN1985PLC037347
201-202 Maylair Tower,

Wakdcwad, Shivajinagar.
Pune - 411205

) have conduciad the Secrezanal Audi ol ihe Compliance of applicable siawiory provsions and the adherence (0 go0ad compora.e
practiozs by Tasty Bhte Eatables Limited (herelnafter called “the Company”) Secreransl Audit was conducicd in a manner
tha! provided] ma a reasonable basis for eveluating Ihe comoraie conducls/sizlulon compliances and cxpressing my opinn ikereon

Based on my veitiicalcn of the Company's books. papers, minuie beoks. and etuns filed and other records maintained by the
company and also 1he informailon provided by ihe company, 11s olficers. agents and auihonsed representaivas dunng the conduc
of secreianal audil, | hereby report 1hat in my opinion, the company has during ihe audil period covenng the Financia Year ended on
31st March 2018, complied wat: [he sialurory provisions lisied hereundaer and compliance-mechanizm in place to the extent, nthe
manner and subjeci :oihe reponing made hescinalter

thave examined ihe baoks, papers. minuic book. and reums fited and other records mainiained by ine Company forihe Financal Year
e£nded on 31s: March 2019, accorging 10 the provisions of

0]

The Companies Act 2013 (ihe AY) and 1ine rules made thereunder,

Thie Securiies Coniract [Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA) and the rules made thercunder,

The Deposranes Act, 1988 and [he Regulations and Bye-laws ramed thaeunder,

Foregn Exchange Maragement Acl 1309 and the rules and requiations made theraunder 1o ihe oxient of Extemnal Commercsl

Borowings:

The lollowing Regulaiions and Guicelines prescrbeo undes the Secuniies And Exchiange board of India Aci 1892 (SEBI Aci) -

2 TheSecuriies and Exchange Board of Indla (Subsianiual Acquisiion of Shares and Takeovers) Regulalions, 2011;

b}  The Securifies and Exchange Board of India (Prohibilion of Insider Trading) Regulanions, 2015

C)  TheSecunies issue of Gandal and Disclosume Requirements) Hegulaiions, 2009 (Not Applicable as the Company has
not issued any furiher shares capltal during the perlod under review);

dl The Securilies and Exchange Board of India {(Employee Slock Opticr: Scheme and Employee Siock Purchase Scheme)
Guidclines, 1999 (Not Applicable as the Company has not Issued employee stock option scheme and
employee stock purchase schieme during the perlod onder reviewl];

2 Tha Secunties and Exchange Board of india (Issue and Uisting of Debit Securnies) Requlalions, 2008 (Not Applicable as
the Company has not Issued and listed any debt securfiles during the perlod under review);

m asly Bile Lalapies | imned
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT ccontd.)

fi  The Securiies and Exchange Board Of India iRegislrers 10 an Issue and Share Transter Agent) Regulaiions. 1823 regatding
ihc Companies Aci ano dealing with clieni (Not Applicable as the Company Is notregistered as Registrar 1o Issue
and Share Transfer Agent during the pertod under review);

@ The Secunnes And Exchange Board of ndia {Delisting of Equiy Shares) Rogulanions, 2000 (Not Applicable as there was
not reportable event during the perlod under reviewl;
b)Y The Secunies and Exchangs Boarg of India (Buyback of Secuiriies) Requlanons, 1998,
vl The Management has identified and confitmed the ollowing laws as specifically applicable i the Company
I FoodSafey and Siandards Act 2006 and Rules 2011 with alied rules and reguianions
i Siandards of Weighis end Measures AGi, 1856 wilh allied rules and regulations.
i The Legal Meirotogy A, 2008
v The Legsl Meiralogy [Packaged Commodies) Rules, 2011;
Lhave also examinert compliance wiih the applicable clauses of 1he lollovang
(i Secreiadal Standards with 1egands 1o Meeing of Board of Direciors iS8-1) and General Mertings {SS-2) issued by the
Instiiuie of Company Secrelangs of India,
i  SEBliLising Obligaons 2nd Disclosurc Requiremenis) Reguiations, 2015 and ihe Lisiing Agiecments eniercd inio by 1he
Company with BSE Limited and Nationat Stock Exchange of India Lirnted:
During (he pericd under revievy the Company has complied wilh the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations Guidelines, Siandards
o lw
| further report that;
> The Board of Direclors of [he: Company 18 duly consliiuied with proper balance of Execulive Direciors, Non-Execuilve Dirgciors,
Independent Direc:ois and & Wormen Direcior The changes in ithe composiiion of Board of Direclors 1hat ook place dunng ine
reiiod under ‘oview Were ¢aTied oLt in compliance with the provisions ol ihe Acl.
> Adeguai naiice ts given 10 all Draciors 1o schedule the Board Meeings. agenda and deiailed noics on agenda were $eni seven
days in advance, and a sysiem exisis for secking and obiaining lurnier information and clanficakons on e agenda ilems before
the meeting and lormeaningiul periicipation at the meating.
> Alllhe decisions of ha Board and Commillees thereof were camied oul with requisiie majony.,
| further report that based on review of compliance mechanism esiablishaed by the Company. 1am of e opinion that there arg
adequale sysiems and processes in place In the Company commensursic wiih the size and operalions ol the Company 16 monitor
and ensure compliance with zpplicable laws, fules regulanons and guidelines.
H As Infgirred, e Campany lias responded appoprialy [0 NOICeSs reveived ((om varipus s:sluoty / regutarory aurhoriiies
including initialing aciions fof correciive measures, wherever found necessary
(further reporn that durdng the audii period there were no following spacific events/aciions having a major bearing on Company’s allairs
in pursuance of the above-refenred laws, rules. regulations, guidelines siandadds. elc.

for PAREEK V. R. 6 ASSOCIATES
Practicing Company Secrelaries
Firm Unique Code: $2017MH498500

Vineet Ramoo Pareek

Propristor
M.NO. - A49730

Place Pune C.P.NO. - 18556
Dale 23 May 2019
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EARNINGS & OUTGO

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

ANNEXUREC
ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE

I}  Stepstakenorimpact on Energy Conservation

a)  Company continues 1o use VFD {Varable Frequency dave! 1o drive power savings in cold siore.

bl  Company continues 10 use briqueties as a measure for encrgy consenalon.

o Bogas plan;insialled in faciory \o gencrate enerqy

d)  Solarpanels have beer insialled on tha rool top of the Company

ii) Steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy: The Company 15 availing wind power
energy and enegy generated by biogas plant, solar panels a non-conventional source of enerQy lor utilisaiion In

operaians of ine Company.
iii)
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

| EHoris madc (owafds :echr_uology absarpiion 1

Capital investment on energy conservation equipment: INR 124 lakhs

Company has an accrediied RED cenier (TBRC) 1hal s coninuously
engaged Iin reseacch on new and innovaiive producis. both for exporn and
domesiic markel TBRC's research and expearise ensures hat Company can
provide "Great issie. Gnod velue and Real Convenience” 10 11s customers
worldwidz. Innovaiion coupled with expertise, and guality enables 10 seive
nalural converven, and specialy loods 1o 18 cusiomers.

Il Bonefiis denved like product Improvement,
cosi reducion, product development of
IMPOR Subsiilion,

Successiul developmen: ol inngvative products in domesiic and axpon
marke: accomplished through experlise and research in specilic areas.
Technology adopiion helped impon substiunon ihereby reducing cosi and
product development,

i nocase of mporied echnology (impored
dunng the last ifkee years reckoned lrom: the
beginning of ihe financial year!

[a) ihe details of lechnology mponed:

(b) ihe yearof Impor;

(¢l whelher the ‘technology been fully
absorbed

I nol fully absorbed. areas where

absomuon hias not aken place, and the

reasons theraol

ol

NG imported rechnology

IV Expenduture incurcd on Research ang
Developmern;

Capital lin INR'000} 01975
Recurnng {in INR 000 16,403
Total {in INR’000) 18378
Total R&D expendiiure as % of il umaver | 052%

FOREIGN EXCHANGE ACTUAL INFLOW AND OUTFLOWS

(INRin lakhs)

Particulars

Previous Year

Intows

9920384 1803365

Quifllows

600227 376490

Flace Fune
Daic July 12.2019

m asly Bile Lalapies Limnead

Ashok Vasudevan
Chairman
DIN 00575574
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ANNEXURED

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

{Pursuant (o seclion 135 of the Companies Act, 2013]

1.  Abilel outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of piojecls or proarams proposed 1o be undertaken
and a reference to the web-link 10 \h R palicy ang nroiecis or Tams:
Company has duly adopted CSR Policy which 15 available on websile of 1he Company a1 www:asiyhiecoin CSR Policy
CONOENIIA1eSs ON 4 Major 31eas- susiainable agriculiure, disaster rlief, education andhealth Dudng ihe linancial year 2018-18. the
Company caniinuad 10 work on project in 1he field of educaton Company would focus on major araas highlighted in 155 policy or
any other aea as mentioned under the Companics Aci. 2013,
2. The Compostilon of the CSR Commilttee:
The compasiion ¢f lhe Commitiee and the allendance by the Commiree Mombers are as lollows
Name of the director Position Independent/ Executlve No. of meetings
Held Attended
Ravi Nigam Membcer Execulive 2 2
{till Novamber 02 2018}
Mr Kavas Patel Chalrman Independen! 4 !
Mr Abhiiil Upadhye Membaor Execuive 2 2
fwaf November 03,2018 | - | - | _ L = .
Mr. Aghiok Vasudevan Member Non-Execulive 4 4
3. Prescribad CSR expenditure (iwo % of the amount as inilam 3 abave):
Toralamouni i0 e gpen! was INRS7 21 lakhs.
4. Delalls of CSR spent during the financial vear;
(@) Tomal amoun: io be speni (or ihe hnancial year, INR67.21 lakhs
{b) Amouni unspert, il any: INK63.15 lakhs
{cd  Manner inwhich the amount speni during he financial year is detalled below:
Sr. |CSRProject |Sector | Projects or Amount |Amountspent |Cumulative |Director
No |oractvity inwhich |programs outlay on the expendlture | through
Identtfied activityls | 1} Local areaor program | programs upto the irnplementing
covered |2} Specify wise Sub-heads: reporting agency
the State and district (1) Direct pertod
where projects or on projects
programs was or programs-
undertaken (2) Overheads
1 | Infrasiruciure / | Education |; Bhandgaon, .06 Overheads 406 Direcr
ad for schoo! | Maharashica
- Orhers
5. Incase the Company falls \o spend (the 2% of (he sverage net profit (INR) of the last three financial years, the reasons
for_nol spending the amounl shall be s\ated In the Board Report, The Company speni INR .06 [akhs INR 63 15 lakhs
rernained nspeni Company has promoted Tasty Blie Foundation was ncomora:c il in Drzamber 2018 as a wing for spending
CSRamount The Foundalion was not fully ciganised U :he end of this financral year though incorporaied.
8. Responsibility statement of the CSR Commitiee that the implementalion and monitaring of CSR Policy is In

mpliance with CSR objecti angd Poli { iha Compan ly sian Dir r and Chair n ol the CSR

Committee: The CSR Commitige confirms that 1he implementation and moniormg of CSR Poliey 18 in complisnce with CSR
obieclives and Paley of the Company.
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ANNEXURE E

Related Pany Transactions as per the Indlan Accountlng Standard (Ind AS) 24
{Pursuan; 10 dause (2A) of Schedule V and Reguistion 34(3) and 531) of the Secunies and Exchange Board of India
{Listing Obligations And Disclosuss Requirements) Requlations, 2015

Disclosure of partlculars of contracts/arrangements entered Into by the Company with related parties referred to [n
sub-sectlon (1) of sectlon 188 of the Companles Act, 2013 Including certafn arm’s length transactlons under third
proviso thereto and Regulation 34(3) and 53(f) of the Securlties and Exchange Board of Indla (LIsting Obllgations

And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20186

A. PARENT, ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY AND FELLOW SUBSIDIARY

Sr. |Name Relationshlp
No.
1 | Mars Incomporaled, USA Uliima:e Holding Company
2 |Kagome Colid tupto 1 November 2017) Ullimar.e Holding Comgpany
3 | Biflem Holdings Limied (With effeci from 2 November 2017] Halding Company
4 | Prefaried Brands International, Inc. USA (PBlINC. is Holding company Holding Company
ol Preferred Brands Foods (India) Privaie Limited)
5 | Preferred Brandls Foods (Indlal Privaie Limiled Holding Comparty
6 | Preferred Brands Ausiralia Ply. Lid. Fellow Subsidiary
7 | Mars Food Australia Puy Lid Fellow Subsidiary
8 | Preferred Brandls UK Lid. Fellow Subsidiary
9 | Mars Food UK Lid, Fellow Subsichiary
10 | Royal Canin India Privaie Limied Fellow Subsidiary
11 | Mars International India Pvt Lid Fellow Subsidiary
12 | Kagome Ausirliz Pry. Lid (Tilk 1 November 2017) Fellow Subsidiary
12 | Kagome Foods India Private Limked (T1l 1 November 2017) Fellow Subsidiany
14 | Kagomeinc (Till } November 2017) Felow Subsidiaty
B. TRANSACTIONS WITH KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
Sr. Name Relationship
No.
1 Mr Ravi Nigam Managing Direcior (il Novembar 2, 2018)
2 |Mr Sohel Shikari Chief Financial Officer (il November 2, 2018)
3 Ms. Minal Talwar Company Secrelary
4. |Mr Abhijil Upadfiye Managing Direcior (we ( November 3 2018)

o

Mr. Gaurav Gupla

Chial Financial Officer (we [ Novembar 3 20183
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ANNEXURE E (Contd.)

{INR 0 Lakhs)

Key management Ravi Nigam (tlll | Sohel Shikari | Minal Talwar Mr. Abhi]it Mr. Gaurav
personnel compensations | November2, | (thl November Upadhye Gupta
2018) 2.2018) (w.edf. (w.e.d.
November 3, November 3,
2018) 2018)
March | March | March| March | March | March | March | March | March | March
31, 31, 31, 31. 31, 31, 31, 31, 31, 31,
2019, 2018| 2019| 2018| 2019 2018' 2019| 2018| 2019| 2018
Short ierm employee benefus 9186| 13350 ©241| 13503 1078 967 12068 2540
Postemployment defined 691 958 534 658 065 058 406 100
CONTDUIION plan
Long term benefiis
Fosi-employment defined 1076 8758 5924 152 iL18 200 1.52
oeneli plan- Graiuity
Compensaied absences- -l 2785 2078 .59 Q77 Q65 218 :
Leave nncashmen!
Shara-based paymen:s - £ 537 - >
{paid by FBI In¢.}
Total 109.62| 2568.62| 97.76|230.64| 14.64| 17.58|137.29 -1 3111 -

Related party transactions other than those with key management personnel

Transaction/Balance | Enterprise 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Sales | Prefemed Brands Intematiosial Inc. USA 2027014 1764322
| Prefered Brands Ausiralia Py, Lid 16755 26415
 Prefemed Brands Uniied Kinpdorm Lid 8124 7901
| Mars Food Australia Piy Lidi 14911
| Mars Food UK Lid 8697
Purchases Kagome Foods Ingia Fivate Limited = 22585
Kagome Foods Austialia Py Lid 5 2804
_' Kagoma Inc 30978
Dividend pald on | Prefamed Brands Foods (Indial Private Limiied 3809 2809
equlty shares |
Dividend pakd on Prelerred Brands Foods (Indial Private Limiied C.60 080
preference shares
Buyback of Freleried Brands Foods (Indial Fravate Limited 122037 -
Preference Shares
Working Capital loan | Royal Caninindia Pvt Lid 1.20000 -
taken
Interestonloan Royal Carin India Pvi Lig. 4140 -
taken
Balance outstanding
A_Trade receivables | Prefemed Brands Iniemational Inc USA 143673 189314
| Preferred Brands Ausiralia Py Lid - 2970
| Prcferod Brands UK LG - 28.49
Mars Food Ausivalia Piy Lid 8858
| Miars Food UK L, 2830
B. Other recetvables | Prelered Brands Iniernational Inc USA 201 -
SEUANnuUAl Repon 201819 m



ANNEXURE E (Contd.)

Transactlon / Balance | Enterprise ‘31 March 2019 31 March 2018
C.Otherpayables | Preferred Brands Intemational Inc. USA E 798
Mars International India PuL Lid, 328 )
Prefered Brands Australia Pry, Lid 317
D.Loans payables | Royal Canin India Pt Lid 60000
Expense charged Yo related parties In the nature of:
A Courler and Preferreci Brands Internaiional inc USA 11.81 8,74
postage Prefered Brands Ausiralia Piy. LAd. 852 088
B. Travellingand | Prefened Brands Inernaiional Inc USA 028 451
conveyance
C. Relmbursements | Elfern Holoings Comparry - 008
Preferred Brands Inismalional inc. USA 4180
Prefizmedt Brands Foods {Indis) Private Linied 387 0.55
Kagome Company Limited 147
Expense charged by related partles in the nature of:
A Travelling and Prefanad Brands Iniemational e, USA 994
conveyance Kagomia Inc. 247
B. Relmbursements | Praferred Brands Australia Pry Ld. 26b 347
Frefemed Brands Inigrations| inc. USA 1408 )
Mars Intiemational India Pvi Lid 1029
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ANNEXUREF

Statement under Sectlon 197 (12) of the Companles Act, 2013, read with the Companles (Appolntment and
Remuneratlon of Managerlal Parsonnel) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended

March 31, 2018.
Name Remunerationin|  Nature of Qualification Experience Dataof [ Last %of | Whether
lakhs p.a. amployment ocommencement of | employment | equity | relative
employmen shares | ofany
held | director
N Abhijl 30000 |Fermanent  |Engineerom 23 12072018 48 |Jeeves N No
Upacitye VT, Murricsl and Consumer
: MBA from NMIVS Sences
g%'?g;j by 12 Mumbai and A1 info
| | _ . | |Selions ~
Mr Gaurav 8500 |Permarienl Chiariered 15 09072016 (37 |<esoram NI No
Gupla Apoouniant, CPA indusines L
CFZ CISAB.Cam
| thonst CCSA CISM
Mr Vingy 6000 |Fommangl BSC Chermisty. 30 27112017 S (HadCele Nil NO
Ha31ek BSC Tech- Food Resiguranis
Technology &1.L3 Pt Lid
W Reesichs A 6200 |Farmareni BSCTedi+Fond |31 151711891 55 |[xwally Candigs| N No
Jadhsy Technclogy and and Sweels
Peal greduationin Limited
Foods, Drugsand
Cosmiiics
M Anki 4000 |Pemvanenl B Tech Poet 16 31082000 {3 |Mubi Nil NO
Singhal Greduate commodity
Dipkormain Rurel Sxchenge ol
management Irom ndaLid
IristiLile of Rural
| _ Mgragenmen | | i _
M Ujgwal AGCQ | Fermmarent B Com (hors! 12 0205201 (34 al NI No
Jain and Post GredLate Carsumer
Progremimein Finarce indiz
Managenient ud
Mr Sheshish 3800 |Permanent BachelorinHole! |22 1607-2007 AR |TgSaisindia [N NO
Hodlur Marsgement Caermgict
£Calenng
Technalogy
N Tescanoe 3700 |Fermanrenl BZ Bharatihiar 25 01052012 5 [innovative NIl No
Doz Loy, Foodsid
| Coimbatgees:
Mr Ashutcgh 3500 |Permanent BSC Food Tech 15 14092010 (3% |TC Lmiled Nil NG
Parmar
Mr Shalendia 3200 |“ermanenl BSC AgnandMST |24 D9-06-2017 5D |CaprconFood | NI ND
Saxens | Food Tech Products Putliet
Mr Schel 18300 | Permarent ESinCml 2 08052014 {49 |ASGOmm A NO
Shikan (Til Now Engineenng and O india vt Lid
22018 Meslersinavie e
Envronmental werT
| Engineenng
M Favi Nigam 16800 |Permanent  |BSCChemsty, |36 1908 (59 |Ballarpur 001 |No
(tilNov 2 MBA from industies
2018) It e of Rural
managermer,
QPM Irom Harverd
| Businass School |
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY

Your Company is commitied 1© Des: business pactioss coupled with excellence in Corparate Govermance The principles of
Iransparency, accouniahility, inisgnry and Innovailon consiluie he foundation an which the adifice of ihe organization is built Your
Compazny fimly believes in the aght of allng stakeholders 1o information regarding Company’s business and inancial parformance

Your Company's governance siruciuse compnsesihe Boardof Dvec:ors i”Board”l andthe Commiiteesof the Boad (“Committeas™
ai the apex lavel and he managemen! struciure al the operational level. The Board seis down e ovarall objeclives and provides
freedom and quidance 10 the managemen: 1o achigve ihese obecives within 2 grven framework thereby bringing abowt anenabling
environment for value crealion hrough sustainable profiable growih,

The Company 15 in complance with the iequiremenis stipulaied under Reautzicn 17 10 27 read with Schedule v and clauses (b) 0
(1) of sub-reguilation {2) of Regulation 46 of Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Lisung Obliga:lons and Disclosute Requiremenis)
Requlations. 2015, ag applicable. with regards 10 comaoraie QOvernance.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Company’s Board plays a pivoial role in ensunng Company nuns on sound and ezhical busingss practices. The Boadd operaies in such
a manner which effecively enabtes them 10 discharge 11s fiducary duies of safeguarding ihe irieres) of Company and shareholders.
ensunng faimess in decision making prcoess Inegrity and ransparency while dealing with ils maembars and all s siakeholders.

a) Composition of Board:
The Board has an oplimum combination ol exective and non-gxecuiive direciors. The Company & managad by he Board
with a non-execiilive, nan-indepandeni Chaiman, an execulive difectorn, 2 non-exccuive direciors, three eminently qualified
Independen: Direciors and an Alernaie Director 10 the non-execuiive Chairman Thiere are 2 woman direciors on Board of ihe
Compariy ol of which ong in an ‘ndependen: Diector.

No. |Name Designation | Skills/expartise/competence
1. M1 Ashok Vasudevan | Chairman (Non Mr Vasudeovan has wide experience ol 36 plus years as an enireprencur
exXeculve) |and » comoraic exenuive for large multtnalionats. He spen: ~0 years wili)

| the Unilever group in india In vanoLs “unciions hat inciuded Management
Developmeni, Sales & Maikeling and Intemationat Business He cofounded
| Prefemed Biands Imemanonal Inc. USA. He has expertise n inicgrated
|markeling, cusiomar insighs, brand management, product markeling,

| business analysis, public refarions negotiaiion, ieam building eic.
2. | Mr Abhijt Upadhye | Managing Direcior M Upadhye has 22 plus years of experience spanning e-Commerce, Food
(Executive) { Seivice, Consulling and FMCG wiih a mix of Intamational as well as wikin
tcounty ‘eadership 1oles He has woiked with McDonald's Corporation,

Flipkar:, Infosys, etc o name afew.

He has expenise in sales and markeiing, business siraiagies, supply chain
| management, siralegic planning, business process improvemen:, vendor

| mariagement
3 ha Dawn Allen Direcior (Non Ms Allen has worked al the Mars, incorperated group of companies for 20
exaculive) | plus years and dunng this ime she has held a number of finance positions

{She is cumently CFO of Global Food Drnks and Mulusales a1 Mars,
Incorporziad, Her experise Igs in inance. mergars and acquisiiions. Cross
| bordar iransaclions. OVErseas OpGialions Glc
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No. |Name Designation Skilis/expertise/competence

4. M. Kavas Paicl Independent M. Patel s a Fellow Member of Institule of Charncred Accountant of England
Cirecior [Non & Wales and siaried his career with Franktin Wild and Co, Chartered
exeouive) Accounianis, London as Clerk He den joined Polaroid Corporation in

1974 and worked with Ihem in vanous internaiiona! assignmen:s in Furope.
Far Easi, USA and India. His tast assignmenss wiih Polaroid was Direcior of
Finance, Asia Pacific Region and Couniry Diregior India

His expernise fies in Audil, corporale inance, sirslegic financial planning,
budgeting mergers and acquisiions. busingss siralegies. Invesimen,
Weglih Management elc

5 Ms. Rama Kannan independeni Mz Kannanwarks as a coach/ menior/advisor for various seniorexcculives
Direc:or (Non Incorporale and social erigmrnises in Incia and abrozd. She also has a wice
eHecUive) experience In hald of markeiing and siraicgic roles with various compantes

such as British Patroleum, PepsiCo. Gic

She has expertise inleadership and executive coaching business planning
and social entreprenaurshin,

6 |Dx Chengappa Ingependen: Dr. Chengappa is one of the leading Agnculiural Economist of India He
Ganapa!l Director (Non has over three decadies of expenence m igaching. iescarch, exlension and
execLivel acagdemic agminisiraiion

He has experise n eaching research. academic adminisiraion
aconomics, agr-busness and irade,

7 Mr  Pydisetty Veera | Additional Direcior | Mr Rao holds Fos: Graduale Diploms in Busingss Managerment {rom {iM
Vankata Srinivasa Rao | (Non-Execuiive) (Calcuiia), He has also compleied Bachelors in Technology Chemical
Engineenng from IIT (Chennall.

He has expenence of 24 plus yeass spanning across auromobite indusiry,
telecom indusiy, FMGG with 3 mix of inlernational siinis and domasic

exposure
8 | Mr Gaurav Gupia Allernae Direcior Mr. Gupta is 8 Charered Accouriian! by prolession and alsois a CPA GFE,
(Non-Execulive] CISA and B.Com (Hons) degree holoer He has 15 plus years of expenence

spanning T industry, elecom indusry, lyres, and FMCG with mix of
international stintg and domestic exposurg

None among ihe Direciors on the Board 1s a member of more than 10 Commilliess or Ghaiman of more than h Comminiees
across all Companies in which hie/she 1sa Direcior Necessary disclosures regarding Comimiliee positions and oiher direciorships
have beaen given by all the Direciors For ihe purpose of delermination of imii of the Commillees, Chairperson and rmemoorstup of
the Audit Comiittee and Stakeholders’ Retadlonship Comeaitiee has bean considered as per Regularion 28i1) (b) ol the Securniies
and Exchangs Board of India (Lising Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015

During the year under review Mr, Ravi Nigam, resigned with effec! from November 2. 2018 as managing direclor of Ihe Company
and Mr. Abhijit Upadhyewveas appoinied as the Additional Direcior and designaied as Managing Direciorwith effesi rom Novermber
3 2018 Mr. Srinivasa Rao was appoinied as an Addrional Direcior with cffect from February 6. 2018

Mr. Gaurav Gup!s was appoinied as Aliernaie Direcior 10 Mr Ashok Vasudevan during the year due 10 hiss absence (rom Ingia

Mg, Rama Kannan Mr. Kavas Paiel and Dr Chengappa Ganapat continee (¢ a2 88 16 Independeri Direciors on the Board of
the Company In ierms of Regulation 25(8) of the Securiies and Exchiange Boadd of Inda (Lisiing Obligations and Disclosurs
Requrements) Requlations, 2015 and amendments therelo, they hiave confirmed (hial they are not aware of any Circumsiance of
sivanonwhich exisis of may be reasonably aniicipaied ihal could Impatr or Impac thetr abllity (o discharge iheir duties Based on
e declaralions receved from the Independent Directors, the Company confirms that ihe Independeni Direciors [ulfill condillons
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b)

specifiedt in Securiies and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirementis) Regutations, 2015 ("SEBI
Regulaions’) and ey ase ndependent of the senor managemen!

Board Meetings and information placed before the Board:

There werg six (08) Board mestings Nold duing the financial year 2018-18 These were held on May 18, 2018, July 8. 2018
Augus! B 20718, Oclober 11, 2018 Novembar 12, 2018 and Febiary 6, 2019 The maximuminienval beiween any wo mealings
was nat morethan 120 days.

All ihe Board meelings were schaduled well in advance and Ihe notioes of ihe Boaid Mectings were sent well In advance 10 all
Ihe Direciors The agends was accompanied by noies giving comprehensive inlormation on the relaied subjec and in cai .o
malters such as financialibusiness plans, financial iesulls, detailed preseniations were made. The agenda and ihe relevani noles
were also sent n advance separzicly 10 each direcior. The Board members are free 10 recommend inclusion of any mponani
matier lor discussion in consultaiion wiitt ihe Ghaiman of the meeting

To enable the Board to discharge 1i5 responsibiltles sifeciively, ai every Board Meszing the members of e Board are bnefed on
e ovesall pedemmance of [he Company with deislled presenialions

The Boards role, funciions, responsidilily, accountability and iis evaluation rameveork are clealy defined In addicionio the matiess
sltorntly requiring Board's approval incluging pravisions menioned in SEBI Regutaiions and nrovisions ol the Companies Acl,
2013, all major decisions involving pohcy formulation, sirategy and business plans. arnual cperating and capilal expenditure
budge:s. new Invesimenriy compliance with sialulory / regulalory requirements, major accouniing provisions and wig-of(s
are considered by the Board The Boa@ aiso revievws periodically the risk and miligaiion procedure 10 ensure [hal exsculive
managemeni conrols ngk throagh means ol properly defined framawork. The minutes of the Board meeung are circulaied n
advance 10 al Directors (or their commeris and confirmed at subsegueni mea(ing.

Avallabllity of fnformatlon to the Board:
Dusing the financial year 2018-19. information as mentoned n Par A of Schedute 1 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
{Listing Obligaiions and Disclosure Reguliemenis) Regulalions, 2015, has beon placad beforeihe Board for its consideration The
Board has unrestficied aceess io 1he foliowing information

Annual operaiing plans and bugge!s. including any updates.

Capnal budge!s ang any upriaes.

Quartedy results (or the Company and 1S operaiing diisions Of busingss segments

Delails of any jomi veniure or collaboraiion agresment: if any

wMinutes of mestings of Audit Commitiee and other Comimitizes of the Board

Information on recadiiment and remungiaion of Senior Managerial Parsonnel jus: below board leve! including ihe
appoiniment and removal of CFO and Compary Seciatary

Show cause, demand, prosecuiion ngiices and penally noilces which are maierially imporiant
~aial or serous sociden:s, dangerous ocourmenoes any maleral efffuant or pollunon problems
Maiesial defaull in financizt obligaiions © and by Ihe Company or subsianilal nonpaymen: for goods sold by the Company

Any issue which involves public or product fiabiliyy, clairms of subsianial nalure or any judgment or advarse view fegarding
anotherenierprse tha! can have negaive IMplicalions on ihe Company

Transaciions hiat invalve subsianiial paymen! towards goodwill brand equity ¢r inielleciual propery

Significani labour problemns and their propased soluiens

Significant development in human esources / ndusinal relatons front ke signing of wage agreament, implemeniatiarn of
VRS elc
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c)

d)

Non-compliancs of any regulatory, siagiliony nasure of lising requiremants and stiareholders service such s nonpaymeni of
dwdend delay in share ifansler, oic

Sale of maierial naiure of invesimenis, subsidianes, assels, which is nox in normal course of business

Maenal ingncial/ commercal ransaciions, with Sgnior Management personne!, inwhich they are personaily inieresied and
which poientially conflic:s wih ihe inieresi of the Company

Dzisils of foteign exchange exposucs and the steps 1aken by the managemaen 10 i the sk ol advesse exchange rate
MOVEIMCN;

Quarterty compliance repor and inveslor grinvance (2pors

Dividend daia

Al board meelings, hanagers and fepresenialives who can provide addional insight inio 1he ems/ agenda beng discussed are
wrwvited

Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management:

The Company has adopted ‘Code of Conduc for Board Members and Managedal Personnel’ {'Cede’) A copy of 1he Code
s posied on ihe webste of the Company wwawiasiybiiecoin All board members and managerial pessonng have alfirmed
compliance with the Code of Cenduct The confirmation from the Managing Direcior regarding the complisnce wilh ihe Code by
all the direciors and senior managemeni is annexced 0 thie Repor:

Directors attendance record & directorships in other companies as on March 31, 2018:

Sr. | Name of the Director | Calegory | Alendance | Aendance | No. of other No. of other Committes (§) | No. of Sharas/
No of Director| InBoard | allast AGM | Directarships# | posllion held ason 31.03.18 convenible
-ship Meetings heldon |ason31.03,19 (Other Companies) instruments
during |09.08.2018 held
2018-19
(1 (2) (3) 4) (5) (6) 7 (8}
1 [N Ashok Vasudevan NCD 5 Yes W} [l Nil
2 |Mr Athil vishvanslhs  |ED 2 Byaralalion” 3 NI Nyl
Lpadhye
(we l Novernber 3 2018)
9_ s Ciawn Allen INEDD f Yes 1 NIl . Nil
4 [Mr Kavas Fatel |0 f Yas 7 I Audiit Comrriftee - 2 (Chairan) Nil
5 |W& Rama Kannan 1D 5 Yes 1 NIl Nl
G |Dr Chengappa 1 Yes 4 N Nil
Ganapati
/7 IMr Pydisslty Veera NIZD 1 N A ) NIL, Nil
Venkala Siinivasa Rao
twel February § 2019)
8 [RaviNigam (il Fi 4 Yeg Il il
Noverbar 2 20118]
9 M Sohel Shikan (18 A0 1 Yes MIL Nil
2 2018)
10 |Mr Gaurav Gupta A | Yag NIL fdil

- M, AbWijil Upadhye atended AGMIN 2018 as Chuel Operating Officer

N.& D.-Non-Execuiive Direcior, ED. - Execuiive Direcior, LD. - Independent Dircclor, A D- Aliermate Direcior

# myoluding Prvate Iimited companies and excluding forzign companies

$ Auditand Siakeholders’ Gnevance Commiltess of Public Limited Companies and oiher :hanyour Company are consiceraed

-Aliended as Aliernaie Direclor io Mr Ashok Vasudevan
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)

f)

a

h)

Ociails of the direciors seeking reappoiniment In the annual general meenng have been provided wiih ihe notice in Annual
Repor.

video! lele~conferencing faciies are also used 10 faclitaie Direciors ravelling/ esiding abroad o ai olher loecatons 10
pariicipare in the maeings.

Details of listed entities in which person Is a director and his/her category are as given below:

Sr. Name of the Director Names of other listed entlties Inwhichthe | Category of
No Director has Dlrectorships Directorship

1. [Mr Ashok Vasudavan NIL -

2 [Mr Abhiit Vishwanaih Upadhye NIL -

3 |Ms Dawn Allen NIL -

4. |Mr Kavas Paial Dar-ichi Karkaria Limited Independent

5. |[Ms Rama Kannan NIL -

8 |Dr Chengappa Gananai Taia Colfer Lmsed inCependeni

7 |Mr. Pydiseity Vieera Venkata Snnlvasa Rao NIL
—8 "-Mr Gaurav Gupia T NI: T = _

Training of directors:

Alt direciors of the Gompany (Independen: and Non-Independenii are providad opponuniny to familianze themecives with
ihe Company, i:5 managemeni and Tis opernons. The direclors interac: wih execulive direciors, senior management
personncl key managenal personnel, as and when required, and are provided all The documenis sought by them fof
anabling a good understanding of the Company, 1ig varous operaions and the industry of which il s a part. Thie veeblink wiih
de‘als of famlarization of independent! direciorns 1s wyaw [asiyDile coln - iInvesior - corporsta governance secion Difeciorn

also visit The manulacturing ptan: of the Company for further undersianding of the busingss and processas.

In addilion ic the above, the lollowing measures have been underiaken In ihis bahall:

L

i,

The duties ard responsibilitics of Ingopendent Dirctiors have been incorporated in the Code of Conduct 3s feguiifed by the
Companics Act, 2013

The armendments /updates in 5810y provisions a@ inflomned rom [ime 10 e,

The informailon w.rt the nature of industry in which the Company opertates and business modal ol the Company eiC 18
madc known through various preseniations on operatlonal performance, stralegy, budgers & business lorecasts, €ic. 1o the
Board.

Direciors wisil the manufacunng plan: of !he Company and direclly deal wilh senior managemeni petsonnst / key
managemeni porsonnel and audiiors 10 resolve the quertes.

The Boarct on a quariedly basis eevicws the compliance reporis of all laws applicablc 1o ihe Company.

None of the direciors of the board hold any shares of the Company.
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

a3

b)

Audit Committee:

The Audil Commillee 1s duly consliluied as per ithe provisions of Section 177 of (he Companies Acl, 2013 There were four (04)
Audil Commiiiea meeings held during he financial year on May 18, 2018 Augus! 8 2018, Novernber 12 2018 and February 6,
2019 respecilvely. The Audit Commities congis! fourmembers, ree baing Indenenden: Dirsciors and one Managing Drecior of
the Campany. All the members of ihe Audit Commiilen have adequaie accouning and financial knowiedge to read, undersiand
and analyse ihe inancial siatemenis. Mr Kavas Paicl, an Independent Direcicr. is Chairman of ihe Commuities:

Tre constiution of 1he Comminee & ihe aitendance by ihe comenitice members are as lollows

Name of the director Pasltion Independent/ No. of meetings during the
Executive financial year2018-16
Held Attended
Mt Kavas Patel Chairman Independent 4 4
Mr Abhijt Upadhye (appomicd we. November 3, 2018} | Memibser Execuive 4 2
Ms Rama Kannan Memiber Independent 4 3
Dr Chengappa Ganapail Member Independeni 4 4
Mr Ravi Nigam [ill November 2, 2018) Mamber Executive 4 2

The CRO,, Szl Auditnrs and Imiemal Audinors are inviied @ altend 1the meetings. Company Secreary of the Company acis
as ihe Secretary of the Commities
All Members of the Commiliee have wide exposure ano possess sound knowledge m ihe areas of accounis, finance, business
ard Iniernal control. Tho Chairman of 1he Audil Commities remained presen: & the Annual General Meciing held on August
G 2018 Thg cormposiion of the Commitiee 18 In conlormiiy wih Regulation 18 of SEB! (Lisling Obligailons and Disclosuie
Requirementis) Regudaiions, 2015,

Terms of reference:

The powers, duties and ierms of refcrence of the Commiliee are as mentoned in Regulanon 18 and Part C of Schedule Il of SEBI

(Lusting Obligatlons and Disclosure Regurcmenis) Regulations, 2015 and Scction 177 of the Companies At 2013 which a(e;

{a) Overscoing the Company’s inancial reponing process and disclosure of 1s financial information io ensurc tha: ihe financial
sigrement 1s cofrec, adequaie and credible

(b} Recommend appoinimen!, fremuneraiion and ies of appointment of Audiiors of the Company and ieview and monilor
audiors indspendencea and perfomance, and effeciiveness of audil report

() Approval or any subsequeni modification ol ransactions of the Company rela:ed paries.

(d) Review!he quanedy, hall yearly and annual inancial siaiements before subrmission 10 the Board or 10 1he Members.

0 Review the adequacy and quality of miemat con.iof sysiems and seek information from any employse

i Inaddiion ahe above, all tlemslistzd 1n Schedule | of SEBI I Listing Onligations and Disclosure Reguiremenis) Regulations,
2015 and Seciion 177(4) of the Companics Acl, 2013

The minuics of the Audit Commiige Meciingts), circulaies in advance 1o the Commitiee members and approved al the

subsequent commiltee meeiingls) ase noiad by 1hic Board of Directors ot subsequeni Board Mee!irgish,

Stakeholders Relationship Committee:

Dunng he financial year under consideration ilicre were four (04 ) meetings held on tday 16, 2018, August 8, 2013, November
12,2018 and February 6, 2012 The Siakeholdess Relalionship Commitiee looks inio the redrassal of grievances of all secutity
holders of the Company

The compastiion of the Cornmiilias arvd the aliendanca by the Comimiillee Members are as inllows
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Name of the director Position Independent/ No. of meetings

Executive Held Attended
Mr Kavas Paiel Charman Independent 4 4
Ms. Rama Karivan Member Independani 4 3
Or Chengappa Ganapaii Wiemiper Independent 4 4

Ms. Micial Tabwar - Company Secteiary Is ihe Compliance Officer of ihe Company. She may be cached at

Tasiy Biie Fatables LUmied

201-202, Maylair Towers.

Wakdewadi Shivaiinagar,

Pune - 411005

Telephone §1 203021 6026

The Charrman of the Commiiice or in Chairman’s absence. any member of the commitiea atiends the General Mecing of the
shareholders. The Chairman of the Stakeholders Relaiionship Conmmilige remained preseri ai 1he Annual General Meeting neld
on Augusl 8. 2018.

Toexpedite the Iransfer, tansmission, removal deletion of name. issue of duplicaie shate cerlificale, eic aCommuiee ol exeeuiives
of Company have been lormect The Commiliee comprises ihc lollowing exccuives'

Mr Abhipt Upadhye- Managing Biracor

Mr. Gautav Gupia- Chicl Financial Officer

Ms Minal Talwar- Company Sceretary
The share iransfers approved by e Commilies ace placed belore 1the Board of Disecions in Iheir meeings {rorm ime 1o lime
Atbeginnmg of e year under review, therewere noinvestor complainis that remainedunresolved Buring the year, ihe Comparny
received 3¢ complaints which were resolved ang no complaini is pending as on March 31, 2019
Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

Terms of reference:
The iemns of reference of the Commiiiee are as per the Regulaion 19 and Pan D of Schadule Il of SEBI (Listing Obliga:inns and
Disclosure Requiremenis) Rogulaiions, 2015 and Section 178 of the Companics Aci. 2013

The Comminee formulsies cricna 10 determing Qualificaiion, posiiive antbuies and independance of direciors and recommend,
from time 10 time o the Board, a policy relaling 1o remuneaion of Direciors, Key Managerial Personnel and employees and
succession plan. The Commilies also farmulaies the cnieda for avaluation ol Induidual direciars and devising a Policy on diversity
ofife Board Tha Chairman of the Commiline remains present at ihe General Mesting 10 answer sharehoiders quernes

Fou: meeiings of Remuneration & Nomination Cormmiiiee were held dunng the year on May 16, 2018, August 8, 2018, Ociober
11. 2018 and February 8. 2018

The composition of the Commiillee and ie aiiendance by the commiiee members are 3s [ollows:

Name of the Director Position Independent/ No. of Meetings

Exacutive Held Attended
ivir Kavas Patel Chairman Independent 4 4
Ms. Rama Kannan Niember Independen 4 3
D Chengappa Ganapail Member tndepandent 4 4

Details of remuneration of the Board of Directors
All decisions 1elated 0 1he emuncraiion of ihe Direciors, bath oxecuiive and non-exccouiive, are decided by ihc Board of
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Directors of 1he Compaay in gccordance with the shareholders’ approval and/or Ceniral Govesrnmen), wheraver necessarny and in
complianoe with the provisions of applicable laws. Deiails of remuneralon paid 10 the execuive and non: execuive dircaiors for

he year 2018-19 are ag infows

(INR)
Name of Director Basic | Allowance & | Performance J Company | Sitingfees Total
Salary | Perqulsites Unked Contribution
Incentive/ | to Provident
commilsslon/ Fund &
bonus Pension
Mr. Ashok Vasudevan — — -
M. Kavas Paiel — — - ~ 200000 3,00,000
Mr RaviNigam (11l Noverber 2. 2018} | 8200452 306871 - 691120 —| 9887443
Mr, Abhijt Upadhye (wef November 3. | 8200415 487821 3374335 495660 —1| 1,25,63,231
2018
Mr, Chengappa Padinaranda Ganapai -— — - 300000 3,00,000
Ms. Dawn Amanda Allen — — — — - -
Ms Rams Kannan - = = 225000 2,25,000
Notes:
1. Mr Abhiit Upadhye was appomied as Managing Direcior of ihe Company wef. November 3, 2018 1ill Dacember 31, 2021,
2. Remuncranon of M Ak dpadhye as Managing Direcior 13 fxed (o a pericd of ihves years iiom Novembger 3, 20718 tili
March 31, 2021, by the shareholdors. Revised remuneration is approved by the Board and Nominaiion Commilies in iis
meeing hield on May 16, 2019, The same 15 proposed o sharziclders approval,
3. Agresment verh the Managing Dicecior can be cimingicd by giving three months nolica in writing by eiihar pany
Pedformance bhonus as per the iemis of appomiment and approval of sharasholders will ba paid o him,
4 Nosiock oplion scheme has been ramed by the Company for direciors and oitier execulives
5 Theme s ony fixed componen: crieria In ihe Company for directors and employees apar from varable compenen: paid io
Manzging Direciors 8 meniioned in the above (able,
6 Nootherdireciorn ncuding any NOn-execuiive dmeCior ICCeIVES any feMUNCIBLoN, COMIMISSION O« any other incentive fsom
Ihe Company.
7. Mr. Gaurav Gup:a receives remuneraiion as Chicf Financia] Officer of the Company

Remuneration Policy:
The Board adopied Remuncraiion anc Evalualion Policy on recommendation of Remuneratton and Nominaiion Commilice
covering Board diversiy, evaluationcrilera, qualificalions, eic under ihe provisions of Companies Ac:. 2013 and SEBIRegulalions.

Detarted polhicy is available 8t Company's website

A asvhiie ¢

The following criteria shall be lohowed lor selection appoiniment, avalualion and remungration of directors:

1

The direciors shall be of high iniegrity wiih relevari sxperise and experence s a5 10 have a diverse Board wiih Direriors
having diverse background and expenence in business. govermment, academics. lechnology and in areas hat sre relevani
for the Company's global opsraiions.

The Boardd and Nomiraion and Remuneraion Commiliee 10 8aisly thamselves before recommending any person for
directorship iha: he or she'is not disqualificd being appoinied as direcior under Companics Ach, 2013
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d)

3 Incase of appoinimen: of independeni direcior. the Comminiae (0 also satisfy isell thal person sanshies all ¢riteria of being
appoInied as Independeni dirscior.

4 The Commilieeshall evaluaie ihe pedomiance of Direciors basis their engagemeni with ihe rnanagement, conlrdulion and
participailon level Also tha Commiilee shall consider ihe ime and energy devoies by ndwidual dirscior for parforming the
duties and responsibiliies.

S Thememuneralion ol the Managing Direcior of any ather director of ihe Company shall be: reviewed and recommended by
the Nominaion and Remunerailon Commirac based oncriiefa such as indusiry benchmarks, the Comipany/s perlormance
vis 8- vis 1the Indusiry, responsibiliiies shoutdered, perfomancc/irack reooid, Macro-economic review on IemMuNeration
packages ol heads of other ofganizaJons and decided by (e Board of Direciors

6. Siling fee paid ‘o independan: direc:ors was INR 75000 per guarier curtng the inancial year 2018-2018 as revised wel.
May 7. 2016 by Board ol Direciors in their meating. Siiing fee paid s within siatutory fimes

7. The sgmuneralion of Key mManagernial Personnel and Senior Managerial Personnal is reviewed by the Commiiee The
remunciaiion of employaees largely consis: basic remunatation perquisiies and allowances Thie components of ihe lo.al
remuneraiion may vary {or different employee grades and are governed by indusiry pallerns, quatiicalions and expernence
of ihe employees, responsibiliies handled by themn individual performances, shon and lorg ierm padomance objeciives
appropfiale 10 :he working of thg Company, €. As per SEE! Regutations, even 1he rernuneraiion o e Senior Managenal
Paersonnel shall be recommended by the Commilies with effect from hnancial year 2019-20.

The Board of Dircciors on recommendalion of Remuneraiion & Nominalions Commice/ Audit Commiiice also revised 1he

iemungtalion of Wi Gaurav Gupia - Chief Finangal Officer of the Company.

The Non-Execuiive Direciors Ao no: draw any remunarsion from the Company, except sttiing (ees for each meeing of the Board

and Commillees theredl paid io the lndependen Direciors only.

Performance evaluation:

Pursuant © the provisions of [he Companies Ac., 2013 and SEB! Requiations. ihe Board has camed oul annual peffomance
evaluation of iis own performance, 1he Deecrors individually as well as the evalualion of he working of s Audi, Stakeholders
Relaionship, Nomination § femuneration and Comorate Social Responisibiily Commitiee. A SquCiwed] quastionnaire was
prepared covenng various aspects of the Board's functioning such as adequacy of the composiiion of 1he Board and 1is
Commutiees, Board culiure and performance of duiles and governancs

Indisdual directors including ihe Chairman of 1he Board were also evalusied on parame:ers such as level of engagement ang
coninbumon independance of udgement The performance evaluation of ihe Independen: Diteciors was camried out by ihe eniire
Board basis pariicipanon of Independeni girec10rs in the meeting. raising of concems io the Board. salcguarding the confidential
infornmation rendcing of nidependert decisons, unbiased opinions and esotnion of issues N 1he mecings, imely inputs on
the minuies, initialives in terms of planning and new Ideas The Directors expressed their satisfactionwith 1he svalualion precess

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Board ol Direciors consiiulad the Corporate Social Responsibiily Commiliee under the provisions of Secuon 135 of the
Companies AC1 2013, ai lismeeling daied May 8, 2014 The Comimities s responsible ot lormutaion and iecommendauon icthe
Board ihe CSR Policy ard aciiviiles 1o be undemnaken under this Policy. :he amoun: of oxpenditure to be incured and monitoring
of ihe Policy {rom iime 1o iime

The Comporate Social Respongibility (CSR} Palicy isir place ardis avallable a: Company’s websiic wwwiasivbile coin, Thie Policy
adopred is suned lo Company's corporale philosophy.

Fourmoeiings of CSR Commiiine were held during ine year on viay 16, 2018 Augus: 8 2018, Novernber 12, 2018 and February
68,2019,

The cornposliion of the Commitiee and 1he aiendance by 1he Commites Members are as {ollows
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Name of the director Position Independent/ No. of meetings during the
Executlve financial year 2018-19
Held Attended

Mr. Kavas Patel Chalrman Indapenden 4 4
Mr Ravi Nigam (1[Il November 2. 2018) Member Execulve 4 2
Mr. Abhijil Upadhye (we i November 3, 2018) Membsar Execulive 4 2
M. Ashiok Vasudevari Member Non Execulive 4 4

e) Separate Meeting of Independent Directors
As per the provisions of the Companies Acl, 2013 and SEBI Requlalions, a sepaiate meenlng of independent direclors was held
on February 8 2018 for svaluauon of perlormanee of entire Board and Chairman of the Company Al independen: Direciors
anended ine meoting. They also assessed the quallly, conienia and imeline of fow of informaion e vesen the managemen! and
the Board.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Doiails ol :he las! three Annual General Meegiings are as [ollows'

Financial Date & Time Venue Speclal Resolutian
yearended
2017-18 Augusi 8 2018 a! |HoielSherzion Grand Pune, |1 Approval for declassificaiion of Fromoter
11.00am. RBMRoad Punz- 411001 1o Revision in overall borowing powers
3. Creauon of charge on asseis of the Company
4 Macrial Relaied Pary iransac:ion approval
5. Approvai lor buyback of 53,530 1% Non-Cumulaiive, Non-
Convertible Redeemable Prelerence shares
8. Fixation of remuneration of Mr Ravi Nigam as managing
Direcior for 3yess.
2016-17 Seplember 20, Hoiel Sheton Gland RBM 1. Approvat lor related parny iransactions
2017,3:11.00 Road, Punc - 411 007
am
201518 September 18, Hoicl Le Moridier func, RBM |1 Re-appoiniment of Mr Rawvi Nigam as Managing Direcior [or
2016.2: 1100 Road. Pung - 411007 apefodol 5 years
R 2 Foauon of remuneraiion of Mr, Ravi Nigam as Managing

Direcior fof a penod of 3years
3. Railfication of remuneraiion of Mr. Ravi Nigam a3 Managing
Direcior lor a perod from April 1. 2018 till July 19, 2016

The Regisiored Ofice of the Company s situgied ai 201-202. Maylar Towers, Wakdewadi, Shivapnagar, Pune - 4110805,
All resolutions maved in the 1ast Thies Annual General Meeiings were passad :hrough e-voling faailiiy and Poll by way of Ballo!
Papers ai meeung made avalable 10 ihe shareholders

Thare was no Exira Ordinary General Meeilng of membess hield o financial year 2018-19

One special resoiution (hrough Posial Ballol noiice dated Ceicber 11, 2018 was passed in linancial yeal 2018-19 approving
fixation of remuneraton of Mr. Abhijit Upadhys, Managing Direcior The results of Postal Ballot were announced on November
19, 2018. Mr, Abhishek Jagdale- Praciicing Company Searezary was Scaulinizer for the Posial Ballo! aciivity who conducied ihe
exercise of postal ballol as well as the remoie e-+voung process In a fair and ansparent manner. The Pusial Ballo: was caraed oui
25 per ihie provisions of Sections 108 and 110 and othet applicable provisions of the Act mad warh the Rules ramed thereunder

SEAnnual Repon 201819
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Resolution Votes in favour Votes against { invatid Votes
| Numberol | Numbare! | %oflotal | Numbere! | Numbero! | %oltetal | Kumbercl Number ol
members | validvolas | numiparal | mentbers | valdvoles | nomber of members membars
vated cast valid voles votEd cast validvortes | whose votes 3 voles
through hrcugh were declared | weradeclaed
&lacionic glectionc invalid Tolal Invalict Telat
and angl nurnter of number of
physical physical nvaticl vales | invalid voles
| castiShares! | cast (Shares!
Fixalion ¢l remungtalion ol i4 1535878 | 1935928 il I il il il
Abhiir Upadhye ll March
&1.2019 | . |

None of the busingsses pronosed 10 be iiansacied at the onsuing AGM requites passing of a special resolulion :hough posial ballon
DISCLOSURES

1. Thelrensaciions with relaied paries do not have poienia conilic: wiih the inietesis of the Company at large. A comprehensive list of
relaad pany mansacions as required by she Incian Accounung Siandands (Ind AS] ssued by Insiiuie of Chanered Accounianis f ndia,
forms pan of Nowe no. 44 of the accounis in the annual (eporm

2 TheConpany has complicdwiih the fomalites aslaid down by Namional Siock Exchange of Indlis Ltd BSE Lid SEBland otfersiaiuiony
aulhoriiies on miaties related 10 captal market There viere o penaliies, slriclures [aid down on the Company relaing 16 capial Market
dunngiast hrea years

3 The Company is commulied 1o high standarg of Corporale Governance and siakeholder's responsiDiny. The Company has framed
Whisileblower and Viglance Mechanism Policy 10 enalile reporing uneihical of Improper acivily 10 the Managemeny/ Board The
Whislle Blower Policy and ihe Viglance Mechanism are avsilable a1 Company’s websiie wweiasiviiecoln Every employee/ whisile
Dlower has access 10 i Cliamman of the Audil Comimitea:. Oztails of Chaman of Audit Commiies are as under -

Name- Mr Kavas Pa'éf

Addrass- C-33, Rivernest 311 Norih Main road Koregoan Park Pune 411011

Prioner +81 020 26154921, E-mal: kavasp@ho mail com

Ouring thi year, no eveni of protecied declosurs from any employee of person was fecaived by the Charman of ihe Commiies of
managemen.

4  The Company has fomed a policy on Relaied Pamy Transacton 1 is also avalable on webste of the Company ai
wywwiasivbiie coin Company does not have any malcrst subsidiary and iheralore policy wirh respect :0 maetial subsidianes s not
applicablc to the Company.

5  The Company has laid down pmoadumes io iniorm Board members ahaut the nsk assessment and mitigaion process The Company
has identified major and minor risks like rmarkes sk fluciuationinjorsign exchange, In'erast rate, commadily rawmatcrials elc.) poe risks
and packaging maienal prices and oiher business risks And thes? risks are analyzed from iime 1o ime by 1he exetulive managemen!
ieam and reviewed by the Audi Comminee and the Bosrd

6 There hasbeennopublic, nghis or preferenial issues of sharas or debianiures dunng he year,
As equired by Schedule V (Bl of the SEBI Regulasions the GCompany has obiained a cenficate f1om siawlary audior regarding
compliance of conditions of Coporale Govemnance The caniicaeisgiven as Annaxuie B o the Direciors'Regor.

8  The Company has also acopied Policy on Malenal Disclosures, Policy on Preservation of Documen.:s and Archival Policy The policies

arc avallatie onwebsie of ihe company wwwiasivbiecoin)

9  ACenifcare has been recoved from Ms, Paceck V. R & Asscciates, Praclicing Company Secretaries. that none of the Diteciors on
ihe Board of ihe Company has been debared or disqualificd from being appoinied or conining as diectors of companies by the
Securliios and BExchange Board of India Minisiry ¢ Comerate Alfais or any such siatuloty autionty.

Folowing lees paio Staiuiory Audilors and ks member firm / neiwork firrme
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Name of firm INR In Lakhs
B S Rand Associates LLP (Stawory Audiors) 24.64
BS Rand Co. LLP [TaxConsulianis - Transfer Pricing & Corporale Tax) 2381
Total 48.75

The Company has complied with all the mandalory requircments of the SEBI Regulaions. The exieni of adopnion of non-
mandaiory requirerments is given below,

Non Mandatory Requirements:

The quararly un-audned tesulis of the Company afier beng subjetied o Limned Review by \he Sianuiory Audiors are published
in newsnapers. These resulls are no: sent [0 shareholders individually

Iniemal augiiors olhhe Company make hall yearly preseniation 1o the audit commiiier on their epons

Al ihe non - execuive direciors have reguisite qualificalon, ich experience and experise in their fespecive fungchional aress
They atiend vancus [programmes n the personal capacities which keep ihem abress: of relevart developmenis Thero i1s formai
system of evaluaiing ihem.

In lermgs of SEBI (Prolhibition of 1hsider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended (rom ume 1o ime, the Company has adopted
following codes as prescibed iherain

1."Ccde ol Fair Disclosure ol Unpublishied Price Sensitive Information” for employees and oither connecied persons

2 "Code of Conduc: i0 Reguiaie Moniiof and Repon Trading” lof iis emplovees and Conneciad Petsons 10 Difeciors

3. “Policy for Procedure of inguiry in case of leak of Unpublished Pace Sensiive Informaton”

Changes in Whisileblower and Vigilance Mechanism Policy Is 2lso made pursuant 1o change in Pigveniion of Insider Trading
Reguladions,

The Company has adopicd a Folicy on Determinaiion of Maicriality for Disciosure as per Regulaiton 30 of ihe Securities and
Exchange Board of India {Lizitng Obigations and Disclosure Requiremenist Regutaions, 2013,

The Company h4s adopied a Policy on Acchwal and Preservarion of Documents a3 per Regulaiicn 9 of the Securines and
Exchange Board of India (Lisiing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

TJerms and conditions of appoinimieni/ re-appainiment ol Independent Drreclors in lemns of Regulation 48 of the Securiies
and Exchange Board of India [Lisiing Obligaiions and Disclosure Requiremenis) Regutaions, 2015 and Seciion 149 read wilh
Schedule IV of Ihe Companies Act, 2013 are avallable on the webslie of ihe Company & www iasivbilecoin

Deails of familianzazion programmie Imparied o Indapendant Oreciors in terms of Regulation 25170 o the Securites and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obliga:ions and Disclosure Requirements) Regularions. 2015 are avaiiable onthewebslie of ihe
Company al www 'asivipie coin

Disclosure undef the Sexual Harassment ol Womien at Woikplace (Psevention, Prohibilion and Redressall Act 2018 forms pan of
she Annual Repor

e revised Coge of Fair Disclosure 15 available on tha Company’s websie www asiyhite com Ms hiral Talwar, Company Seoreiaty,
is Compliance Olficer under the Codes The Promoers Direciors and Key Managernial Persons have provided iniiial disclosures of
holding of seeuries by them The Conaany may reguire any of iis connecicd persons 10 make disclosure of holding and ireding o
securiies (o the Company

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The annual hallyearly and quaraily resulls of the Company are published m Nailonal newspapers vz Asian Age and local
newspaper viz, Punyanagarn of any other edllivaleni newspancy.

These newspapcss are sclecied on the basis of having reasonable circulation in the areas where majoniy of our shareholders are
locaied and also anihe basss of cos: elfeciiveness.

SEAnnual Repon 201819
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The Company pmvdes inlommation @ ihe Naiional Stock Exchange of India Limired and BSE Limited 25 perihe requircmen of
ihe SEBI [Liszing Chhgalions and Disclosue Reauirement) Regulations, 2015,

The Company prompily epdates the quariedy rosulis, shaseholding patiem ang oiher official news roteascs, il any, on irs websie
wywwiagivhite co inwhich provides all information as required by 1he: SEBI Regulalions. The websile of lhe Company also containg
presenialions made winstiutonalinvestors and oiher official news releases, If any

Managemers Discussion and Analysis forms pan of his Annual Repor:

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

a) |Annual General Meeting August 8 2019, a 1100 am at the Howe! Sherion Grand Pune
- Datg Time and venue
b) |Financial Calendar
Tenigiive financial reponing for
- the quaner ending Jure 30, 2019 Second week of Augusi 2010
- the half year ending Seplember 30, 2018 Secondweek of November 2019
- he quarier ending Decembear 31, 2019 Secondweek of February 2020
-yepronding March 31, 2020 Sccons Week of May 2020
Annual Gengral Meeing for the year ending March 31, 2020 Sepiember 2020
¢) |Financial Year April 1 i March 31
d) |Dates of Book Closure July 20, 201240 August 8 2013 (hath daysinclusive)
e) |Dividend Payment - [INR 2 on each equiiy share of INR 10 within 30 days from 1hia
daic of declamation of dividend by the shareholders in the
Annual Genesal Meelina
f) |Listing on Stock Exchange, Address and Stock Code 1) BSE Limiled (BSE)
Coce: 518091
Address 1st Floor, New Trading Ring. Roiunda Bldg.
PJ nTowess, Dalal Sireet, Mumbai 400001
2) National Siock Exchiange (NSE) of ndia Limired
Symbol TASTYBITE
Addrass Corporale Services, Exchange Fiaza,
Bandra Kurla Complax, Bandra (£l Mumbai -~ 400 051
g) |DematISIN Number for NSDL & CDSL * |INE 488B01017
h) |Registrar & Shares Transfer Agent M/s Kansy Finiech Pvi L,
Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibordl, Financial
Disirict, Nanakramguda, Hydaiabad - 500 032
Ph 040-87181528 Fax 040-23001153
e-mail ramesh oesal@kanvy.com;
i) Share Transfer System In respact of iranster of shares, shareholders ase advised 10

contac /s Karvy Finiech Py, Lid. directly

All transler request recsived ae procassed by the Regisirar
and Transfer Agent and are approved by the Commitiee of
execlilves constiuied by the Company. Share ranslers are
regisiered and feimed within maximum of 15 days from daie
of lodgmieny, if complete in all aspecis

asly Bile Lalapies Limnead
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J) Plant location

Al PosT 490, Village Bhanggaon, Taluka- Daund, Disl- Pung-
112214, Maharashira

k) Registered Office and Correspondence address:

* 1201-202 Mayfair Towers, Wakdewadi, Shivajinagar, Pune -
411005

Lisung fees as applicable have been paid.

L} STOCK MARKET DATA

The marke! prioe and volume of IHe Company’s Equity Sharcs iraded on the BSE Limiied; Mumbai during the year 2018-19is as(cliows,

Perlod TBEYL share prices on BSE BSE Sensex
High (Rupees) Low (Rupees) High {Rupees) Low (Rupees}

Aprit 2018 852280 727500 3521330 3297256
May, 2018 218500 768505 36069353 34,30289
Jung, 2018 830000 711350 3587741 34.784.68
July, 2018 820995 7.02065 3784459 35.106.67
Augus!. 2018 1137166 8,10000 3898965 37.12899
Sepiember, 2018 1129775 805005 3893435 35098563
Ceiober, 2018 847770 721515 3661664 3329158
MNovember, 2018 800000 790000 36388.22 34.303.38
December. 2018 950000 £§12000 2655409 42529
January, 2019 8.864.35 788200 3670103 3537551
February. 2019 8885.00 751600 3717218 3578716
March, 2019 8800AOOI | 7.856.60” 3874854 - 36,926.94
Noie: The above daa has been downipaded rom the official websiie of ihe BSE Limiiad

SAAnnual Fepon 201819
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BSE SENSEX VS THBEL SHARE PRICE

== (350 Senses —a— Cloda TBEL an BEE

3800000 1200000
JECHI0 o000
::;?;ﬂﬁ . BODOOO
=000ch s
ALK d
:‘m‘:ﬁ H00000
dEBad i T T 00

s ..ﬂz.

Ed #’J’ﬁ m sﬁ“é?'“‘f

Stock parformance Ve NSE Nifty:
T madiki Driceand voiumc ol he Company's Bty Shanss fiackad ©n e NSE dufry hin \as 2018 10 S as ldliows
Period THEL ehare prices on NSE | MEE Mifty

High (Rupeesi | Low(Rupees) | High (Rupees) Low [Rupeaes)
A 018 B L-t'J' LN 1] TEER0 NT1EX
Nay X718 800 L:{'-I s A 10 ka0 0417 E]
Jure M8 az&um EOL B LY W1 B 25 lekila i b
Jdy 2018 A7E005 7001 11 EL'U {Ch A 58
Ay X11A V13800 7a1300 11 762 1123105
Sanember 13 11278 14 7 REICKY Mg 00 1085030
Crints, 2018 WA 00 R ¥ idu. i 103N e 103 56
"'_J.'I-.-‘EJ'HL“ET ginpl. ! kETRG LY RS FHIZAR 1092245 1034160
Decasmbee 2018 Q47500 B 10540 [ ems 15 1D33AE
danuary. A8 £ TA0 00 TBER 15 10487 45 10 hES S
b 30045 Bt FEO00) 1111810 1L RAS &
L gt :._"G"“Ih_'l. Hhidh ?.ﬁﬁ.’{u—_ 11 r'_1"_-£'| ) TI_'I.FI‘T?{H'I

ki Reconcillation of Share Capital Audlt Report
The Securoes arcl Exchangs Basrd of roia T5EED has, vida i3 Croilar dated 3110 Decomber 2002 mede bmandanaey o bsiod
COMPanies (0 aubiesd Ihemashes o Pecoacitenion of Sham Carta) Aol [0, intes aha, comiien tha e sl of (he:shaies reid i
Maupna Secunies Depoanony Lmuoc (NSO, Ceniral Deposinn Sonaces Limeed CBSLT and In obyaonl Tom my vl sha
iguncd / pit] b capinal isied wdh 1ha Siock Exchanges The ducl & cenoe Sl aveny Buarior and the repon | hoan s submiod
i1 thir Eock pxcrardes ad & placad bedois e Boand of Cirectons:

“ Eepmny B | anloes ) i



Comporate Information 0120 | ||

Statutory Reports 21-82

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ccontd.)

b

m)

n)

o)

q)

Distribution of Shareholding (without grouping) as on 31st March 2019

As of March 31, 2018, ihe distribuilon of the Company’s shareholding was as follows:

Anancisl Statement 83-143

Category (Amount) No. of Cases %of Cases Amount (INR) % of Amount
1-5000 5833 0797 21475610 837
H001- 10040 56 0.94 414,300 181
10001- 20000 39 066 546,920 213
20001- 30000 6 010 1,54,250 060
300G1- 40000 4 007 1,28360 050
40001- 50000 4 007 1,681,450 0.71
50001- 100000 2 co3 126,000 050
10000 16 Above 10 017 21858210 8h57
Total 5,954 100.00 2,56.60,000 100.00
Shareholding Pattern (without grouping) as on March 31, 2019
Category No. of Holders | Total Shares % to Equity
1 FOREIGN PORTFQLIO - CORP 9l 70874 3
2 |TRUSTS 2 100 0
3 |ALTERNATIVE iNVESTMENT FUND 1 500 0
4__[RESDENT NDIVIDUALS. | 5313 499,035 19
5 NON RESIDENT INDIANS 1217 9,483 0
6 CLEARING MEMBERS 33| 454 0
7 INOIAN FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 1 264 o)
8  |BANKS 1 £90 )
9 PROMOTER COMPANIES 1 18904510 74
10 |FOREIGN PROMOTER BODIES CORPORATES 1 300 0
11 |NON RESIDENT INDIAN NON REPATRIABLE 50 4,974 0
12 |BODIES CORFORATES 225 20,845 1
13 |[NBFC 1] 22 0
14 [IEPF 1] 40541 2
15 |HUF 194/ 13.107 1
[Total: 5,084 25,688,000 100
Dematerialization of shares and liquidity (without grouping)as on March 31, 2019
Description No. of cases Total Shares % to Equity
Physical 290 56974| 2.22
NSDL 3190 311,800} 9009
CDSL 2174 1,07.226] 769
Total 5,954 25,66,000| 100.00

QOutstanding GDR/ADR/Warrants or any convertible instruments

No sccurilies were suspended from rading during the vear.

There are no shares In demai suspensa accouni of the Company

Mot Applicable

Commodities price risk and commodity hedging activities: Sirategic buying, alicinaie vengor developmen:. modium
i long ierm rae contracts. Company dogs nol underiske commedity hedgmg acivites The Company does not deal in
commodities and hence the disclosure pursuant ;0 SEBI Clrcular daed November 15, 2018 is nol requiredt 1o he given.

AT Annual Feport 201819
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r)

Unclaimed dividend and transfer to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF):

Secion 124 of Companies Act, 2013 mandales the companies 1o ransfer diidend which temans unclaimed for a perod of 7
years, from unpaio dividend account 10 1EPF. In accordance with the provisions of the Acy, the dividend for betow mentloned
years, ilunclaimed for 3 pericd ol 7 years, will bz transferred 0 IEPF

Year Dividend per share | Date of declaration® | Due date of transfer | Amount outstanding as
In INR to IEPF** on March 31, 2019 (INR)

201112 100 06-09-2012 12-10-2019 81323
2012-13 | 100 1 10-08-2013 L 16-10-2020 | 91,822
2013-14 100 10-09-2014 16-10-2021 95276
2014-15 100 14-09-2015 20-10-2022 88702
2015-16 200 10-09-2018 25-10-2023 167426
2018-17 200 20-09-2017 27-08-2024 170264
2017-18 200 02-03-2018 '|TOQ 2025 1.1 2.'2'f8

‘Dale of declgralion 8 dale of AGH
"Dug daig is calculaied 30 days [rom AGM plus 7 days andi 7 vasrs.

The Company In (inancial ygar 2018-18 transferrsd 2100 sharas of financial year 20110-11 10 lavestor Educaion and Frowacion
Fund account Shareholders srg reguesied 10 foliow Ihe prescnbed procecture for claiming ihe shares from the govenmen,

Tha Company wiil Iranslar amoun: for ihe year 2011-12 ithal remaned unpaid a (he end of 7 years irom thie date of declaranon of
dividend after Cciober 12, 2019 to :he invesior Education and Proteciion Fund (IEPF) account as required under Secilon 124 of
the Companies Aci, 2013

CEQ/ CFO CERTIFICATION:

A declaraiion by Mr Abhigii Upadhye, CEO/Managing Direcior in erms of Schedule V (D) of SEBI LIsing Obligations and Disclostre
Requiremen:s) Regulations, 20 15 was placed beforg Ihe Board & Iis maating held on May 16, 2019

DECLARATION STATING COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT

| declare ihal all Dircctors and members of the Senior Managemeni have allirmed compliancs with the code of conduct lof he year
ended March 31, 2019,

Abhijit Upadhye
Managing Director

Place: Pune Din: 02076451
Date: July 12, 2018

m asly Bile Calaples Limned
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Tasty Bite Eatables Limited
Report on the Audlt of the Financlal Statements

Opinion

We have audited 1he knancial slalements of Tasiy Bile Eaiables Limied (“ihe Company’). which compnse the halance shes! as al
31 March 2019, and the staiemeni of profit and loss lincluding other comprehiensive incomel. siatement of changes n eguity and
s:atement of cashillows forine yearthenended. and noies:oihefinancial staiemenia Including a summary of the significani accounting
policies and other explanaioly Information.

in our opinion and 1o the best of our INfomMmation and according to the explanations given 0 us, tha aloresaid financial staiemernits give
the information sequited by she Companies Act, 2013 [*Ac:") In the manrer so required and give a true and fair view in conformity wilh
the accountng principies generlly accepled in india, of ha staie of affairs of the Company as al 31 March 2018, and pofil and oifher
comprehensive Income, changes in cquily and 1is cash lows for the year ended o hia: dale

Basis for Opinion

We conducied our audii in aceordance wih the Standards on Audiing (SAs) speciied under secia 143{101 of 1he AcL Our
responatbiliiies undey ihose SAs are {uriher descnbed in the Auditor’s Responsibiffties (or the Audit of the Financial Slatemenis
section of ouriepen We are independen of ine Company in accordance wiit the Code of Eihics ksued by the insituig of Chariered
Accounianis of India 1cgeinerwith ihe aihical requiremenis hai arc relevani 1o gur sudil ol the inzncial ssaiemenis under ihe provisions
ol ihe Ac: andhhe Rules there undzar, and we have iulfilled our other ethical responsitidines in accordance with these requiremenis and
the Code of Ezhics. We baliave thai the audii evidence we have odiained is sufficient and appiopriaic 1o provide a basis [or our opinion

Key Audit Matters

Key audiit matiers are those maners thai in our professionaljudgmemnt, were of mos: sgnificance in cur audic of the financial staienenis
of ihe curent penod These matters were addressed i the coniext of our audi of the financial siaiemenis as 3 wholg, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide 8 separaie opinidn on thase maners.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Provision for Inventory write down

As at 31 March 2016, 1he Company held INR 4,880.31 takhs of
inventaries Gven the slze of 1he Inventory balanze relative 10 the
ial assels of ihe Company and ihe eslimales and jJudgmen:s
described below, the valusion of vantoy reouired Significant
audlt aliennhon.

As disclosed in Noie 35 and Noe 10, mventories are held at
the lower of cost anct net realizable value deiemminged using ihe
weighted average cost me:shod, Al cach reponing perad. the
valuation of inveniory is reviewed by management and the cost
of Inventory 1$ reduced where inveniory is forecasied (o be sold
bslow cos:

The deiermination of whelher inveniory will be realized lor a
value less than cos! requires managemen: 0 exercise judgment
and apply assumpiions. Managemen! underakes the {ollowing
procedures for determining the tevel of write down requireds

We have performed the following proceduies over Ihe provision
forinvenony.

«  Wg esied 1he design implemgniaion and operaling
elfcctiveness of conicols  surrounding  The  Invaniony
valuaion process

»  Forasample of inveniory iiems, re-pedormedthe weighied
average cos: calculaion and compared ihe weighiedt
average 008t io the nel realizable value. On sample Dasis,
we lesied the nel realizable vatue of Inventory 1ems to the
selling price subsequen: (0 the year end;

«  Weessd thal the agemg repars used by managemeni,
correeily aged the: Inveniory hems by agrecing a sample of
agedinventory iiems 10 1he goods received noe;

s We assessad the percentage write down applied to older
irventory with réference 1o hisionc inventory whie downs;
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The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
. Use inveniory agelng repons :ogeiher wilh hisiorcal trends |« We re-perdomed the calculaiion of 1he inveniory wiiie
10 esimale the likely [uiure salsabiliy/ussaniliy of slow down;

moving and oldaf inventory iams; ) .
"d 4 . We perldomned eliospeciive aviews of Provisions made

. For inveniory aged grealer han ong year or tems due for hisiorically !0 assess he reasonableness of provisions
axpiry in 1he near fulure, managemen( applies a perceniage rmade during the year, and
based provision 1o inveniory, The percentages ate derived

«  Wealsochialtenged managemeni's judgmeni {or nveniory
from lusiorical levels of wriic down: and

provisions and evalualedwhaiherany specific wite downs
. Pedoims a ne-by-ine analysis of remaining nveniory o vre reauired on invenioy lems,
ensure 1t is swaied ai fower of cos! and nal realzahis value
and 3 specific wiiie down is recognized f Managemeni
dearmines (hal he sock exceads [ulure requiramanis

Other Information

Thie Company’s management and Board of Directors afe responsible lor the other information. The other information compnses 1he
informaiion inciuded in ihe Company’s annual reporT, b dogs no! include ihe financial siaiements and cur audiiors’ repor therson

Our opinion on 11e financiz! sialemenis doas not cover the oihier informaion and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
ihereon

In conneciion witl our audit of ihe hnangial slaiemenis, our responsibility is 0 read ihe ciher informaiion and, in doing $0. consider
whather the otherinforma..or. s maienally nconsisieni wiih the inancisl siaremenis orour knowledge obiainedin the audit orotherwise
appoars io be maierialty miss.ated || based on the wer < we have pedormed, we conclude hai there s a malerial missiaiemeni ol ihis
othetinformation, we are required 10 (epor that faci We: have nothing 1o reperl in 178 regard.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's managemean: and Board of Directors afe responsitle for ihe matiers stated in section 13415) of the Aci with espect
10 1he preparation of these inangcial stzierents hal give 2 rue and fair view of the siate of alfairs, profivioss and other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash tows of the Company in accordance with [hie acoouniing principles genatally accepied in
Irdia, including ihe indian Acccuniing Standards (Ind AS) specifiad under seciion 133 of the Aci This responsibiity also includes
mamenance of adequate accouning fecords In accordance willt the provsions of he Act for saleguarding of the asses of the
Company and lof preveniing and detesting Irauds and oiher iregulariies; selec!lon and applicaiion of appropriate accounting policies,
making judgments and esfimales ihai are reasonabie and prudeni; and design, Implementaion and mainienance of adequa:e ntemal
fnancial conrals thai were operaling effecively for ensuring the accuracy and compleieness of the accouning records, relevan! (othe
pieparation and piasentation of the financial staiemenis thai gve 3 rue and fair view and are free from maletial missiaiement whether
due 1o fraud ot enor.

In prepanng the inancial siaiemants, managemen: and Board of Directors are responsible lor assessing Ihe Company's ability
1o coninue 35 a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matiess relaled o going concasn and using the going concern bass ol
ACCOUNING UNl2SS MaNaga
gdo so.

Nt either iniends 1o iquidaic e Company O i0 coase opefailons, or has No realistic altemative DU 1o

The Board of Directors is aiso responsible lor overseeing the Company's financial 1eporing precess
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT Contd)

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objeclives are © oblain reasonabl assurance aboul whether the financial siatemen!s as 3 whole are free from mawenal
missigiemen’, whether due to fraud or error. and tossu= an audilor's report that includes cur opmion Reascnable assurance1s a high
level of assurarice. but is not a guaranice hat an audil conducied in accordarice with SAs will always deiect a maierial missiaiemeni
when i: exisle. Missialements can anse from fraud or encr and are considered matenal i, ndvidually or in the sggregate. ihey could
reasonably be expecied 1o influence ihe economic decisions of usars [aken on the basis of thase inancial staiements

As pan of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professionat Judgmen: arnd mainiain professional skeplicism ibroughou the
auci. We atso

. idenify and assess the risks of material misstaie meni of e inancial siaiements, whether due o Iraud or error, desion and perform
At procedures responsive 10 °hose nisks, and obialn audi! evidence hat is sufficien! and appropriate 10 provide 8 basis fof our
opirion. The risk of Not derecling a matefial missialement resulling from (raud is higher than for one resuliing from efror, as fraud
may nvolve collusion, forgery, inieniional omisIions, Misrepresen:iaiions, or Ihe overide of imernal control

a Obiain an understanding of iniemal contol 12levant 10 1he audi! in order 10 design audi proceduras thal are appropnate in the
clreumgiances Under section 143(3)4] of ihe Aci, we are also esponsible for exprassing our opinion on whether he company
has acequate intemnal nancial controls with referance 10 nancial siailements in place and (he operating efleciivensss of such
conirols.

. Evaluzie 1he appropasieness of accouning policies used and the reasonableness of accouniing esimaes and elaied
gisclosures made by managemani.

. Conclude on the appropriaieness of managemeni's use of the going concern basis of accouning and, based on the audii
evidence obizines, whether a maledsl uncenamiy exsis relaled 10 evenis ot condions thal may cast significan! doub: on the
Company’s abilty 1o coniinue as 2 going concern. If we conclude thai 8 matenal uncenainy exsis, we are required 10 draw

mcdily our opinion Qur conclusions are basixd ot the audil eviderce obrained up 10 Ihe daie of our audiior’s reporn. Howeves,
fulure evenis or condiiions may cause ihe Company 10 CEase 10 CONIMLE as 3 GOING CONCEM,

«  Bvaluaie the overall preseniation, siiucture ard conten of the financial sialements, including ihe disciosures, and whether he
financiat staiements represent e underying ransactions and evanis ina manncs inat achieves (air presenialion,

We commurnicale wilh: thase chaged with govesnance regarging. among other matiers, the planned scone and timing of the auci: and
significant audit indings, includmg any significant deficiencies ininternal contro! that we ideniily dusing our audi

We also provide iiose charged with governance wiith a siainment tha! we have complied wh relevant ethical requiremenis reparding
independenca, and 1o commuricaie wilh :hem &l relationships and oiner mallers thai may rezsonably be ihought 10 bear on oue
ngependence, and whera applicadle. relaied sategquards.

From :he maiiers communicated with (hose charged with governance we determing those malers thay were of most significance
In the audih of the finandial statermenis of the current penod and are thsrefore 1he key audii matiers. We describe thesa maliars in our
auditors’ repori unless taw or tegulation precludes public disclosure abou!l the matter or when, in exiremnely rare CircumsiaNces, we
derermine thal a maner shoutd not be communicaied in our repen becalse the adverse conseausnces of doing sowould reasonably
be expecied io ouweinh 1he public in:erest benefiis of such communicaion
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Contd)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asreguired by the Companies (Audiiors' Report) Ordes, 2018 ['the Order' issued by the Ceniral Gavernmeni 1 terms of seciiorn
143 (11) of ihe Acl wi give in the "Annexure A” a stalement on the mailers specified in paragraphs 3 and 7 of ihe Order, 1© the
exien applicable

{A)

{8)

{©)

As required by Seciion 143(3) of the Act we jepor 1R

a)

b

c)

d)
&)

We have sough! and obiained all the information and explanaiions which 1o ihe besi of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for 1he purposes of our audil

In our opinon, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examinaion of 1hose books,

The balance sheer, the siaiemeni of profit andloss (inclucting oiher compiehensive income). e siaiement of changes
naquity 2nd the s:aiement of cash flows ot wath by 1his Repor: are in agreemeni with ihe books of account,

In our opinion, the aforesaid inancial $:a:cments comply wilh the Ind AS speciied under section 133 of the Aci,

On the basis of the writien repressn:z:ons recened from the dirsciors as on 31 March 201¢ taken on record by ihe
Board of Direciors, none of the directcrs is disqualified as on 31 March 2318 [rom being appoinied as a diractor in
:ermns of Section 164(2! of the At and

Wilh respect (o The adequacy of e inemal finsncial controls wilh reference 10 financial staiemenis of he Company
and |he operating effeciiveness of such conirols, rafer 1o our separeie Repori n "Annexure 8.

With respect 10 1he other matiers 10 be included in the Audiions’ Repor in acoordance wiih Rule 11 of the Companies {Aucl
and Audlitors) Ruies, 20714, inour opmion and 1o he bast of outinlormation and according 16 1he explanations given Lo us

The Company has disctosed the impaci of pending litigaiions as al 31 Maich 2018 onits financial posrion in ks firancial
ralemenis - Refer Noic 24 1o e financial staisments;

The Company did noi have any long-tcmm contracts incluging denivaiive coniracts for which ihere were any malenal

foreseeable losses;

There has been no delay in rranslerfing amounis, fequired o be iransferied, io the Inves:or Educalion and Proteciion

Fund by the Company: and

The disclosures in ihe inancial siaiemenis regaging holdings as well as dealings n specified bank notes durmg ihe

pericd (rom 8 Noverribar 2016 10 30 December 2016 have no! been made in these financial sialemen's since they do

not penain o the financal yearended 31 March 2019,

With respect i0 ithe matier io be included in the Audirors’ Report under seciion 387 (168

In oLir opinion and according o i information andl explanalicns ghven 10 us he remuneraion paid by the Company (o
.e direciore during the current year 18 in acoardance with the provisions of Seciion 187 of 1he Act The remuneralion paid
i0 any direcior is ot i excess of the limil [aid down under Secion 197 of the Acl The Minisiry of Corporsaie Alfairs has not
prescsibad ather detars under Sechion 197136) which are required 10 bie commenicd upon by us.

Face Pune
Date 16 May 2019 Membership No 101180

asly Bile Lalapies | imned

For BSR & Associates LLP
Charteied Accountants
Fim Regislraiion No- 11623 1W/W - 100024

Raajnish Desali
Partner
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ANNEXUREA

to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements of Tasty
Bite Eatables Limited

With reference 10 the Annexure referred 1o in paragraph 7 in Repori on Other Legal and Regutaiory Reguirements of the iIndependeni
Auditors Report (o the Members of the Company on the Ind AS financial staiemenis for the year ended 31 March 2018 wa report hat'

b)

(i)

fiie

(v)

)

(v}

(v

(a}  The Company has maintained proper records showing full pariculars, Incfuding quaniiative details and siuation of ixed
asse1s

(b} The Company has a regular program of physical venlicanon of iis fixed asseis by which ks fixed asseis ace verified once a
year In our opinion, ihig pariodicity of physical verflication 1s reasonable having regard 1o ihe size of the Comipany and the
nature of I:s ixed asseis. The discrepancias nouced on such vanficalion beiween the physical count and the baok records
were nol matenal and have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

€} According o ihe informatton and explanations given 10 Us ang on the bass of examination of the records ©f ihe Company.
the tlle deeds of (he immovable properties are held in iha name of the Company, excap (ot the fdlowing:

Sr. Type of Asset Gross block as on 31 Net block ason 31 Remarks
no March 2019 March 2019
1 |Feghold land - Gui No. INRQ.281akh INROZ8 lakh | The Company has filed 2
503 legat suil alleging Ilegal
occupaiion of the land

The Invenigy, Sxcept gonds in iransil, has ba discrepanciog nots
on auch venficaiion berwveen the physical sicck and ihe book racamis were net malgdal 503 have beon progerly geall with in
1he bocks of account In our apinion, 1he fredusncy of such verfcation is masonabie and adequaie In rafaiion i 1he size of Ine
Company and ihe naiure of its business. In respect of stocks lving with stird panies ai ibe year end, writien confirmations fom
major paslies have been claained

physically verfied by management dusing the year The

The Company has not granted any loans, secured orunsecured io companies, firmg, Limited Liabiidy Patngrships or olher pantes
covered in the egister maimained under section 188 of the Act. Accordingly. paragraph 3iiin of ihe Order is not applicable.

According 10 1he nfommanon and explanations provided 10 us, the Company has neithér granied any loan and nor made any
InVesimen:s, or guarantees or securily during ihe year, io which section 185 or 186 of 1fiz Companies Act 2013 is apphcable
Accordingly, paragraph 3(v; of 1he Qrder 1s no: applicable

The Company has no: accepted any deposiis In accordance wih seciuon 73 0 76 of the Acl and 1he rules made there under.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order Is not applicable

In our opinion and according 1o the infarmation and cxplanatlons given to us, mainienance of cos! records undor seciion 148 ol
1he Actis not applicable to the Company under the Companies (Cosi Record and Audil) Rules. 2014,

@ According 10 the informaton ang cxplanations given 10 us and on the basis of our examiniaiion of the records of the
Company, amoun:s deducied/ accrued In the books of account inrespant of undispuled staiutony duss including Providen
Fund, Employees’ Sate Inaurance, Income-1ax, Goods and Servicas Tax, Duty of Cugioms and any ather statunory dues have
gsnerally been (egularly deposiled dunng the year by the Company with the appropnaié autherities theugh there has been
one insiance of delay in payment of Employees’ Staig Insuranc

1 of Providen: Fund,
Employaes' S:aie Insurance, Income-1ax, Goods and Services Tax Duy of Cusiomns ¢ess and any oihar statuioty duss were
In arrears 83 51 31 March 2018, {or a pened of mora than six months (rom the dare they bacame payable.

According o ihe information and explanations given [© us. N undispuisd amounts payable in res;

B According 10 the informarnion and explanaiions given 1o us, 1hete are no cdues of Incomie: [(ax. Sales-Tax Seevice 1ax Goods
and Services Tax, Duty of Cusioms which have not becn deposiied by the Company on 3Cccun of GispLies, excei 33
disclosed In Enclosure 1 10 1his Annexure
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ANNEXUREA

to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements of Tasty
Bite Eatables Limited (Contd.)

(Viiy}

(i}

(x)

{xi)

(i)

(i}

-~

(xr/

vl

ixvi}

In our opinion and according (© the Informaiion and explanaaons given 1o us, the Company has no: defaulied in repaymen: of
duas i01:s bankers. The Company did no; have any dues 1o financial Insti:Liions or any ouls:anding debeniures duing ine ysar,

Acoording 1o thie Informaiinn and explanations giver 10 us, 1he lerm loans aken by Ihe Company have been applied for the
puipose iorwiich thiey weretaken The Company has not rajsed monay by way of iurther public offer {including debt insiurmenis)
during :he year

shag been

Accoding 10 the information and explanaions given 1o us. no fraud on or by the Company by 1§ officers oremploye:
noliced of feponied durng the vear
According to the infomation and expianations given "o us, the managenal iemuneration has baen paid/ provided in accordance

wiih ihe requssiic approvals mandaicd by the provisions of Secrion 197 read wiin schedule Vo ihe Act

In cur opinicn and accoming o Ihe informaiion and explanaions given 10 Us, the Company i nol & Nidhi Company as pex the Aci.
Accormtingly, paragraph 3ixi of the Ordes 1s no: applicablc

I our opinion and according o the information and explanations given 1o us, 3l the iransaeiions with 1elaled parties are In
comptiance with seclions 177 and 188 of the ACt and the details. as required by ihe applicable accounting siandards have boen
disclosed in he mancial Slaiemanis,

According to the informaion and explanaiions given (o ug, ihe Company has ioi made any prefeential aliciment of privaie
placemeni of shafes or fully or parally converilile debemures dunng the year

According 10 ihe informrarion and explanaiions given 1o us, he Company hasg nol entared N0 any rN-Cash IrBngacions wiih
direciors or perscns connecied wilh them during the year

In our opinion and according 1o [he information and explanaions given o Ls, e Company 1§ nol required O (egiszer under
seciion 45-1A of ihe Reserve Bank of India Aci. 1934

For B SR & Associates LLP
Charlered Accountants
Firrn Regisitation No' 116231/ W - 100024

Raajnish Desai

Place Pune Partner
Dale. 16 May 2019 Membership No: 101180

asly Bile Calatles Limnad
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Details of statutory dues, which have not been deposited on account of dispute:

Name ofthe | Nature of the Period to Amount | Amount pald under | Amount Forum where
statute dues which the (INRlakhs) | protest (INR Lakhs) | unpald (INR ‘ disputels
amount relates Lakhs}) pending
(Financilal year) |

The Income Tax | Income Tax 2007-2008 10769 56.89 | The Income Tax

ACL 1881 | Appellate Tribunal,
! Pune

Trie Income Tax | Income Tax 2010-2011 23882 20082 | The Income Tex

ACL 1961 | Appetlate Tribunal,
| Pune

Trie income Tax | Income Tax 2013-2014 20638 206 39 | The Income Tax

Act 1861 | Appallaie Trbunal,
| Pune

Ceriral Excise Duy, Interest and | Sepiember 2010- 9883 0882 | The Customs,

ACL 1844 Penally February 2011 | Excise and Sewice
| iax Appellaie
| Tribunal Mumbal

The Caniral Salas | Sales Tax, 1999-2000 788 338 | Manharashira

Tax 1958 Interes and Sales Tax Tribunal,

_ Peralty | Mumbay

Cugioms Ac!, Duty and Interest | 2013- 2014 and 26501 14767 | The Customs

1962 2014-2015 | Excisz and Service
| Tax Appeliale

| Tribunal Mumbai.

'Represens amount adjusied by tax aulhorilies agains! iefund recovable for FY 2012-2013 and FY 2014-2015
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ANNEXUREB

to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements of Tasty Bite
Eatables Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to aforesaid Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Act
Referred 1o in paragraph 2lf) In Repor on Olfier

Legal and Regulaiory Requiemenis of the Independent Audilor's Report 1o ithe
Members ol the Tasiy Bile Eaiablos Limited on hic inancial siaiemenis (of the year ended 3 1 March 2019

Opinion
Wwe have audiled the niemal firgnciat controls with reference 10 inancial siatements of Tasty Brie Eaablas Limiied ('thz Company’) as
ol 31 Maich 2012 »» conjunciion with our audit of the inancial s:aiements of the Company for the year endeci on [ha: date.

In our opinion, 1he Company has in all mz =il resgecis, adequaic inteiral financial controis with relarenca 10 inancial slatemenisand
such iniernal financizl conirols wete oparaing ~Tec ey as ai 31 March 2019, based on the internal financisl conirols with reference
o inancial siaiemenis crilena essablished by (he Company considerng 1he essenial components of intemal conidl ssated in the
Guidance Noie on Audit of Imernal Financial Corirols Over Financial Reporing issued by the Instiiuie of Chariered Accounianis of
India ithe "Guidance Note’)

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management and 1he Board of Dircciors are responsible for establishing and mainiaining internat inarciat conirols
based on ihe intemal finaracial conirols with reference (o financial sialemanis crilera established by the Company considering the
esseniial componenis of intemat cortol siated i ihe Guidance Nowe These responsibiliies include the design, impicmentaiion and
mainienance of adequaie intemal inancial conlrols that were oparaiing effecively for ensuting ihe crderty and efficient conduct of it
business. Including adharsnce Lo company's policies, Ihe salequarding ¢f &s asses the prevenion and delection ol frauds and ernors,
the accuracy and compleieness of the accouniing recoids, and ihe imely peeparaiion ol relable fnancial informatian as reguired
under the Companies Aot 2013. (hereinaller icfermad 10 as ihe AQY).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Cur responsibility 1s 1o express an opinton an the Company's nternat inancial coniols with relerenoce to financial staiemen:s based
on ouwr audit. We canducied our audil In accordanar: wiih the Guidance Noie and the: Sinndadds on Augdiiing prescribed under
secion 143(10) ¢f the Act o ihe exteri applicable o an audlt of inlemal financial controls wiih refarance 1o hinarcial siaiemenis
Those Siandards and ihe Guidance Note reguic that we comply with gihical requiscrments and plan and perlom the audt 0 obiain
reasonable assurance aboul whather adequaie inamal financial controls with reference (o financial aiaiermernis were esiablishes and
mainialned and wheiher such corirols operaled effeciively in all material respecs.

Our audii involves perlorming precedures o obkain audil evidence aboul ihe adequacy of ihe internal inancial conirols with referencs
lo ftnancial siaements and their operaiing effectiveness Cur audit of iniernal financial controls wilh reference 1o financial sislemenis
Included obtaining an understanding of such iniemal financial conirols, assessing the risk thai a maienal weakness exisis, andd 131ing
and evalualing the design and operating effec:iveness of iniemal conirol based on the assessedrisk The procedures s¢lected depend
on the auditor's [udgenen:, ncluding tho assessment of the risks of materia! missiaiement of he standalone fnancial siaemenis,
wherher due to fraud or error.

We believe hal the audil evidence wi have oblained 1S sulficient and appropfiaie © povide a basis for our audit opinion on ihe
Company’s iniemal financsal controls with ielerence (o financial stalemenis

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's iniemal inancial conirols with refarence 10 financial siaiemenis is a process designed 10 provide reasonable assLrano?
regarding the rehabiliy of financial reponing and ihic preparaiion of financial siatemenis (or exemnal purpases m accordance with
genselly accepted accouninn principles. A company's iniemal financigl conirols with 1eference 10 financial siaiemenis include
those policies and procediuies that (1) paitain 10 the mamicnance ol recomds thal in reasonable detail, accuralely and (zifly refect
ihe :ransaciions and cispostions of the asseis of ihe company, (2) provide reasonable assurance [hat (ransaciions are recorded

m asly Bile Lalz

e | iminedd



Corporaie information 01-20 Statutory Reposts 21-82 | Financial Statement 83-143

ANNEXUREB

to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements of Tasty Bite
Eatables Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

a3 necessaty 10 pemil preparaion of inancial sialemenis in accordance willt generally accepied accouring panciples, and hai
receipls and expendsures of the company are baing mads only n accofdance wiih authorsarons of managemen: and draciors
ol he company, and {3} provice ieasonabie assurance regarding prevention of fimely deiecion of unaulhorised acquisilion use, of
disposition of the company’s assis that could have a matenal eflec: on the financial s:aicmenis

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

RBecause of Yhe inherent imitavons ol inremal financial controts with refeence 1o financial s@emenis, ncluding the possibiliy of
collusion of impropar managemeni overnde of conmls, matenat missiaiements due (o eror or fracd may coour and not be deiecied.
Also, projections of arny evaluation of the iniemal financial conicols with selerence © financial siatemenis 1o fulure peaods are subjeci
(0 the nsk ihat the internal financial comrols with relerence 10 financial siaiements may bacome inadequale because of changes m
condiions, or that tha degree of compliance with ihe policies or procedures may deleriorate.

For BSR & AssociatesLLP
Chartered Accounlanis
Firm Regisifation No™ 11623 YW/ W - 100024

Raajnish Desai
Place Pure Pantner
Date 16 May 2019 Merbership No. 101180
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BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 March 2019
(Currency - INR in Lakhs, excep! per share datat
Particulars Notes 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plan: and equipmen! 6 8,191.42 761717
Capnal work-In-progress [5] 1,031.95 22191
Inigngible asseis 7 18.31 1454
Financlal asseis
Other hnancial 2sseis 3 35.79 2470
Income lax asseis (nel) . 253.97 17252
Other non Curent asse:s 9 886.61 206372
Total non-current assets (i) 10,419.05 8,624.86
Current assets
inveniornes 10 4,890.31 337512
Financeal asses
Trsde receivables 11 3,838.86 3,680 21
Cash and cash equivalenis 12 775.47 565.76
Bank balances other han cash and cash ecuivalenis 13 8.07 1160
Dervanve Conract assels 14 872.70 185892
Other hnancial asseis 15 218 319.31
Olher curent assels 16 1,873.48 238461
Total current assets(il) 12,059.08 10,662.60
TOTAL ASSETS(I +i)) 22,478.13 19,187.36
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equily share capal 17 256,60 25660
Oither aquily 18 12,943.27 $B87114
Total equity (i) 13,199.87 9,827.74
Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Fnancial labllities

gorawings i9A 2,5681.26 3057 04
Delerad tax liabililies (nel) 33 485.31 50937
Provisions 20 456.99 367.30
Total non-current llabilities(il) 3,523.66 3,833.71

Current liabilities
Financiel liabilies

Bormwings 198 600.00 651.30
Trade pavabies 21
-Toral oulstanding dues of micto eniesprises and small 13.45
CNICIPIses
-Total ouistanding dues of crediiors oiher ihan micro 3,830.29 256764
enterprises and small emierpnses
Othier hnancial liabilitics 22 1,200,286 1,069 14
Other cunent hablliies 23 36.72 1158
Provisions 24 73.98 SIeRels)
Total current liabilities(lil) 5,754.70 5,325.91
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES(i+I+il) 22,478.18 18,187.36
Summary of significant accounting policies 1-6
Notes to the financial statements 6-47
Ths accompanying noies relerad (o above form an intearal pan of the nancial siaiemen:s
As perourrepon of even dale aiached
For B SR & AssociatesLLP For end on behall of the Board of Directors of
Cheartered Accountenls Tasty Bite Estables Limited
Firm Regisiration No' 118221/ W - 100024 CIN: L15418PN1985PLC037347
Raajnish Desali Abhijit Upadhye  Ashok Vasudevan Gaurav Gupta Minal Talwar
Partner Managing Director Chalrman Chief Financial Officer Company Secrelary
Mambearship No; 101190 DIN: 075413741 DIN; 00575574
Mace Pune Piace Fune
Daic 16 May 2018 Daie: 16 May 2019
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STATEMENT OF PROTIT AND LOSS

for the year ended 31 March 2019

ercy - INf N Lakhs, excepl pef share dato)

turr

Particutars Note 9 31 March 2018
Revenue from opaiaions 25 2963230
Orhes Income 26 1,822.84 67868
Total income 35,5615.80 30.310.98
Expenses
Cosiz ol marerials consumad | 27 20,082.92 17.136.17
Purchase of Siock-in-Trade | - 15227
Changes in inveniones of inished goods, siock-in-irade and work in 28 (398.31) (187.79I
progress
Excise duty - — & 2499
Employee beneliis expense 20 2,600.53 2.120.94
Finance cosis 30 432.80 233.99
Depreciaion and amofmsanon cxpense 31 1,264.94 1,097 .62
Othet expenses 32 5,826.29 5,608.7¢
Totat expenses 30,808.17 26,206.98
Profit before income tax 4,707.63 4,104.00
Income tax expense ,
- Curent 1ax | 3 1,842.79 134865
- Deferred 1ax (credil} /charge 33 {141.48) 10970
1,701.31 1,458.35
Profit after tax for the year 3,006.32 2,645.65
Other comprehensive Income / (Ioss)
ltems thai will nox be reclassiied subsequenily 10 profit or loss: i P—
- Remneasuremenil of defined benelh liabiity (assen) ) i (50.78) (16,281
- ncome iax relziad 10 items thar will not ba reclassified 10 profil 17.74 16.02
orloss
iems tharwill be reclassified subsequenily 0 profit or loss
- Deferied gain/ilossesi on cash flow hedges 386.81 (150.511
- Income tax relaicd 10 1tlems thal wdll be reclassified 10 profil orinss {(135.17) 52.09
Other comprehenslve Income / (toss) for the year, net of tex 218.60 (128.69)
Total comprehensive Income for the year 3.224.92 2,516.98
Earnings per equity share (nomlnal value of share INR 10) 36
{1) Basic 117.16 103.10
(2i Diluied 117.18 103.10
Summary of significant accounting policies 1-5
Notes to the financlal statements 6-47
The ACCoMpanying nOISS reienad 1o above 1orm ain integral e ol ihe Inancial slaiements,
As gerour repornt of even date aniached
For B SR & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accouniants Tasty Blte Eatables Limited
Firmn Regisiration No 11623 1W/ W - 100024 CIN:L15419PN1985PLC0O37347
Raajnish Desai Abhijit Upadhye  Ashok Vasudevan Gaurav Gupta Minal Talwar
Pariner Managing Direclor Chairman Chisl Financlal Oficer Company Secretary
Membership No: 101190 DIN-07543741 DIN: 00575574
Hace Pune Place: Pune
Date 16 May 2019 Da-e 16 May 2019
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Currency - INR I Lakhs, except por share data)

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Profit before 1gx 4,707.63 410100
Adusimenis lor
Deprecialon and amonisaiion 1.264.94 109762
Loss/(profit) on sale of hxed asse!s - £.84
Profit on sale of invesimenis - i680)
Bad debis wrizen off 8.16 377
Allowance lor doubiful advances/receivables 17.98 445
Ligbililies wiiten back o the extent no longer required (1.30) (150}
Recevables/ depost written off = 357
Unrealised foreign exchange loss 301.15 6771
Employes share based paymant expense 108.98 2857
Fingnce cosl 432.80 23389
Interest Income (11.83) {3193}
Operating profit before working capltal changes 6,828.51 5,530.30
Working capital adjustments:
Change in rade payables 1,266.21 56477
Change in other fingncial liabilities (currany 224.41 (64 58}
Change in provisions 16.94 595b
Change inolrier currant liabiliies (4.86) 0.84
Change in lrade recaivables (214.53) {407 89}
Change in invenories (1,615.19) (61683}
Change inoinier inancial asseis {non - cusrent) (1.09) 091
Change in oiher inancial assels (cunent) 347.12 (322 45)
Change in Oiher non curmen! 45sels 120.07 (14861}
Change in oifisr curent a5sels - 411.13 81983
Cash generated from operating activities 7,478.72 3,673.56
Direci iaxes paid (net of refunds, if any) (1,924.24) (155641}
Net cash from operating actlivitles (A) 5,554.48 2,117.16
B. Cash flow from investing activities: -
Purchase of propeny. plani and equipment including inlangible aseess, capital (3,026.23) (1,05587
work in progress and movernent in capral agvances
Procesds from sale of propeny, plani and equipmen: 3.97 002
Proceeds rom sale of invesiment ined - 6.80
"Procesds from olher deposiis with banks 3.86 29867
(net of placed during the period, Including margin money !
iNierest received 11.83 4063
Net cash used in Investing activities (B) (3,006.57) (708.75)

m asly Bile Calailas Limnad
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

(Currenoy - INR in Lakhs, except pes share daial

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
C. Cash flow from financing activities:

Buy-back ¢f 1% Non-Curmulaiive, Nor-Convellible, Redeemable Prelarance (1,175.61)

Shares

Repaymen:s of shorl-:em bomowings (net) (104.54} (709.65)
(Repaymen of] / proceeds from long erm borowings (609.23) (27696
Paymeni of dvicend lincluding dividend disiribution 12x) - includes INR @ 12 lakh (61.98) (61.77)
(2018 Nil) paid for psior years

inerest paid (387.86) (13247)
Net cash used in financing activitias (C) (2,339.20) (1,180.85)
Nel Increase In cash and cash equivalents (A+8+C) 208.71 227.55
Cash ard cash equivalents ai the beginning of the year 5686.76 33921
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 775.47 566.76

Components of cash and cash equlvalents (refer note:12)

PARTICULARS ' 31 March 2019, 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Cash on hand 2.7 243 289
Balonces with banks
In currgn: accounis 772.72 56433 336.32
775.47 566.768 339.21
Summary of significant accounting policies 1-5
Notes to the inanclal statements 6-47

The accompanying noies referred 10 above lorm an iniggral pan of the financial siaiemenis

As perout teport of even daie anached

ForBSR & AssociatesLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Dilrectors of
Chartered Accountants Tasty Bite Eatables Limlted

Einn Regisiration No: 1162371W/ W - 100024 CIN:L15418PN1985PLC037347

Raajnish Desai Abhijit Upadhye  Ashok Vasudevan Gaurav Gupta Minal Talwar
Pariner Menaging Direclor Chairman Chief Financial Oficer Compeny Secretary
Membership No: 101190 DIN: 07543741 DIN: 00575574

Place Pune Flace Fune

Dawe: 16 May 2019 Dz 16 May 20713
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Corporaie information 01-20 Statutory Reposts 21-82 | Financial Statement 83-143

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

{Currency - INR I Lakhs, except pei share data)

1. Background

Tasty Bite Eatabies Limvied (the Company/) sa company domiciled in Indlia wath iis regisiened office silualed at Shivgjinagar, Punie
and 11§ manufaciunng factiy near Pune Tne Cormpany has Been incorpoaiad under the provisions of Indian Companies Aci 8nd
its equity shares are lisied on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limiied and he National Stock Exchange Limited The Compeny 510
the business of manufacturing and selling 'Prepared Foogs’

2. Basisof preparation

21

2.2

2.3

2.4

Statement of compliance

These financial siaiemenis Nave been prepared in accordance with Indian Acccuniing Standargs (Ind AS) as per he
Companizs (Indian Accouniing Siandards) Rules, 2016 natified under Seciion 133 ol Companies Ac., 2013, lihe "Act) and
other relevant provisions of the A

Dezialls of the Company’s sighificani accounting policies aie included in Noie 3,
The inancial sialements were aulhcnised lor issue by the Company’s Board ¢f Direclors on 18 May 2019
Functional and presentation currency

These fimancial sialements arg preseniad in Indian Rupeas (INR). which is aiso the Company’s funclional curency. All
amowunls have been reunded-off 1o e nearest lakh {exocpt per share daia) 10 iwo decimals, unless othenwise indicaled,

Basis of measurement
The financial siatemenis have been prepared on the msioncal cost Dasis except (of the fciowing tems:

items Measurement basis

Cerain inancial asseis and liadililies (ncluding Fair value

denvaiive instnmen:ss

Liabillies (or cash-selled share-based payment Reler Noie 45.

AEhgements. = e — = ST

Nel defined benefr (asscll/ liabilily Fair Value of plan asse!s less present value of defined
benell obligalions

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing ihese financizl siaiements, managemen: has made judgements, €slimales and assumptions :hai affoci the

applicaion of accouniing polizies and the reporied amounis of asses. lisbiliies, Income and axpenses. Aciual resulis may

differ from these esimaics.

Esurmaies and ungerying assumpions are reviewed on an ongoing basia. Revisions 'o accounling esiimares afe recognized

prospecively

Judgements, Assumptions and estimatlon uncenrtalnties

Information abioul judgements made in apphying accouning policies, assumpiicns and esimalion uncerainties hat have

Ihe most sigrifican! elfecis on “he amounis rcognizedrsignficant rigk resuling it & malenal adjusimient n the firancial

sialemenisis inciuded n the following notes:

Nole 3.3 - Estimalion of useiul life used by the management for properly, plant and equipment and inangible asse:

Note 43 - Maasuremeni ol defined benafit obligations key acluarnal assumplions

Nola 34 - recognition angd measuremen: of provisions and coniingences: key assumpiions aboul the likelihond and
magniiude of an ouillow of resources

Neie 37 - Lease classification

SEAnnual Repon 201819



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

25

26

EA -

{Currency - INRin Lakhs, excep: per shawe 329}

Noie 33 - Esiimgiion of curren: 1ax expense and iax payabie
Nowa 33 - Recognition of defenred iax asse!

Note 17 - (mpairment of Trade Recetvables
Measurement of fair values

A number of accouniing policies and disclosures require the measuremeni ol fair values, lor boih financial and non-financial
asse!s and liabities.
Tha Company has an axablished control frameawork with respeet 10 messuiemen: of falr values. The Company’s board of

directors has overall responsibilliy lor ihe establisheent and oversight of the Company's nisk management framework

The exsiaplished ramework 8 revicwed and mor.:oied by ihe Chigl ~arcial officer, which indludes ihe iesponsibiiiy lor
reviewing ard mortoring all significzn: 3 value mcasutemenis ‘naluding leves 3fair valuos ZHief financial officer regulany
feviews significant unobservable npuis and valuation adiusimenis

Sgnifican; valugion issues ae reponed :o ihe Company’s Board of Direciors,

Fair values are calegonzed inio different levels n a Fair vaiue nigraichy based on npuls used m ihe valuarion iechrigues as

follows.

Leval T quoied prices unadiusied) n acive marka!s lor idantical assels or liabilies

Level 2 nputs oiher ihan quoied proes ncluded in level 1 hat are obsevable for the assel o7 habily, aither directly (e as
prices) of indirectly {1¢ denved from prices)

Leved & inpuis for the assel of tiabiliy that are not based on observable marka: daia (unobsevabl inpues).

When measurng ihe fairvalue of an ssset of liabilily, the Company uses observatie marke: data aslar as possible If Ihe inpurs

used ic measure fair value of agse: or liability fall imio differerit levels of far value hicrarchy. then the [gir value measurenmeni

is calegonzed in s eniirety in Ihe same level of fair value tierarchy as ihe lowest levet npul iha: s significant (o the eniire
MCIsLEMEen!

The Company recogniseas lranslers boiween levels of 1he (airvalue hierarchy at the end of the reporting petiod during which
Ihe change has coeuned.

Furhcrinformaiion about the assumpions made in measuring (@ values s included in following noies:

Noie A7 - Financid insirumenis

Now 45 - Employes Shared basad paymeni,

Current-non-current classification

The Company presents assels and liabililies in ihe balance sheel based on curreny non-cunent Qlassificaion.
Assets

Arn asse: is classified as curren when 1 satislies any of the lollowing cniena:

3} ilisexpecied o be reaized in, oris niended (or sate or congumption in the Company's nomal operaling cycle,
b)Y wisheld primarly for ihe purpase of being iraded:

o) Insexpacied o be realized wiihin 12 monifis .21 INE reporting dale, or

d) Iuscashor cashequivalentunless itis resiricted [fom being exchanged or used (0 setlle aliabiliy for ai leas: 12 monthg
afler the reponing aie

sly Bile Lalapies L imned



Corporaie information 01-20 Statutory Reposts 21-82 | Financial Statement 83-143

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

{Currency - INRin Lakhs exxcapl per share datal

Curreni asses include cumeni ponion of non-cuireni fnancial assels. All other asseis are classified 3s non-cureni.

Liabifitles
Allablity 1s dassified as curent when i saushes any of ihe (cllowing criteris®

a)  inisexpeciedio be seiled in e Company'’s normal opeyating cyclc;
b)  risheld primarily forihe pueposs of being Iraded:
¢l Eisexpecicd o be serted within 12 monihs afier the icporing daier or

d  The Company docs nol have an uncondirional ngi: 2o defer seitlement ol 1he hability (or 3t least 12 months alier 1ho
reponing daie. Terms of a tiabillty 1hai could, 8! the oprion of the couniempany. result in i:s sailement Dy the issue of
equily msiumants do nol affec iis classification

Cusnient llisbiiies Include current porion of non-curert inancial liabilitles All other liabilitles are classhied as non-cumrent
Celared tax asse!ls and habdiiies are classified as non-cunent assais and liabiises.

Operating cycle
Operaling cycle 1sthe ime beiween 1he acquisition of 3sse:s {0y procesaing andtheu realisation in casti or cash equivalenis.
The opersling cyele of the Company is less ihan 12 monihs

3. Significant accounting policies

3.1

3.2

Foreign Currency transaction
Transaciion in foreign curancies are transtaied into e funcional cuency of 1he Company al the exchange isies on ike
dateof 1he iransactonor an average aia Tf the average rale appromaies the aciual 1aie at the dale of the iransacion

Moneary assels and liabililes denominaied in (oreign curnencies are rienslaed inlo the funcional curency at ihe exchange
rate &t [he reporning dsaic. Non-imonetary asseis and ligbiliies denominaled in a forign curency are tisngl aied inja funciional
currency ai the exchange ralc when the fair value was derermined Non-monetiary assals and liabilliies thal are measured
based on hisiodical costin a forgign cunrency are iranstaied al the exchange rate al the daie of transaclion

Exchange difference are recogmsed In profir andt toss excepi exchanges ditlerences arising lrom ihe Iranslation of the
qualifyng cash flow hedges 10 1he exceni the hedges are elfeciive, wihich are recogrized m OCH

Financial Instrument

I3 Recognition and inltial measurement
Trade rcceivables are inikally recognised when shey arc onginaicd, Al aiher financizl asseis snd inancia! liabliies are
niigly recognsed when the Company becores a pany 10 the contractual provisions of the nstument.

A financizl asser of inancial liabiliiy s ininally measured at lar value plus, for aniiem nel at far value ihrough profii and
Yoss {FVTPL. transaciion cosis 1hat are direcily airibuiable 1 18 acquisiion or issue,

il.  Classlfication and subsequent measurement
Financial assels
Onininal ccecognition, a financial assetis dassified as measured at

- amorised cost

- Farvalug through profit and loss (FVTPL)

SEUANnuUAl Repon 201819 m



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

100

{Currency - INRin Lakhs, excep: per shawe daa)

Financial assals are not reclassified subsequen: o their inal recognition, excep: if and in ihe pariod the Company
changes 115 business model for managing finandGial assers.

A financial asse! is measurad at amorised cos: Il it meeis hoth of 1he lollowing condiiions and is noi designaied as al
FVTPL

The a5set 15 heldwithin a business model whose objecive 1810 hold asse:s 16 colleci coniraclual cash flows; and

the contraciuatterms of Ihe financial assor give fise on specified daies io cash fows hai are solely payments of
principal and Inicies: on the principal amoun cuisianding,

All inancial assets {excepl for desivainve coniract asseis) nol measured al amomsed cosi a8 descnbed above are
mcasumd ai FVTPL On initial recogniiion, 1he Company may irevocably designate a financial assct ihat oiherwise
maels e requiremsnis 10 be measured ai amonised Coat a5 ai FVTPL if doing so eliminates of sigaficanily reduces
an accounting mismaich ihal would olherwise anse

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractusel cash flows are solely payments of principal and Interest
For Ihe purpose of Ihs assessment ‘principal’is defines as the (airvalue of inancial asse! on iniial recognition ‘inleresr’
18 dafined as oonsideralion for lime value of monsy and for credi! risk associaied with the pNncifa: Mo 1 041:$:anding
dunng a paricular pencd of lime and oiher Pasic 1eading nsks and coss (&g liquidity nsk and adminigirative COsis). a3
well as prof margin.

In assessing wheihar the conlraciuat cash lows are solely paymen:is of prancipal and intems!, the Company considets

contraciual lerms of ihe instrumeni This includes assessing whather the financial asse! coniaing a contraciual 1em
ihal could change the tming or amount of coniraciual cash lows such that I would noi mee! this condiion. 1n making
inig assessmeni. (he Company considers:

contingent cvenis thai would changa 1he amouni 2ng 1iming of cash fows;

ierm ihatwould adjus the coniracual rate, Including variable interes? raie features;

prepayment and exiension leaiures, and

ierm thal Imiis the Company/s claim 1o casit llows lor specified assers le.g. non- recourse feaiuces)

A prepayment fealure is consistent welih he solely paymenis of principal and inieres: efiienon il the prepayment amount
subsianiially represenis unpald amount of principat and inreres: on prircipal amount ouisanding, which may mctude
reasonable addionat compensation for earlly 'ermination of contsact Additionally, for a financial asset acquired on
a significan premium or discount 1o 1t coniraciual par amouni, a feaiurs al parmils or requlte prepaymeant ai an
amouni that substartially represents the coniraciual par smouni plus accrued (bul unpaidi coniraciual Inlerest twhich
may also include reasonable additions! compensanon lor eary ierminallon} is tieated as consisien: wiit Lhis criteron if
:he fairvalue ol \he prepaymeni feaiure is significant anniual recognilion

Financial asseis Subsequen! measurement gains andlosses

financyl asse:s ai FYTRL Thase asse!s are subsequenily measured at far value. Nei gaing and losses,
including any interes: or dividend 1ncome, are recognised m prolil or loss
However refer nota 47 for derivatives designaied as hedging insliumsnls.
Fancial asseis ai amorised cost | These asseis afe subsequently measyred gl amoriised cost using the affeciive
niorost method. The amoftised cost 1S reducad by impairmen! 105563 interest
income, foreign exchange gaing and 10sses and impairmen! are recognissd
profi orloss, Any gain or (0ss on derecognition is recognised in profil of loss

asly Bile Lalapies | imned
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Financfal labllitles: Classihcatlon, subsequent measurementand gslns and losses

Financial liabiliies are clasafied a5 measwed ai amotised cosi of FVTPL A financial Hiabilty is classified as ai FVTPL f il s
classified as held- for- rading or i s desgnated as such on Initidl recagnilion Finencial liabiliies ai FVTPL are measured al
fairvalue ang not gains and losses, including any imerest expanse, are eoognised in profit or loss. Other inancial liabiliies
are subsequentlly measurect 31 amortised 5ot using the effocive Inerest method Inienest expense and loreion exchange
gains and losses arc recognised in profi: ortoss. Any gain or loss on derecogaiiion Is also recognised in profit or loss. Refer
rowe 47 for inancial liabillues designated as hed@ing insirumen;

li. Derscognition
Financial assets
The Company derecogniass a financial asses when the contraciual fighis 10 1he cash lows [fom jhe inancial asse:
expire, or il transfers the rights 1o receive 1he contraciual ¢ash lows N 6 ransaction in which substaniially all of the risks
and iewards of ownerstiip of ihe inancial asse! are ransterred or in which :ke Compeny neithar iransfers o ralaing
substanilally all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does nor 1eiain conirol of ihe fnancial asser.

IHifie Company enters into isnsaciions whereby it iansfers asseis recognised onits balance sheei but ietans eimher all
or subsianially all of 1he nsks and rewards of the uanslarred assers, ihe iransferred assess are nol derecognised.

Filnanclal llabllitles
The Company derecognises a financial liabilify wher iis coniraciual obhigations are discharged o cancelled or xpie.

The Company also derecagnises a financial liability when s ierms are modified and 1he cash fows underthe modified
ierms are subsiantally different In this case, a new financial hability bassd on the modified 'eimis is recoanised ai lair
value. The difference baiween ine camying amaount of the iinancial liability exiinguishied and the new fnancial habilily
with modified tems s recognised in profi ortoss.

fv. Offsetting
Financlal asse1s and financial liabifiies ac offse! and the nel amoun: presenied in the balance shest when, and only
when, the Company currenily has alegally erlorceable right (¢ set off ine amounis and it iniends either 1o setltie them
on a nei basis or 10 reslise Ihe asse: and setle the ability simullaneously

v. Derlvalive inanclalInstrurnent and hedge sccounting.
The Company holds dervaiv financial ngrumenis 1o hedge iis ([oraign currency and inersst rale sk exposues

Dertvalives are inilially measured at [air value Subsequent 1o inilial recogniton, denvaiives are measured ai lalr value,
and changes 1herein are generally recognized in profil or loss.

Trie Company designaies cerain dervaiives as hedging nsiruments to hedge 1the vanabifity n cash lows associaled
with highly probable lorecasi 1ransachons ansing from changes in fareign exchange raies and nieest aies

Al ncepiion of designaiad hedge relaionships, the Company documents the risk managemant obiactive and siraiegy
forunderiaking the hedge. The Company also documenis the economic relationship bewween 1he hedged item and
1he hadging insirument are expaciad 1o offset each ather

Cash flow hedges

When a derivaiive is sosignaied as 3 cash flow hedging insitumaent, the cffective porion of changes in the faic value
of the derivaiive Is recognized in OCland accumulated 1n other eqully under ‘elfeciive portion of cash flow hedges.
The elfecive porion of changes in the fair value of 1he derivative that is recognized in OCLis limited 1o 1he cumulative
changeinfairvaiue of ihe hedgetem, determined on a presani value basis, from incepicn of the hedge. Anyirefleciive
porion of changes in 1he fair value of ihe derivaiive 1s iecognized immediately in praf or loss
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When the hedged forecass iransaciion subsequenily residis in ihe recognilion of a noninancial llem such as
inveniory, he amauni accumeiaiad in oiher equity 8 nduded direcily in the inltial cost of the non-iinancial tem when
n1s reccgnised. For all other hedged lorecasied ransaction, the amount accumuiaied in oiher equity 18 reclassified 10
profii o loss In [he 5ame pencd or periods duang which the hedged expecied luiure cash lows alfeci proft or 10ss.

if a hedge no longer meels the erlenia for hedge accounimg of 1Mz fiedge iInstrumient 18 SOlS, expires, 1R 1erminated or
iz exercised then hedge acoouniing is discounied nrospecively When hedge accounang for cash llow hedges s
disconiinued, he amount the Has baer, & cumulaied inolhier equity remaings these untll, for a hedge ol a iransaciion
resulting In recognition of 2 non-financial tem i is Included in the non-financial iem’s cost on 118 inital recognilion or,
for other cash fiow hedges, i is reclassfied io prolit orloss in the same perned or peneds as e hedge expecied fulure
cash fiow aflect ol orloss

If the hedge {uiure cash llow are not expecied 10 occeur, then ihe amounts 1has have been accumulaled inolher gquity
are immediaily seclassified (o profil orloss

3.3 Property. plant and equipment
i. Racognition and measurement

lems of property, plant and equipment are measured ai cos!, which includes capiahsed bortowing costs, less
accumulzied depreciaiion and accumutaied impainmen: 1osses, il any.

Cosl of an licm of propey, pian and. equipment coMPrses 1S purchase price, including Imecit dulics and non-
relundalte purchase laxes, afler deducing trade discounis and rebates. ary diracily annbuiable cost of bringing
ihe tem 1o iis working condltion for iis inlended use and esimatagd cosis of dismantling and removing the tlem and
resionng (he sitc on which it is tocated.

Il sigrificans pars of an llem of properny. plant and cquipmenthave dilferent useful lives, inen they are accounied [or as
sepafaie ilems (major components) of propery, plani and equipment,

Any gain of loss on disposal of an iiem of property. plant and cquipment is recognised in profi Of 10sS.

fl. Subsequentexpendliture
Subsequent expenditum & capitalised cnly 11 is probable thal e luiure economic benehis associa:ed wilh :he
experdiiure will flow to lite Company

fil. Deprecilation
Depieciation s calculaied on cost of ilems of property, plant and equipment loss therr estimizied resdual values over
their estimated uselullives using the siraight Iine method and 1s generally recognised in the stalement of profi and 0ss,
Assers acquired undgr finance leases are deprecaied over the shorer ol the lzase iem and therr useful tves unless

il 15 reasonably cenain (hai ihe Company will obiain ownership by ihe end of the ease ierm Frachold 1ang 1§ Nt
deprecised.

The esimated uselul lwes of iem of propeny. plant and equipmen: fof the curien) and comparaive penods are as

follows

Cateqory of asset Useful e foltowed (In years) | Useful life as per Schedule Il (In years)
Factory Building 3 30
Eleciricalinstallauons 10 10
Plani and equipmen: 18 156
-Form Plale 2 15
Office eguipment 5 5
Fumiiure & Fixies 10 10
Vehicle .. 0 | 10
Compuiers 3 3
-Server © 5
-Prnier S 3
Lab Eguipment 10 10
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Depreciaiion maethod, vseful ives and residual values are reviewed ai sach financial year-end and adjusied if
appropriaie: Based on iechnical svaluation and consequent advice, 1he management belicves that its eslimasies of
uselullives as gven above bes! represenis ihe peiod over which [Tie managemen! expec’s Lo use [hess asae!s

Assaisinsialled on leasenold premises are geprecisied over the period of lease. Freenold land is nol depreciaied,

Depreciaion on addinons idisposals) dunng 1ha year s provided on a pro-rara basis 1 from (upo) 1he date on which
2s88¢ is ready lor use (disposed of)

intangible assets

Intangible assais are iniially measured 3t cost Such miangible ass31s are subsequently measured ai cos! less accumulaled
amoriisation and any accornulaied impairmeni losses. Subsequent expendiiure s capiialised only when it Increases the
fuire economic benefils embodied in ihe spacific assel 10 which il retaias. All oiher expendiilirs 18 recognised In profil or
l0ss as ncued

Amornisaion is calculaied 16 wide off the cosi of inlangible assels less their estimated resdoal value over thelr esiimaled
usefulives vaing straight line method and is included in depraciation and amortisaiion In Staiement of Profir and Loss.

The estimaied uselul ves are as follows:

IAssat Estimated useful life
Computer Soitware Syears

Amorisaiion meihod, useful lives and residual values are revievwed ai the end of each fnancal year and adjusted I
appropriate.

Inventories

The cos: of inveniory is based on weighied average formula, and includes expendiiute incuned m acquining 1he mveniofes,
Production or conversion cost and other costs ncumed in bringing 1hem [o ihelr present locaton and condition In case of
manufaciured INveniony anc work-m-pProgress, cost INCuces an appropriate share of fixed produciion overneads hased on
normal opeadting capacily.

Net realisable value 15 the esiimaied seling price in ihe ordinary course of business less (hie estimated cosis of completion
and selling expense. The nei realisable value of work-in- progress is detemined with reference 10 1he selling price of related
finished produc:s Tihe comparison ol cost and nal realizabie value 1s made on an ilem-by-lem basis

Raw maierals, componen;:s and oiher supplies held (or use In production of fnished produc!s are net willen down below
cosi excep! in cases where matenal prices have declinea and 1 is esimaied ihat the cost of fimshiad producis will excesd
their nel realizable value

Impairment of financial instruments
The Company recognises toss allowances lor expecied credit losses on financial a53eis measured ai amoriised cost
Al esch reporiing daie. the Company assesses wheiher financial assels casmied at amortsed cost are credi-impaked A
financial assel s ‘credil- impalied when one or morte eventis ihal have a deirimeraal Impact on ihe aslimaied fsivre cash
flows of rhe financial asse! hava accurmas,

BEvidence tha! a inancial asset 1s oredi- impatred indudes ihe (dllowing observable data:

- significani inancial difficuliy of e borower of Issuer

- abmach of coniraci such as a defaull or being pasi due for 180 days or more,

- ihe restiuclunng of aloan or acvance by ihe Company on iemms ihat the Company would noi consider othenvise,
it 5 probable thal the borowerwill enier bankrupicy or ciher financial reorganisaton; or

1he disappearance ¢f an acilve markei for a scourity because of inanclat difficultics,
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Measurement of expected credft loss

The Company measures loss allowances a! an amaount equal 1o ifeiime expecied credii losses. 1.oss allowances lor irade
feceivables are always measured st an amoun! equal o fctime expecied credi losses. Lifetime expected credil losses are
ihe expzoed credit losses thar rasull Irom all possible defaull avents over the expecied lifs of a inancial insiument. Tra
maximum penod considered when eslimaling expeciad ofedd losses 18 e madmum conlraciual petod over which e
Company is cxposed io GIEdit NSk,

When deiermining whether 1he credii risk of 3 financial 8sse! has increased significantly since intial recognition and when
estimaling expected credi 1osses. ihc Company considers ressonable and supporiabie inlormaiion that § relevant and
avalable withour undue ces o effon This ncludes both quaniialive and qualiave information and analysis, based on the
Cormpany’s hisiorical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward - looking informaiion,

The Company assumes the [he crediinsk on a linancial 2ssa1 has incraased significantly if iLis more than 80 days pasi dua.
The Company considers a financial asset 10 be in default when

- ihe borrower is uniikely Lo pay s credil obligallons to the Company in {ull without recourse by the Company (6 acions
such as realising security (if any Is hold), or

the financial 355¢: 15 180 days or more pas due

Expecied credil losses are a probabilily-weighted esimale of credi; losses. Credil losses are measured as he preseni valug
of all cash shonifalts (1. ihe difference baween the cash flows due 1o 1he Company in accordance will ¥ie conrac: and
he cash lows thai Ihe Compary xpects o recenvel, Loss allowantes loy fnarcial asseis measurad 3! amonised cosl are
deducied from the gross carmying amour of 1he 838l

The gross cafrying amount of a fimancial asset is weitien off {enher parially or in full) 1o the exien: ihat 1here 1s 0o realisic
prespact of recovery. This is generally tha wase when the Company dezasnmas ha. e delas: does not have assa.s of
gources of Income 1hat could generaie sulficient cash flows io repay ha amounis subjec! (o e wrila- off, Howaver, financial
asseis hai arewimizn off could stili he subjec 10 enforcemant aciivinies N order 1 comply with the Campany's pracedures
for recovery of amounis dua.

3.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

Inangible assers thal have an indafinite uselul life and not subject 1o amotization are resied annually for impaimmeny, or
more lreguenily if evenis or changes in circcums:ances indicaie [hat 1hey migh be impaied Oiher asseis are 'asicd lor
impaiment whenever even:s or changes In circumsiances INdIcaie: iial ihe canymg amount mighl nat be recoveras:s. An
imparrment 10ss 15 recognized for he amount by which e asseis carying amount exceads 18 recoverable amoun The
recoverable arouniis the higher of an asset's (air vatue less cosis of disposat andvalue in use. For the purpoae of assessing
impaimeni, assc's are grouped &t ‘he lowes: lovels for which they are separaicly identiisble cash infiows for which are
largely independent of the cash Inlows from oiher asseis or group of assets (Cash-generaiing Lnis), Non-financial asscis
ihai suffered animpairment ars revicwed (or possible reversal of the ymparmen: & 1he end of each reponing perod

13

3.8 Employee benefits
i.  Short-term employee benefits
Shor 1etm employee benefit obligations aic measured on an undiscounied hasis and are expansed as ihe telaied
service 18 provided. A liability is recogmsed for the amoun: expecied o be naid. if the Compary has a present tegal
of constnuciive obligation 10 pay 1his amourtt a8 a resuli of past service provided by Ihe employee, and Ihe amount of
obligaton can be esimaled reliably.
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Defined contributlon plans

A Cefined conirbuton plan 1s a posi-employmen: benefil plan under which an eniily pays fixed conbuions nio a
separate envily and will have nolegal or constructive obligallon to pay furtheramounts The Company makes specihed
monthly coriributions iowards Government adminisiered providen lung scheme. Otligations lor coninbuiions 20
defined contribution ptans are recogrised as an employee benefit expense i profii or (oss in the: periods during which
the related sewices are cndered by employtes.

Prepadconinbulions are reoognised s an asse! 1o heaxien! thalacash relund of a seduction in fulure paymenisis avatiable

Defined beneht plans

A defined bonefit plan is 3 post-employment benefit plan other than a defined coniribution plan The Company’a nel
obligalion in respeci of defined banefil plans 1s calculaied separaély for each plan by esiimaiing the amount of [ulure
benefit hat employees have saimed in the cuneni and pnor perods. discouning tha: amouni and deduciing the (air
valug of any plan asseis

The calculaion of defined benefit obligations 18 perfonmed annually by a qualilied indepandent aciuary Lsing the
peojected unii creclit maihod, When the calculaion resulis in a poleniial assei forihe Company, the recognised asses is
Imited 10 1he present value of ecoromic benefit avalable in the formof any [uiuse efunds from the plan of reductions
in future coniribuiions 10 the ptan (ihe asse1 calling'). In order 10 calculaic ihe present value of economic benefils,
consiceration 1s given 1o any minimum [unding requirements

Remeasuremenis ol ihe nei deined benefilliability, which comprise aciuanial gains and 10sses, 1he (eiurnon plan asseis
(excluding inerest) and 1he cflcet of Ihe asse: celing (if any, excluding inerest), are recognised in OCI. The Company
determines the rai inierest expense (income) on (he nat defined benefit liabilily izsset), aking into acoour:. any
changes in she net defined benefit abiity (assai) duiing the period as @ resull of coniributions and benefit paymenis.
Net imerest expense and olher expenses relaied 10 defined beneh: plans are recogrised in profi: or loss

When ihe benefiis of ihe plan are changed or when plan is cursded ihe resuliing change in benefil that relaies 10 pasi

seIvice (Past SeIVICE Cost' of Past Seivice gain) or he gan or lass on cunalmant s recognised mmediaiely in pofl of loss
The Company (coognises asin and losses on e se 0! of 2 dofined bencfit planwhen the setilement cocurs.

Otherlong-tertn employee benefits

The Company’s nzt obligation in espec: of oiher long-ierm emplovee benefiis {compensaied absences) is the
amoun of fuiure banefii that employees have earned in reium [or their service in the cumen! ang prot penods. that
benefitis discounted (o delerming 1is present valus, and ihe fair value of any ielaied asseis is deducied, The obligation
is measured on the basis of an annual indapenden! aciuaral valuation using ihe Projecied Uri Credi method
Remeasuremen:s gains or losses are recognised in profii or less in he penod inwhich they arise

Employee Shared based payment

Specified employees of the Company were aligible for equity seitled siock opaons under Preferred Biand Inc’s (P8I
Inc. or the Holding Company’s) 2009 Nen-Quatilied Siock Option and Eguly Plan ihe Equity Plan’. However, during
‘he year 2015 3 value pool agreemen: was eniered inlo, by and beiween PBI Inc, the Company and the holders of
ouisiznding options (‘Holders'), wherein PBIInc and the Holders agread i cancelthe Oplions and 1esminaic the Gran
Agresmens In exchange [or a consideration payable by PBlInc. i fieu of such cancellation of unvesled opaonsto Ihe
emplovees of the Company.

In socordance wiin Ind-AS 102, the classificanon of lhe share-based paymen: fransaciion depends on the nalure of
the award granied and whelher (he enlily has an ohligation o sellle the ransacion and 1if 1 enfily has ether an
obligation 1o sotlle in iis own equity Instruments or no obligation © setle a1 all then the ransaction is acoounied as
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Equity Setled Since, the Company does not have any obligaiion 1o reimburse corresponding cos: of share based
paymerr: Itangaciion 1o PBIAC, 1t has classfied the saitlement as Equiy Seilled.

Since the amoun: of cash payment Is pre-determined by ihe Belding Company Hased on he Value Pool agreement
and the empioyess covesed were specifically mentioned in the said agreemen, the Company is of the view 1hal (he
share baszd payment shall be measures a1 such amount agreed since the Company does noi have any separsie
obligation owards the scitlemen:

Revenue
. Saleofgoods
Revenue Irom sale of goods inthe course of ordinary aclivities is measured 8t the fairvalue of the consigeration received
orrexsivable, netol riums, rade discounts and volume rebales Thisinier aliainvolves discouniing of the consideranion
due 10 e present value Il payment exiends beyond normal Credi! 1ema Revence 15 recognised when the significant
1isk and rewards of ownership of goods have been iranslened 10 the buyer, rseovary of ihe consideration 1s probable,
the associated 008! and possible reium of goods can be esiimaied raiably. there 1s no conlinuing cllecave conigol
ovex, of managenal mvolvement with, ine gcods. and the amoun! of revenue can be measured seliably. The timing of
iranslers of risks and ewards vares depending on the individual terms of sale

Il.  Exportincentive
Exportincenlives are recognises when the nghi to recewe credii a3 per:he terms of incentves is esiablished in tespeclt
olhe expoas made and when -hese is no sigmificani unceaingy regarding the ulimaie collecnon of the relevant oxpon

procesds.

This is the first 521 of the financial s1aiements where Ing AS 1156 has been apptind Changes 1o significant accounting
policies are described in Nole 4

3.10 Recognition of interest income or expense: “t”

311

Interest ncome 18 recognised using effeciive inigrest method. The ‘effeciive imeresi ra1s 15 he 3ie tha! exacily discounts
estimated [ulure cash payments or receipls through the expecied life of inancial inslrument 1o;

- ihegross carrying amount of the financial 83seis, of

the amorised cos: of the inancial liabifity

Incalculziing rierest income and expense, the effecive inigrest (e 15 apglicd 10 1he gross canying amoun:; of INe aseis when
asselis noicredi - impaired) or 1o the armodised cost of the lisbillty However, for inancial asss: ihisi have become credii - impaired
subsequent Lo initial recogniion, mieresi Income s calculaied by applying ihe effecive nteresi rate (o the amorised cost of
financial assoil I i assei is nolonger credit-impaired, 1hen the calculalion of Inierest mcome 1evens io gross basls

Leases

. Determinlng whether an arrangement contalns a lease
Al incepilon of an arrargement 1t is deiermined whether the arangement s or ooniaing a lnase
Al Inceplion of on reassessment of (hie amangemen: thal containg & lease (he paymenis and other consideranons required
bv such an arangement are separaicd Into 1hose for the lease and those for oiher elements on ihe basis ol her relaive (air
values 1 1t 1s concluded for the finance lease thar L is Impraciicable 0 separaie the payment reliably, 1hen an assel and 3
labiy are recognised a: anamourt aqual 1o fair value of ihe undarlying assel The liabiliy & reduced as paymeri(s are made
and an impuled inance cos: on theliabilty s recognised using the incremental borowing rate
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.  Assets heldunderleases
Leasesol property. plant and cquipmentiha: ianslertothe Company subsianiially 3l ine nsks and rewardsof ownership
are classified 3s finance leases. The leased asseis are measured initially ai an ameourni equal (o the lower of iherr [air
value and presen value ol ~inr~um Iease payment Subsequeni 1o ininal recognilion, the assels are sccounted lorin
accordance wiih (he accouniing palicy applicable o the simllarowned assei

Assei held under leases thal do noi Iransfer 1o (he Company subsianiially all the nsks and rawards of ownership (ie
operaling lzase) are not recognised in the Company’s balance shec:

fil. Leasepaymenis
Paymenis made Linder operaling leases are generally recognised in profil and loss on siaighi-ine basis over the: iomm
of 1he lease unless such payments a@ sinuc:ured (o nctease Inline with cxpacted goneral inflaiion io compenszie for
ihe lessor's expected Inllanonary cos! increases Lease incentives recsived ame recognised as an Iniegral par: of the
10:8l lease expense over ihe 1erm of iease.

Minimum lease paynenis made under finance leases are apporioned between ihe finance charge and the reduction
of the outsianding liability The finance chaige s allccaicd 10 each period during 1he lcase M so 3s 10 produce 3
consian; perodc rate of INierast on remaining balance of the lisbity.

3.12 Incometax
Income tax compnses curten: and delered Iax il 1S recognised in Ihe Sigiemeni of Profil and Loss excep: [o ihe exien ihal
ILrelates 10 anitem recognized direcily In equl'y or in gther comprehensive Income.

Curien! lax comprises ;he expecied 1ax payable or receivable cnihe [axable Income or loss lor Yhe year and any adjusiment
10 the ax payable or recetvable in respect of previous y2ars The amount of cusrent tax r2flec:s ihe bes! esyimiale of the lax
amoun! expecied 10 be paidor receved allerconsidenng the uncerlanly, i any, relaled ioncome 1axes 11is measured using
1ax 1ales {and tax laws) enacted or subsiantively enacied by Ihe repomng daie,

Curent 1ax asseis and current tax liabilities are offset only If there is a legally enforceable nghi 1o sal off the recognised
srmounis, and it is miended 1o realise the as5¢1 and sctle the lizbitly on a nel basis or simuhianzously

Defamed income lax is provided in full, using the hablliy meihed, on iemporary diflerences arising beiween (he iax bases
of assers and ligbiliies and their carrying amounis in the financial siaiemenis. Deferred e is also recogrised In cespect
of caried lorward ax 10sses and lax Tredis only (0 ihe exient thal IThas sulficient iaxable ‘\emporary dilfcrences of there 1s
convincing otherevidence that sufficient :axable profiiwill be available againsi which such deferred rax assel can be realised.
Deleired lax assels - unrecognised of recognised, are reviewed & each reporing date and are recognised/ educed 10 the
exienitha! it is probables no longer probable respecively 1hal ihe relaed tax benehi will be realised.

Defered 1ax is measured 3! 1he iax 1aies hal are expecicd ;0 apply 10 ihe period when ihe asse! is realised or [hi Hability
is seliled, based on 1he laws 1hat have been cnaciad or substantively enacted by 1he reporling daie. The measurement
of deferred tax rallecs the iax conseguences thal would follow from the manner in which the Company expects a: ihe
reponing daie. 10 recover o seliie the canying amount of 118 335618 ang liabiies

3.13 Provisions and contingencies
Aprovisionis recognised i, as aresuliof apasi even, the Company has a present legal or consinugiive obligiation ihai canbe
estimaied reliably, and i Is probabie that an outflow of economic beneflis will be requred o selile he obligation Provisions
are getermined by discounting 1he expecied fulure cash flows {repraseniing the bes! estimale ol the expendiiure required 1o
setle the present obligation a: Ihe balance sheel Gaic) a1 3 pre-tax 1aie thai reflecis curreni marke! assessmenis of 1he lime
value of money anid the risks specific :oihe liabiliy. The unwinding of ihe discount is recognised as inance cosl. Expected
lnure oparaiinglosses are nct provided (or.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

(Cumzncy - INRin Lakhs excep porshare data)

Contngences

Provision In respeci of [ass conlingenciss relating to clams, itigatons assessmant, ings, penaliies ic are recognised when
it is probable that a kability has been incurfed, and the amount can be estimaled reliably. Where na reliable estimate can be
made as ;0 the outcome of an eveni, a disclosure is made as conlingant fiability. Conungen: asseis are not icognisedinihe
ACTOUNIS,

3.14 Borrowing cost
Borowing cosis ae inleres! and other cosis (including exchange difforences relaling io fomign curency borrowings 10
the exient 1hat they are regarded as an adjusiment 10 interesr cos:s) incusred i connection wilh the borrowing cf funds
Borowing cosis direcity ainbuiable 1o acquistion or cons.auc:on of an asset which necessarnly take 5 subsaniial perod of
imato gel mady for heirnlended use are capiialised as par of the cost of that asset Other borowing Costs are (ecogrised
a3 an expense in the perod Inwhich they are incursd,

Freferance shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specilic daice, are classied as liabilities. The divicdends onihese
profarcnee shares are recopnised In profit or 10ss as finance CosIs:

3.15 Research and development expenditure

Ravenue expendiure on research and developmani sre recognised as anexpense inthe pennd inwhich they are incurred.

3.16 Eamings per share
The basic carings per shafe is compuied by dividing the nei prefit abiuiable (0 equiy shareholders lor the perian by ihe
weighted average number of oquity Shares ouisisnding during ine year

The diluied eamings per share is compuied by dividing the net profi airbutable 10 equity shareholders [or the yoar by
the weighiad average number of equiy and eguivalent potential dituive equily shares ouisianding during ihe year excep!
where 1he result would be anti-giluiive

3.17 Cashand cash equivalents
For:he pumose of presentaiion in the sigiement of cash lows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposils
held a1 call wih irancial ngtitutions, giher shor-wem, highty liquid nvesimenis with caginat cnatunies of thiree months o less
thai are readily convernible 10 known amount of cash and which are subject
bank overdralis,

1o an insignifican: nsk of charges in vatue and

3.18 Cashflow statement
Casti lows are raponad using 1he indirec: method, whercby profi; belore 1ax 13 adusted for the effecis of ransaciions of &
non-cash nalure, any defersrals or accruals of Pas! of (Liure 0perading rec@inis or PAaYMENis and iiems of INCOMe Of expEnses
asseciaied with investing or financing cash lows. The cast Tows lrom operaling. invesiing and financing acivilies of the
Company are sagregaied

4. Changesin significant accounting policies

The Company has adopied Ind AS 115 Revenue rom Contracis wilh Cusiomers (which replaces earlier revenue recognindn
standard) using the cumulaiive eflect method (withou! praciical expadiznish, wiih he effect ol iniially applying this siandard
recognisec at ths date of Inlual applicaiion (ke 1 Apdl 2018},

The effact of nilially spplying Lhis siandsrds 1s mainly andbuted 10 the presentauon of ncome from expar! incentives. Thare is No
Impactof iranshion 1o ind AS 115 on retained camings as on 1 Api 2018

108 asly Bile Calg
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)
{Currency - INR in Lakhs, except pei share datal

The following table surmmarizes the impaci of acopiing INd AS 115 on the Company’s Financial S:alemenis lor the year cnded
31 March 2019 lor eact of the ling items affecied:

Sn. | Particulars ' Notes Amounts Impactofind | Asreported
without AS 115
adoption of
ind AS 115
i | Revenue [rom operaiions | 4 1a)and 1) 3689123 {3.198.27) | 3369298
it Other Income | Ala : ___9600 _1.72654 | 1.82284
iil| Other Expenses ' 4 (b 7.207.72 (147143 | 582629

[a)  Amount of expoin incenlives relavant (© Merchandise Expors from India Scheme IMEIS) and other expori berefils, have
been recognised as ‘Other inco~' win affect rom 1 April 2018, In prios perads, these incentives were reporied under
‘Other Operating Revenue'in the Sement of Profil and Loss.

(0 Inceriancases ihe Company makes transpon arrangements for delivenng 1:s goods 1o Ihe customers and with effeci (om
1 April 2018, ihe Company has presenicd the gross consderaiion recelved nel off cost associsted with respecl 1o these
arrangements within Revernug Jntil 1 Apal 2018, ihe gross consideralion reccived in frespect of 1Nese afrangemen:s were
fecognsed and presenied i Rovzenue from Operatons and e cost 3ssociaied with iNese arrangemenis was presenied
wiih Freight cost in Othe: Exparises

This has no impaci on reponed Proni Before Tax (PBT) lor Ihe penod

Tre deails of the new significan! accounting policies and iha nawre of g changes © previous accounting policies in relation
© he Company's varous gocds and $2vicEs arg sel out Helow Undar Ind AS 115, revenue is recegnised when a cus.omer
ob.ains conirol of the gocds or sendces. Determining the liming of the: ranafer of conirol - ata paint in time of Dver lime - reguies
judgement.

Sale of goods/scrap: Cusiomers ob:air coniral of goods/scrap when the goods arc dalivered 10 and have been accepied
al ther premuses Invoices are generaled and revenue is recognised st that point in lime. Invoices are usuatly payable within €0
days No discoun:s are provioed lor 1his For coniracis thai permit the customer o reium an iiem, unded Ing AS 115 reverwue is
cecognised 1o the exient that i Is probable that a significani reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recogmised will not
oceur. Therefore, the amoun: of revenua tecognised 15 adjusied forexpecied rgiums, which are esiimated based on 1he historcal
daa imed goods arc exchanged only for new goods - 1. no cash refunds are ofiered 1n such circumsiances, a refund
ligbitity 2nd a ngh: 10 recover reiurmed goods asse: are recognised Ind AS 118 did no! have a significanlimpac! on ihe Company’s
accnuning npolines

Income from export Incentives: Under Ind AS 18, income {som expor incentive schemes was disclosed and presenied as
Other operaling income. Under Ind AS 115, ncome 1fom cxporn Inceniive schemes is prescnied as Other non-operating income
as Ihe same 18 Nl recsivable from cugiomers.

5. Standard issued but not effective

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporaie Alfairs ["MCA'). through Companies (Indian Accounting Siandards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and
Companies (Indlan Accouniing Standards) Secand Amendmer Rules, has noified [hie llowing new ind AS and amendments
0 Ind AS which the Company has not applied as they are elfective from 1 April 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for

the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

{Currency - INRin Lakhs, excep: per shawe 329}

Ind AS- 116

The Company 15 required (o adop; ind AS 116, Leases from 01 Apiil 2019, Ind A5 116 inroduces a singte, on- halance sheat
lease accaunting model for lessees. Alegses recognizes aighl-of-use asset representing (s right 10 use Ihe underlying assetand
alease lizbility represzniing 1is obligation 10 make lease paymenis, There are recognilion exemipiions for short-ierm leases and
ieases of low-velue iems. Lessor acoouniing remains sicdlar 10 the current stendard- ¢ Lessors conunue 10 clasally leascs as
fmance croperaling leases. Its replaces oxisting leases guidance. Ind AS 17. Leases.

Tne Company inas complaied g intial assessment of 1he poteniial impact on (s inancial staiements bul has noi yer compleied
irs defailed assessment. The gquantiiative impact of adopuon of Ind AS 116 on the financial siatemenis in the pened of inilal
applicaion i’ Nol reasonably esiimable as a1 present

Ind AS 23 - Borrowing Costs

The amendmenis claily that if any specific bomow: g remaing oulsianding afier the relaied asser 1s ready (o iis inlended use or
sale, Ihat borowing becomes pari of :he [unds (ai anenily borrows generallywhen calculating 1he capilaizaion rale on general
bomowings. The Company does not expect any SKIN.2antanpact on iis financial sisiements due 16 1his amendmeni.

ind AS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Tha amendmenis clarlly that if 3 plan amendmeni, curiaiiment or seltllement occurs v is mandaiory thal ihe curren? senvice Cost
and the nexinterast for the peried afier e re-measuremant are deternained using (he as3umnlons usnd for the rm-moasL rament,
In adgdiiion, smendmenis have been included 1o clanfy 1he sffeci of a plan amendment curzilment or selilemant on the
rsquiremenis regarding e assel caling. The Company dags no: exped 1his amendment 1o have any significant impac! on is
financial sigicrments.

Ind AS 12 Income taxes {amendments relating to income tax consequences of dividend and uncertainty over
income tax treatments)

The amendment relaling 10 Income: Iax consequences ol dividend clarify that an enfiy shall cccognize the income 1ax
conscquences of dividends in profit of loss, other comprehensive income of equity according 10 where the entity onginalty
fecognized ose pasi iransaciions or evenls, The Company doss NGt expeci any Impaci rom this pronouncement [t ¢ relevanl
[0 Noie inai the amondment does not amend siivaiicns where 1INe entity pays a x on dividend which is effectvely a ponion of
dividends paic ip 1axaiion authoiiiies on bahatlf of sharehaidaers. Such amount paid or payabic (0 [axaiion aulhorliies coninues 10
be charged 1o aquily as par! of dwidend, In accordance withind AS 12

The amendmeni io Appendix C of Ind AS 12 specifies shal ;he amendmen: is 10 be gpplied (0 Ihe geterminaion of taxable profil
{lax loss], Iax bases, unused @x losses, unused 1ax ¢ xdrs and ax rates, when Lhere Is uncenainly over NCOMa 13X Ireaiments
under Ing AS 12 i ouilines she following: {1} 1he eniity has 10 use judgement 1o determine wineiher each iax freaiment should
be considared separaiaty or whaiher somea can be considered togethar. Thie decision shoul] be based on the approach which
providies belier prediclions of the resoiution of the uncerany (2) the enilly is 1o assume hiat the taxauon authanty vl have full
knowicage of all relevant information while examining any ancouni (3) enity has :o consider the probabillly of the relevani iaxaiion
authorily accepiing the lax tteaimeni and the delarminaiion of :axable profi (1ax loss), iox bases, unused iax losses, unused lax
credis and 1ax raies would depend upon ihe probabitizy The Company does not expeci any signiftcant impac: of the amendmeani
onis financial Siaiements,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

intangible assets (other than internally generated]

IEs Ry = INRin Lakhe e

B ol Rhaie gaine

Pinlcl.ﬂ-r: e Soltwara | Tiatal
A mnr:mn'-'ll'ﬂtmn uﬂ:nrrwruammu'ﬁ'
Gross Carrying Amount |
Balanca g oi 1 Aprd 207 i T 1873
__'\_-|rl| T ] l\..:f-\.': |.- '3‘-3
Balanoe 35 a0 31 March 2018 082 2062
Balance s at 1 April 2018 ~F: 20.62 20.62
Hilone Y 13
dalance as at 31 March 2018 30.93 3083
Accumulated amortlsatlon ) _'_ _
_Asﬂ.u'nul.-hd Amnrtluﬁnn asat 1 Apdt 2017 i !-':_I 185
':rlr:-;_-.'-:.' 1 10 114
Balance as at 31 Mln:h 2018 8,08 608
_!Ellum:a ag!j_i.!?r_ll 1_1113 E.-EI-E' . ﬂ!
“-'-'_-1'-':=.=I'a'-l'| fur'l'p_‘;',-n.'.' =45 I '1 "-'
Balanca &s at 31 March 2019 111EE| 1 1.52
Carrying amount (net)
A1 21 harh 2018 | 1454 14 b4
A 31 March 2019 | 19.31 | 10.31
B other non-currant financial assets
Partlculars 31 March 2019 31 Mareh 2018
iLimseouned comcanno EFAOC LINISSE CuMEnwag Si=inn!
Srciry depnsl
Coraaiaen pocd T 3470
e cendlEtul
slicevanice lorsspocmd crodiad losses - -
as5.7a 34.70
n CHher non-curmant assaeis
Fartlculars 31 March 2018 31 March 2018
Unsenued comsclaed ? TR A s ey 5D SiEpa
,1:3. =l -f-.du'al Cig Bl LTS
P-EP.' ] : P‘-T. I'l r ""r I'|‘| '||'1_II 'H.‘I‘.-_._ET"F:
It L il
"-'-l:l ..':r. | *uill."l"il:‘.rf.
Corsicenscl coukul B0 lagm
Prendsio s Hor oot aaecs 1l !:;'!j .-'_|:1|_ {68
|'i_‘| - U T "'I'I'Il\_.:l-‘\l"{ THTIEN! SLEMONNES TR 45511
BAE.B1 583.72
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

m Inventories

(Currency - INR in Lakhs, excep! per share data)

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Raw materals 282727 1.806.19
Work-in-progress 44440 32137
Finishad goods 78289 50771
Slores, spares & consumables 27303 17323
Facking maierials 76262 566.62

4,890.31 3,375.12

‘includes goods in transi INR 171.21 lakhs (2018; INR 146 47 lakhs)
Inveniories are presenied net of the following:

() Provssion fof Siow moving non MOvINg inven1ones and stock exceeding uture requirements
INR 88 86 lakhs (2018 INR& 95 lakhs)

) Provsion for reiections INR 31.74 [akhs (2018 INR 33,15 lakhs)
(il Provision for dsconunued nroducts and expired malerial INR 38 27 lakhs [2018: INR 16 56 Iakhs)
(iv}  Provision quality rejection and A wirk change INR 36.48 [akhs {2018 INR 845 (akhs}

Trade receivables

Partlculars

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

- considered good - Seeured

368821

- congigered good - Unsecurcd 383686

- having significar: increase in credi rigk . 073

- credit impaired - -
3,836.86 3,680.94

Expecied creditioss allowance - 0.73)

Total trade recelvables 3,836.86 3,685.21

Current portion 368821

383686
Non-current portion -

“Refler balow {recenvables by type of counmany) for breakup of ouisianding raeeivables from related pariies. All of 1hese

recevables are unsecured and considered good
There a1e no receivables secured ageinst borrowings.

For 1prms and condiiions of 1rade recevables owing fromi relaiad parties, see noie 44

Exposure to the credit risk for trade receivables
by geographic region:

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Incha 1.57897 108053
Res: of the world 225580 2559868
3,836.86 3,689.21

Exposure to the credit risk for trade receivables
by type of counterparty:

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Felaled paries aiso refer note M for recaivables oulsianding from related paty) 1,55462 1.85138
Olher than relaied pariies 2.282.24 1.73783
3,836.86 3,689.21

36 Annual Fieport 201819



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

Trade receivables (continued)

{Currency - INR in Lakhs excepi per share gaial

Movement in the allowance for expected credit losses:

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Balance as a1 the beginning of the year 073 1214
Allowance lor loss {nc! of reversals) 743 (7641
Amouais writien off (8.16} (377
Balance asat the end of the vear 0.73

Movement in the allowance for expected credit losses: 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
0-90 days pasi due 377165 366536
41-180 days pasi due ALAT7 16.82
More thar 180 days pasi dus 1974 778
Gross carrying amount of trade recelvables 3,836.86 3,689.94
Allowance for expociod cradi losses - 073
Carrying amount of trade recelvables (net of Impairment) 3,836.86 3,689.21

Refe Note 47 for Company’s exposure 1o ¢edh and curency nsk

Cash and cash equivalents

Partlculars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Cash oa hand 275 243
Bank balances 77272 564.33

775.47 566.76

m Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars 31 March _2ﬁ19 31 March 2018
Unpad dividend accounis 807 7.74
Oher deposits vaih bariks : 386

8.07 11.60

‘ Represenis deposis held with bank aslien

Derivative contract - assets

Partlculars 31 March 2018
Foraign exchangae forward coniract 503.15 66.21
Inieres! raloe swap 800h 11068

572,70 1856.89

m Other current financial assets

114

Particulars

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Oiherrgceivables (including contraciually reimbursable cosis and inierest)

219

3493

2.19

349.31

Fasly Bile Caanlas Limnad
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Corporaie information 01-20

as at 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

m Other current assets

Statutory Reposts 21-82

Financial Statement 83-143

(Currency - INR in Lakhs, excep! per share data)

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Advance for supply of goods 38339 147,35
Advancss [0 employees 063 127
Prepaymenis 5384 4756
Expori Incéniives receivable 44305 1.277.72
Recevable from govemnmmeni authorities 1.09247 316,71

1,973.48 2,384.61

Equity share capital

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Authorised B

4.400.000 (2018:4,400.000} equity shares of INR 10/- gach 44000 440.00

80,000 (2018 80,000) 1% Non-Cumulative. Non-Converible, Redeemable 80.00 6000

Prelemnce Shares of INR 100/ each

Issued, subscribed and pald up shares

2,566,000 (2018 2.566,000) equity sharas of INR 10/- each [ully pald up 256.60 25660
256.60 258.60

£G.630 (2018 - 58530} 1% Non-Cumulaiiva. Non-Convertitie. Redeemable Preference Shares of INR 100/- esch are held by
Prefcrred Brands Foods (India) Privaie Limited and are classified as financial lisbility as per the requiremenis of ind AS

A)

B)

C)

D)

Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Equity shares Asat As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
No. of Amount
shares

Al he commengemen: and at ihe end of the vear 2.566,000 25660  2566,000 256.60

Reconciliation of the number of preference shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Preference shares classlfied as financlal liability As at As 8t
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
No. of Amount
shares
Al the commencemeant of ihe year 58530 5353 53,530 5953
Agaregate number of shares bought back during the year 59530 5353 - -
At the end of the year 3 69,5630 59.53

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Compary has 3 single class of equily shares Acoordingly, all equity shates rank equally vith regard 1o dvidend and
share In the Company’s residual assels The equily shares are enliled (o receive dividend as declared liom ime (o lime
subject (o payment of ghvidend 1o preference shareholders The voung sighits of eguny sfizreholders are in propontion 10 14l
share of paid up equily capiial ol the Company

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to preference shares (classified as financial liability):

1% Nori-Cumulative. Non-Convertible, Redeemable Prelerence Shares ware redeemable on or before 31 August 2018 at
2 premiunt of INR 1,950 per share The preference shareholder resanves the nght io demand (o redemotion ol preference
shafes duiing the period upio 3151 Augusi. 2018. These pielerence shares veere boughr back durlng the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

Equity share capital (continued)

E) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% of a class of shares:

{Currency - INRIn Lakbs, except per sharc data)
Name of the shareholder Asat As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
N % Holdin No. of | % Holding
' shares

Equity shares of INR 10/- each fully paid up held by

Prefemed Brands Foods (Indial Private Limited, 'Holding company’ 1.004 510 7422% 1204810 7422%

1,904,510 74.22% 1,904,510 74.22%

F) Shares held by holding company or ultimate holding company including shares held by subsidiaries or
associates of the holding company or the ultimate holding company in aggregate:

Name of the shareholder Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
No.of| Amount No.of! Amount
shares
Equltv shares of INR 10/- each fuily pald up held by
Eflem Holdings Limited 300 0.03 300 008
Prefered Brands Foods (India) Privaie Limiiad, 'Holding company’ 1804510 19045 1604510 16045
1,904,810 150.48 1,904.810 190.48

Other equity

Reserves and Surplus 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

SECUNIES [IRMIUM raseve Q475 Q475
Captial ressrve 5734 57.34
Employee share based paymen' reserve 17275 6377
Reiained earmnings 12,361,657 941702
Other comprehensive income 256.86 38.26
12,943.27 9,671.14
Securities premium
Al ihe commencemeni and al the end of ihe year 8475 gA.75
Capital reserve
Al LMe commencement and al the end of the year 57.34 57234
Employee share based payment reserve
Al lhe commencemen 8377 3510
Add Employee share based payment cost ligker note 45) 10898 2358
At the end of the year 172.75 63.77
Retained earnings
Opening balance 8417.02 £,.833.14
Net profi for ihe period 300632 264565
Dividends paid (inctuching dividend disiribuiion rax thereon) B1.77} 51.77)
Closing balance 12,361.57 8,417.02

Components of other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability
{asset), net of tax

Opening balance (83.30) 153.03)
Addition dunng the year (3304) i30.27)
Closing balance - (deficit) (116.34) (83.30)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

m Other equity (continued)

[Currency - INR in Lakhs, excepi per share datal

Reserves and Surplus 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Changes in fair value of hedge instruments, net of tax

Cpening balance 12156 21008
Addition duning the year 25164 (9842)
Closing balance - {LLoss) 37320 12158
Total other comprehensive Income 256.86 38.28

Dividends
The following dwidends were declared and paid by the Company duting 1he financal yeac

Particulars .~ 31March2019" 31 March 2018™"
INR 2 (2018: INR 2! per equity share 5132 5132
Divdend distribution iax (DDT) on dividend :0 equity shareholders 1045 1045

61.77 61.77
INR 1 (2018: INR 1) per radecmable preference shares 060 (360
Dividond distribution 1ax (DT on dividend o redeemable preference 01z 0.12
shares

62.49 62.49

" Dividend paid during ihe year ended 31st March 2019 Isrelaied 10 dividend proposed during [he year ended 31s: March 2018
" Dmdend paid during the year ended 318t March 2018 1s related io dividend proposed during ine year ended 318t March 2017

Alter ihe reponting daies he following dividends lexcluding DDT] were proposad by ine direciors subject o the approval a1 :he anrusl
gersral meeting ihe dividends have no! been recogrised as liabidilies. Dvidends would allvac: DDT whendeclared or paid.

Proposed Dividend | 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
On equily shares ol INR 10 each amoun! of propoaed dividend 51.32 5132
Dwidend per equity share 200 200
On prefevence shares of INR 100 each amoun: of prioposad dividend - 069
Dividend per equity share - 100

Nature and purpose of reserve and surplus and items of other comprehensive income

Securitles pramlum resarve
Secudlics premium is Used (0 reeord tha premium receives] o issue of shiares 1 1s ullsed in accordance with: i promsions of he
Companias ACL 2013

Capital reserve
Capital (eseneis orealed lor govemment subsidies and other liablities

Employee share based payment reserve
Ermployee share based payment resenve is crealed in accordance with Ind AS 102 consequent [0 e value pool agreement betwesn
PBLInc., the Campany and ihe holders of ihe ouisianding opions. Refer Noie 45 - Employes shared based payment

Changes In fair value of hedge Instruments, net of tax

Change in lar value of hedge insirumernis are hadging Instruemenis used by Company as a part of 118 managemen;: ol foreign nsk
associated with iis highly probabla forecast sate. For hedging foreign curency risk and ineces: rale sk the Company uses forign
cutiency fomward coniract and rieres! raie swaps respeciively, both of which arg desigrialed as cash llow hedges

Remeasurement of defined benefit Habllity (asset), net of tax
Remeasuremenis of defines beneft 1BDilily {assell comprises acluafdal gans and losses and mium on plan aseeis

iexcluding interestincome)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

m Borrowings

118

[Currency - 1NR in Lakhs, except per share daia)

Particulars ‘31 March 2019 31 March 2018
A. Non-current borrowings
_ Frombarks _ =
External Commercial Bormowings (ECE) 258126 3057.04
2,681.26 3,057.04
B. Current borrowings
Unsecured
workong caplial loans from banks
- Packing Credit Foreign Currency (PCFC) - 651230
Working capiial loan from relaied party 60000 -
600.00 651.30

Information about ihe Company’s exposure o inieresl sk Joreign currency nsk and liquidily risks s included in notg 47
Refer note 22 for current malunngs of long lerm deb

Terms and conditions of ouisianding borowings are as lollows

In Lakhs of | Cumrency | Nominal Matwity |Terms arrying amounts
INR | interest rate | (year) ikl 31March 2018
ECB- Mizuho | USD 3mLBOR+ 20182024 | Repayable in 8 years by way of 166570
000% 32 quarerly equal nsiaments
commencing from .furiz, 2016
ECB-Bank |USD [2MLBOR= [2018-2024 | Moraiorium period is 2 years and 151550 162825
of Tokyo- 060% ihe loan is repayable in 6 vears
Mitsubishil by way of 24 quaricly equal
rsigllments commencing frorm
| July, 2018,
ECB-Bank |USD | 3mLIBOR+ |2018-2022 | Moralonum penod s for 1 year 25880 320065
of Tokyo- 075% and he loan is repayable in 4
Mizsubishi- Il vears by way of 16 quacery
egual Insialments commencing
; from Jung 10 2018
Preference | INR [ 10% 2018 Reler Note 18 - 117567
shares ]
Working INR 76% 2019 Shartemn working capial [oan £00.00 i
captid loan repaysbleIn August 2018
from relaiad
pary
PCFC- Ush | LIBOR - 2018 Short iem pre - shipmert: credi E 651.30
Mizuho ber 040% factly wih 2 malunly period
Ligd of 180 days from the dale of
| shipment
Total boirowings 3,851.83 5,448.51
Classified as
- Non cuneni borowings 258126 308704
- Currgnl borowings £00.00 655130
- Cunenl malurities ol non- culieni borrowings B7057 56256
- Preference shares - 1.17561
Total borrowings 3,851.83 5,446.51

There is no default a5 on 31 March 2018 snd ason 31 March, 2018 intepayment of pringspal and inierest
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

Non-current provisions

Statutory Reposts 21-82

Financial Statement 83-143

{Currency - INR in Lakhs. excepi per share data)

Particulars 31 March 2019 31March 2018

Employes benefis obligalions (also rafer now 13)

Gratuity 28024 207 26

Compensaicd absences 176.75 16004
456.99 387.30

m Trade payables

Partlculars

Trado payablcs olher than 1elaied panies

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

- ousianding dues of micro enterpises and small eniermprises 1345 -
(also1efer nole 35)
- ouistanding dues of crechiars oiher Ihan micro enerprses and small 383029 256764
eniemnises
3,843.74 2,567.64

Refer Noie 47 for the Conpany’s exposure 1o curency and liquidity risks

m Other financial liabilities (Current)

Particulars

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Cunent matuniles of unsecured bank loans 87057 56256
1% Non-Cumulalive, Nan-Converible, Redeemable Preference Shares - 117561
Inszrest accrued bul not due on borrowngs 1121 1174
Depaosiis recemad from dealers .00 300
Payable for capiial gocds 19250 11812
Emptoyee dues 31308 7952
Jnciaimed dividend 789 774
Other payables (also refer noie 44 for payables 1o related paries) - .15

1,200.26 1,969.44

m Other current liabilities

Particulars

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Contract iabilities {reier noie 46) - 647
Staiuiory dues payable 3672 511
36.72 41.58

Current provisions

Particulars 21 March 2019 31 March 2018

Employee benelis abligauons (also refer Noie 431

Gratully 4408 6513

Compensated abisences 2090 30.82
73.98 95.95
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

m Revenue from operations

{Currency - INR in Lakhs, except per share daial

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Revenue from customers
Sale of products (including exclse duty)
Finished Goods 3353236 2755899
Traded Goods 7638 296.32
33,608.72 27,855.31
Other operating revenues
Expor benehis/ sale of duty scnpts {refer note 4) - 170277
Saleof scrap 8424 7422
84.24 1.776.89
33,692.96 29,632.30

m Otherincome

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Expor benefils / sale of duty sctipis [refer note 4) 1.726:84 -
Inlerest Income under the affective interesi method on cash and cash 1183 H37
cquivalen:
Inicrest mcome (rom orers 2856
Insurancs ciam receved 246
Gain on sale of Invesimenis 6.80
Liabiliizs wiition back 10 the exient no longer required 130 150
Nt gain o account of foreign curmency [ransaglions s 50101
Contracwally reimbursable cosis and interes: 5087 10000
Miscellanepus Incoma 3200 34908
1,822.84 878.68

¥ Costs of materials consumed

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Inveniony of raw matenal and packing materials at the beginning of the vear 237281 204166
Add Purchases 2200000 17,467 32
[ess Invenioty of ravw maienials snd packing maiarials at ihs end of the year 338989 237281

20,982.92 17,138.17

m Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and stock in trade

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Inventory at the beginning of the year

- Finished goods 50771 44245

- Work in progress 32137 21884

- Traded goods - -
(A) 829.08 661.29
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

m Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and stock in trade (continued)

({Currency - INR in Lakhs, excep! per share daial

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Inventory at the end of the year
- Finished goods 78289 507 71
-Work In progress 44440 321.37
- Traded geods = 5
(B) 1,227.39 829.08
Change in Inventories
- Finished goods (27528) 165 26)
-Work In progress (123.03) (102.53)
- Tracded goods _ - &
Increase in Inventory (A-B) (398.31) (167.79)

BLN Employee benefits expense

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Salarics, wages and bonus 230308 1.86895
Contribution 10 provident fund and other funds (refer noie 43) 131.37 106.85
Graiuily 5550 5181
Employee share based expanse (efer note 45) 10898 2857
Staff welfare expenses Q065 5875

2,699.53 2,120.84

m Finance costs

Particulars

31March 2019

31 March 2018

Imerest expense on financlal lisblines measured ai amorlsed cos: 16053 13317
Exchange differences regarded as an adjus:iment 10 borrowing cosi 226.80 -
Dividend on redeemabie preference shares 4547 100.82
(including relaied dvidend disinbuiion iax)

432,80 233.99

m Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Depreciaion of Property, plan: and equipmen! (Refer noie 8] 1,25940 1,093.49
Amonisaiion of Imangible assais (Refernoie 7) 554 413
1,264.94 1,097.62
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

m Other expenses

{Currency - INR in Lakhs, except per share daial

122

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Consump:ion of Siores and spares 58512 44152
Securty and coniract labour charges 138235 1,21315
Power and fue 1.154.18 102042
Freight and forwarding charges (also refer noie 4) 22496 1,39251
Reni (also refer noie 37) 52683 31387
Rates and axis 1241 1493
Insurance 68226 5819
Repairs and mainienance 28697 22166
Agverisemen! and husiness Dromotion eXperses 262 782
Travelling and CONVBYance expenses 25241 18007
Communicalon cosis 5631 4622
Lepat and professienal iees 33050 227 18
Audiiors iemunaration (refornote Uy below) 2494 26.65
I_oss on fixed asseis sold/ discarded ingi) - B84
Receivable/deposits willien ol - 2357
Bad debi/deposis writien off 816 377
Allowance lor doubiful advances/receivables 1798 4.46
Nei loss on account of [oreign currency [ransaclions 47853 -
Corporate social responsibiliies expenditure [iefer noie il betow) 106 4893
Miscelianeous expensss 40375 35733

5,826.29 5.608.79

)  Payments to auditors (excluding taxes)

Particulars 31 March'2019 31 March 2018
As audice
Stauiioty audil 1175 14.20
Limited raviews 750 550
Tax audit 250 200
_ Cerifications 219 365
Reimbursemen of expenses 100 120
Total 24.94 26.55

Includies INR Nil (2018 INR 4.101akhs) relaied (o remunsration paid 1o ersiwhile audsiors.

i) Detalls of corporate soclal responsibllity expendlture

Partlculars

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

a) Gross amoun! required 0 bespen by the Company dusing ihe year 67,21 5098
b) Anrcunispeni during the year
Il Promosion of education {Consiruction of School ’ 4893
il Others 406 -
Total 4.06 48.93
cl Unspent amount 83.15 2.05
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

E Income tax expense

ICurrency - INR In Lakhs, excepi pershare daia)

A. Amounts recognised in profit or loss 321 March 2019 31 March 2018
Curren: period 186313 144030
Changes in csumaies relaied (0 prior vears (2034) i81.65)
Curmrent tax (a) 1,842.79 1,348.88
Anribuiablg lo-

Ongination ang reversal of :emporary dilferences {141.48) 108.70
Deferred tax (b) (141.48) 108.70

Tax expense (a) + (b} 1,701.31 1,458.35

B. Income tax recognised in other 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
comprehensive income I Tax  [Netoftax l:0C) Tax | Netof tax

(expense) tax (expenss)
benefit benefit
Remeasuremenis of employvee banehi (50,78 1774 (33.04) {416.29! 1602 {30.27)
obligations
Deferred gain/losses) on cash low hedges 38681 {135 17} 25184  (35051) 5208 {9842)
336.03| (117.43) 218.60 (196.80) 68.11| (128.69)

C. Reconciliation of effective tax rate 31 March 2018
% | Amount
Profit before tax 470763 410400
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 3484%| 164503 3461% 142039
Effect of:
Non deducible expenses 1.8%% 8896 167% £68.34
Changes in esiimaies relaied (o prior years 021%) {6.75) (0.20%) (B 15)
Eahaniced deduciion of research and developmeni expense {049%) {2263} {0.54%) {(22.23)
Effective tax rate / tax expense 38.14%| 1,701.31  35.54%| 1,458.35
D. Recognised deferred taxassetsand | Deferred tax Net deferred tax
llabilistlies | Deferred tax (assets) Uabillitles (assets) / liabllities

<EHNETGE 31 March [RENEIGaT 31 March [ RE0EIGEE 31 March
2019 2018 2019 2018 2018

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
attributable to the following:

Properly, plantand equipment and iniangible - = 54911 83718 549:19 63749
a3sels
Inventones {80.58) {22.54) - - (60.58) {22 B4)
Trade receivables ; (025) : : 4 {0.25)
Other non-curren! assels {1247) (568) - - (1247 (568!
Frovision - emplayee benelils {18564) {18033} : - i18bb4) (16033
Provision - oihers {142) (208! - - (142) (2.08i
Cash flow hedge reserve - 20013 643/ 200.13 A134
Otheriiems (392) (1.58) - - {392 (1.58)
(263.93) (192.46) 740.24 701.83 485.31 509.37
Offseliing of deferred 1ax asse!s arkl deferred 74024 70183 {28393 (192.48) - -
iax iiabiliiies
Net deferrad tax (assets) / liabititles 485.31 500.37 485.31 5090.37 485.31 5098.37
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

(Cumercy INRINT akhs excep! pershare date)

Movement in temporary differences: Balance | Recognised| Recognisad| Balance |Recogmnised|Recognised Balance
8sat31 In profitor in OGt asat31 | inprofitor inQCl ssatd1
March | lossdurdng| dudng March | loss during during March
2017 2017-18 2017-18 2018 2018-19 2018-19 2019
Fropenly  plant and aquipment and 51461 12288 83749 88238] 54911
niangible assels |
Invenlcnes | (2254 (2254 (3B (6058
Tradeiecenatles 14201 385 10251 025
Olbar rion curtent 2s$21s {1249/ | 681 (668! 679 _ {(1247)
Frewision -ernpioyes Dersits {12370} 2067 {1607) 1168033) 747 {117 74} (18554
Frovision othels (1584 1358 (208} 065 {142
Cash fiow hediae msanve 11643 15203 8434 13517 20013
Ot len's 723 565 (1581 12.34) 13971
467.78! 109.70 68.11) 500.37| (14211) 117.43] 48531

m Contingent liabilities and commitments (o the extent not provided for)

124

Partlculars I .31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Contingent liabilities
Claims agains: the Company not acknowledged as debis

Income iax mallers . 64290 104483
Excise duty and Cusiom duly matlers (see noie below] 246.50 36293
Salas Tax demands 830 9.30
Employees/tobourclaims 7.37 349
Commitments .
Estimalect amount of Cconiacts lemaming [0 e execyied on caprial accoun 53456 18851
and noi provided lor (nc1 of advances)
Expor commitments on accoun of Impon Lindar agvance llcenses 48321 -
Total 1,933.84 1,609.06
Note 34 (a)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, a deali orcier dated 30 Novernorr 2017 was received relevant 10 1he assessment year
2014-2015 Irom the Deputy Comrmissioner of Income Tax, Puna 'DCIT proposing upward adjusiment of income amounting 1o
INR 891 fakhs under iransfer pacing regulaions, resulling in approximate iax impacr of INR 336.84 lakhs [calculared At rax 12ie of
30.90%) excluding ihe amount of pemaly and inierest. This amount was included under income ax matiers for ihe year ended
31 March 2018. The Company had fled an objeciion witt Dispute Resoluiion Pane! for the same and was awaling :he final order.
Dunng the curren. year, the Company received he demand order wheren the Transler Pricing Officer 1ssued Ihe demand of
INR 286.38 Iakhs T Company hag iile 1he appesl wiih the Income Tax Appaliate Tribunal {ITAT) on 26 Novamber 2018, This
amoun: 15 Included under Income tax matiers for (he year ended 31 March 2019.

Income iax demand comprise demand from the Indian iax authoriues, upon compleiion of their iax review [Or 1he assessmeani
years 2008-08 to 2011-12 The lax demands afe mainly on acoount of ceramn yansies pacing adjusimenisof expenses clamed by
Ihe Company under the Income Tax Azt Tie maties are pending Sefoee the ITAT,

Excise duty demand comprise demand from the Central Exclse awthariiics of INR 9883 lakhs (31 March 2018 INR 98 83 lakhs),
The iax demands are mamly relaled 1o Excisg duly on clearance of goods under cerzin concessional aie of duty, which as
per Depariment’s conention, are covered under differer caicgory iwiit highes 1ax taies) Management 15 of the view thau the
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

m Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for) (continued)

depanmery’s conienion 1 nQl appropriate singe the Company docs not sell any products in domesiic market under calegories
mentionegd by ihe depanmeni. These liigalion are penoing before Ceniral Excise and Service Tax Appatiate Tribunal (CESTAT).

The Company is conlesiing the demands and ihe managemen! Delieves thal iis positon will iikely be upheld in the appeilate
procass The management believes that the uliimaie outcome of these proceeding will not have 5 matenal adverse effec on ino
Cormpany/s financisl position and rasutis of operations.

Penging resctulion of the respeclive procesdings, 1115 no! practicable for the Company 10 estimare 1he timings of the cash flow, If
any. intespecl of (he above as 1! iz degiminable only on receipt judgemenis / decision panding with various fonums/aulhorities

Custom duiy demand comprise demand (rom (has Office of the Commissioner of Cusiom of INR 147 67 lakhs (31 March 2018:
264.09 lakhs) The ax deimands are mairly relaied (o benefil received by ihe Company under Agri Infrasinuciure Incenive
Scheme, which as per Depanmeni's contendion, have been avalled under incoreect ang nadmissible notificasion. Managemon 5
of the view ha! such benefils are adrmissible and cannot be denied only because of Incorect menuomng of 1he notficanon. This
linganon s pending belore CESTAT,

Thae Comipany has reviewed all 115 pending liigaiions and proceedngs and has adequalely provided for whete the provision is
requiced and disclosed as coningent liabiliies wherg applicable. n 18 financial siaiemenis.

Note 34 (b)

Based on the Supreme Cour (udgemen oazed 28ih February 2018 the Company has reassessed ihe companents o &e included o
basic satary for ihe purpose of employer'sconirbulion wwards Providen: Fund Howeves, nerehas beennoconespondingamendman
inhe Actor Schemg framed undor the Providen! Fund Act, conscqguent 1o Supreme Cou udgement Managenenl does Noi xpact
ihe Supreme Court gecision 1o have any signifcani impact on the Company’s financial postion 2sai 3 1 March 2019

;35_5'_ Compliance with Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

(Crrenc— INR In Lakhs, excep! per share dala)
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Particulars
a) The principal amount and Ihe inierest dug hiereon remaning Lnpaid 10
supplier 2t he end of each accouniing year,
- Principal 13.45
- lneres: 5 -
bl The amount of Interest paid by ine buyer In ierms of section 18 of he
MSIMED Ac), along with e amouni of the paymen: made [ the supplier
__beyond the appointed day dudng each accourning year, | _
- Inierest paid - -
- Paymeni made 10 supplers (ciher han nierest) bayond ithe apponied - -
doy durng the year
c) The amount of interes! due and payable for the pericd of delay in making - -
paymeni {which have been paid but beyond the appoinied day during
the year) but withowt adding the interest specified under the MSMED Aci
d) The amour: of inierest acciued and emaining unpaid ai the end of each - :
accoursing yoal, in relation 1o the year
e) The amoun; of furher interest remaining due and payable even In the - -
succeading years, unil such dale when tha inieresi dues above are
aciushy paid o the smalf enterprise, (of the purpose of disaltowance of a
deductible expendilure under seciion 23 of the MSMED ACT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

m Earnings per share

A,

Basic earnings per share
The caleulaiion of profi aiinbulable 1o cquity sharehoiders and weighted average number of equily shares ou:sianding for
purpase of hasic eamings pes share calculation afe as foliows:

(Currency - INR In Lakhs, excep: per shae data)

i. Profit attributable to equity shareholders (basic) 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Profil for line year. ailibuiable (0 the equity holders 306632 2645.65
ii. Weighted average number of equity shares (basic) |Noie 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
In takhs of shares
Opening balance 17 2586 2566
Effect of changes during the year - -
Weighted average number of equity shares for the 25.66 25.88
year
Total basic earnings per share aftributable to equlty 117.18 103.10
share holder of the Company

Diluted earning per share
The calculation of diluied caming per share 1s based on prof altributable o equity shareholders and weighied average
number of equity shares ouisianding, alier adyusning for the eflects of all dilunve poreniial equiry shares as follows:

i. Profit attributable to equity shareholders (diluted) 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Profii for 1he year, aliribuiable 10 the sauity holders (diluied) 300832 264565
il. Weighted average number of equity shares (diluted) 31 March 2018
In takhs of shares
Opening balance 17 25606 2580
Effecs of dilutive potennal eguity shares - -
Weighted average number of equity shares for the 25.88 25.88
year
Total dlluted samings per share attributable to 117.16 103.10
equity share holder of the Company

Operating leases

126

A

Leasesas lessee

Tha Company has laken onlease a number of offices, waichouse and laciory premises undex operating leases, The leases
typically rung {or a penod of 3 1o 5 years, generally wilh an opion (o renew the lease aller thai penod. Lease payments are
negoidied afier the end of cvery lease 1orm o reflect marke! renials

. Future minimum lease payments
A1 31 March, the fuiure minimunilease paymenis io be made under non-cancellable operating lease are as follows

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Payatile wilhin one year - 3225
Payable batween onie and ive years

Payablc alier five years 5 -
Total - 32.25
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

m Details of specified bank notes held
The disclesures rogarding de:ars of specificd bank notes held and transacied during 8 November 2018 10 30 December 2018
has noi been made in these financral stalements since ine requitement does Not pertan lo financial year ended 31 March 2019.

m Capital management

A business objecive of the Company is 10 susiain the sirongest possible equity base in order io fosier confidence in alt key
sigkeholders and promoie the Company’s onward developmen! A sound equity base 5 also a key [acior in ensuring 3 stable sk
ratng with lenders, which s imporan for obiaming accepiable borrowing erms for the Company, The Board of Direciors and
the shareholders of the Company ensure 3 responsitle Gividend policy and an appropaaie reium on invesied capiial 10 promole
value grovwth and saleguard ine Company’s futute

The Board of Direcioss of the Company are kept informed about the cquily posiion of the Company as pan of guarnedy 10poding.
Measures are mplemeniad as necassary, iaking the tax and legal frameworks Inio acCouni, 10 SUSI8In an 3pproprais ¢apral base
ihatenables Ins Company 10 al13in operaing targe:s and :0 meesi 1he Staegic Qoals.

{Currency - INR in Lakhs. excepi per share data)

Partlculars _ 31 March 2019 31March 2018
Tolal borrowings 385183 5A1BMN
L2385 cash and cash equivalent 77547 56676
Adjusizd nel debt 307636 4.878.75
Toialequity 1319887 882774
Less gffeciive parion of cash ilow hadge (ne! of iax) 37320 121.56
Adjusted equiy 1282667 Q80618
Adiusied el debl o adjusied equiily 1a1io 0.24 0.50

The Company 1s required io comply with cerain covenanis for Iha borcowing lacilies avaied Dy ihe Comparly The Company
has complied wiih these covenanis throughout Ihe reporiing period.

Disclosure in respect of Research and Development activities as per the requirements of Guidelines issued by
the Department of Scientific and Research ('DSIR"):

The Depanment of Scieniific and indusirial Research, Minisiry ol Science and Technology. Goverameni of India has recognised
Tasly Biie Research Center (TBRCH as an 'In-house R&D {acility” with effec: from June 217, 2011,

Amount eligible for deduction under section

35(2AB) of the Income Tax Act, 1961: SHARMELC RS S L
Amount debited 1o Siatemeni of profit and loss, excluding depreciation 18403 157 22
Amount nol debiied to Statement of profit and loss 1075 0.28
Total eligible expenditure 183.78 157.50

Capital expendiiure for Research and development included under fixad assels:
Particulars _ Plant and equipments
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Gross block

As al the beginning of the vear 15602 155,74
Addilions (reprasenis capiial expendilure during the yearn) 19.75 028
As at the end of the year 175.77 166.02
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation

As 21 1he beginning of the year 6118 4598
Charge lor the year 1265 11.20
As at the end of the year 73.83 61.18
Net block 101.94 84.84
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for

the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

m Transfer pricing regulations

The Company has csiablished a comprehensiva sysiem of mainienance ol informaiion and documenta:on as required by the
lransfer pricing legislation under section §2- 92F of the Income Tax Act. 1861, The Company is In process of preparng related
documen:ation for the financial year 2018-2019.

The managemeni is of ie opmion thai s nemaiional Iransachions are at am'’s length such thai [he aforesaid legisiaion will not
have any impaci cn the financial siztements, pamicularly on (e amogynt of lax expensc and thal of provision [or 1axaiion

m Segment information

A. Business Segments

An operaling segmant s a component of the Company hat engages in business aciviies rom which it may eam
revenues and mcur expanses including revenues and expensas thal rala:c 10 ransaclions with ary of tha Company’s other
componernis, and for which discrele financial Informaiion 15 available. The Company recognizes s sale of Prepared Foods
activily as lisonly pimary business segment since iLs operations predominantly consist of manufaciure znd sale of Frepared
Focds 1o Its cusiomers. The ‘Chief Operaling Decssion Maker' monlors the operating resulis of e Company’s business
35 single seament. Accordingly i contex: of Ind AS 108 - Cperaiing Segmienis' the prnciple Dusiness of ihe Company
consliyiz a singte reporiable segment

B. Information about major customers
Revenus from one of the cusiomiars of ihe Compzny's singie segmant i.e. Prepared Fooosis INR 18,798 70 1akhs (2018 INR
17.643 22 lakhs) which 1s more than 10 percent of the 1oial revenue (o the year ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2018,

m Assets and liabilities relating to employee benefits

128

{Currency - INRIn Lakhs, excepi per share datal
Partlculars _ 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Ne' Jdefined beneli iability - Graluity plan 32432 27238
Lisbility for compensared absences 20665 15086
Total employee benefit liabilities 530.97 463.25
Non-current 456.99 367.30
Current 73.98 95.95

For details sboul ihe relaied employeas banelil expenses lincluding ihose of Defined Coniribution Plan), see Noie 29
The Company opgraies the following post empzioymen: benelii plang

“The Company has adefined benefi plan, governed by ithe Payimeni of Graluiny Acl 1972 Benelit plan cntiiles an employes, who
has rendered a: least five yoars of conminuous sevice, 1o grawily a1 the raie of filiesn days [or every compleied year of service or
part thereof In excess of sic monihs, based on ihe rales of wages ast drawn Dy the employee concerned.
The defined beneli plan for grawity is adminisiered and funded through a Graup Gratuity Scheme wilii HDFC Life.
Thase defined benefi plans expose (he Company ic acluanal risk such aslongeviry sk inieres! eie risk and marke! invesimend) risk
A. Funding
Graluly Flan s funded by Ihe Compary The funding requiremenis are based on the graiutty fund's zcluanial measuremarn|
fromework 321 oul in [he funding polices of the plan The funding ¢f Grauy Flan is based on separate aciuarg! valuaiion for
funding purposes forwiiich assumption sniay differ lrom ihe assumptions ss1 outini&l Employersdo not coninbuie o the plan

The Company expects o pay INR 65 lakhs In coninbuticns 1015 defined benefii plans in 2019-2020

asly Bile Lalaples | imnsd
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

m Assets and liabilities relating to employee benefits (continued)

B. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit liability

Statutory Reposts 21-82

Financial Statement 83-143

The following table shows areconclllation from the openlng balances to the closing balances for the net

defined benefit labllity and Its components:

Reconcillation of presentvalue of defined benefit obligation (A)

{Currency - INR In Lakhis, except pershare daial

31 Marchi2019

31 March 2018

Balance at the beguining of the yvear 53421 43482
Current senvice cosi A4 54 3930
Interes: cos! i 4171 3041
Acluanal {gainislossoncbigationsiecogrisedmsine comprehensive
income in oier comprehensive incoms
- changes In dernographic assumpions 121
-changes In financial assumplions 325 B8.211
- BXPENENCE vanance 3119 49398
Banefiis paid {18353) (15.15i
Balance as the end of the year 470.77 534.21

Reconclilatlon of present value of plan assets (B)

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Balance al the beginning of the year 26182 212.98
Investmen income 2015 1480
Employers coniributions 5500 40.00
Benefis paid {17438} {4.75]
Felurm on plan asses (18:33) (1.31]
Balance as the end of the year 146.45 261.82
Net defined benefit liablility (A) - (B) 324.32 272.38

C. (i) Expense recognised in profit or loss

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Cuneni service cost A4 54 3830
Inieres| cost A111 3041
Inlerest Income {20.15) (14.90)
Total 65.50 54.81
C. (i) Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Actuanal igain) loss on defined benelt obligation 3445 4498
Reiurn on plan asse:s excluding inigrest incomea 16.33 131
Total 50.78 46.29

D. Planassets
Ftan asseis comprise of the following:

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Siaie Governman! securiies 27% 27%
High quallly corporate honds A41% A1%
Equity shares of lisiad companies 25% 25%
Othar Invesimenis 7% 7%

100% 100%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATING TO EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

E.

Defined benefit obligation

Actuarfal assumptlons

Princlpal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date: 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Discount 121@ 7.70% 770%
Future satary growih 8.00% 800%
Alinion rale 9.00% 9.00%
Mortality rang (% of [ALM D6-08] 100% 100%

Agsumipilons regargding luture moriallly are based on published siatisics and monallly (ables lle India Assured Live
Moralliy (2006-084

A1 31 March 2019, ihe weighted average duranon of the defined beneft: obligaiion s 6 years
Senslflvity Analyslis

Reasonably possible changes al the reporing date 1 one of the relevant actuarnal sssumpilons, holding orher
assumptions consian;, would have affeciad the defined benefit obligaiion by ihe amoun: shown below:

Effectinlakhs of INR

(Currency - INRIn Lakhs, exosp. per share data)
31March 2019 31 March 2018

GECECEIREEELE]  Increase| Decrease
Discount raie (1% movemeni) (34.49) 3140 (3058 3416
Fuiure salary growih (1% movemen) 3093 (3468) 373 (30,77}
Allrition rate (0% movement) \8.76) 372 (338) 452
Moraliy rate (10% movemeant) (3.52) (347) {0.02] 002

Afthough the analysis does noi iake account of the 1ull Gistibuiion of cash flows expecied under ithe plan 1 docs
provide an approximation of the sanaitivity of the assumpiions shown,

m Related party disclosures

130

Al

Parent, Ultimate controlling panty and Fellow Subsidiary

Sr. | Name Relatlonship
No.
1 Mars Incosporaied, USA Ulimata Holaing Company
2 Kagome Co Lid (upio 1 Novernber 2017) Ulimate Halding Company
3 Effern HoldInga Limited (Wiih effect from 2 November 2017) Rolding Company
A Prefered Brands Intemaiional, Inc USA (PBI Inc is Holding company Holaing Company
ol Prelarred Brands Foads (Indis) Prvaie Limied)
5 | Prefered Brands Foods iindia} Pivaie Limied Holding Compary
8 Peefened Brands Ausiralia Py, Lid Fellow Subsidiary
7 | MarsFood Australia Py Lid Fellow Subsidiary
8 Frefermed Brands UK Lid Fellow Subsidiary
9 Mars Food JK Lid Fellow Subsidiary
10 | Royal Canin India Prvate Limited Fellow Subsidiary
11 | Mars Inlemanonal India Py Lid, Fellow Subsigiary
12 | Kagome Austratia Pry Lid (T ) November 2017) Fellow Subsidiary
13 | Kagoma Foods India Privaie Limited (Till 1 November 2017) Fellow Subsidiary
14 |Kagome Inc (Tl 1 November 2017) Fellow Subsidiary

lasly Bile Calatles Limned
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

m Related party disclosures (continued)

B. Transactions with key management personnel

Sr. |Name Relatlonship

No.

1 Mr Ravi Nigam (upio 2 November 2018) Managing Director

2 Mr. Sohel Shikari (upto 2 November 2018} Chigl Financial Officer and non whole 1ime Director
3 | Mr Abhijit Upadhye (From 3 November 2018) Managing Ditector

4 Mr Gaurav Gupla (From 3 November 2018) Chiel Financial Officer

5 Ms. Minal Talwar Company Secraiacy

{Curtency - INRIn Lakns, excepi pet share daia)

Key management personnel Ravi Nigam Sohet Shikari Abhillt | Gaurav Minal Talwar
compensatlons Upadhye | Gupta _ )
: 31 March EgR'
L S - 2019 2018
Shor larm employes benefis 9106 13350 8241 13503] 1206 2540 1078 957
Fosi-employmen: defined 8497 953 5.34 658 496 1.00 065 053

coninbuiion ptan

Long ierm benefig

Fost-employmenit defined benaii 10.75 8798 5924 280 152 162 119
plan- Grawity

Compensated absences- Leave - 2755 - 2974 065 3.19 168 077
encashment

Share-based paymenis (paid by - - = 3 - | . 537
PRING)

109.62/ 258.82 97.76| 230.64| 137.20 31.11 14.64 17.58

C. Remuneration to non executive / independent directors

Name of the director 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Rama Kannan 225 1.50
Chiengappa Ganapal 300 0.75
Kavas Patel 300 376
Suchariia Hegde' : 150
Vallampagdulgai Arunachalam ™ - 3.00
Dawn Alien
Ashok Vasudevan - .
8.25 10.50

Resigned as non execulive indépenident direcior on 9 Ociober 2017

" Resigned a8 non exeeulive mdependernt dirgcior on 8 March 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

m Related party disclosures (continued)

D. Related party transactions other than those with key management personnel

(Currency - INF In Lakhs, except par share daial

Transaction / Balance | Enterprise 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Sales Praferred Brands Inemaiicnal Ing, JSA 2027014 17.643.22
Frelevred Brands Australia Pry. Lid 167565 264.1h
Praferred Brands Liniied Kingdom Lid 8124 7801
Mars Food Australia Pry Lid 14811 -
Mars Food UK Lid G897 -
Purchases Kagome Foods Incha Privaie Uimited ¢ 2255
Kagome Foods Australia Pry Lid - 2804
Kagome Inc - 35278
Dividend paid on Frefered Brands Foods (Indib) Privaie Limied 3808 3309
equlty shares B
Dividend paid on Prefered Brands Foods (India) Privare Linited 080 080
preferonce shares
Buyback of Prelered Brands Foods (indig) Private LUmied 1.22037 -
Preference Shares
Working Capltal loan | Royal Canin Inclia Pvi. Lid 1.20000 -
taken
Interest ontoan Raoyal Canin inclia Pvi. Lid 41.40
taken
Balance outstanding
A Trade recelvables | Preferred Brands Intematonal Inc. JSA 143673 1.893.19
Fralevrod Brands Augtratia Pry. Lid - 2370
Praferred Brands UK Lid, - 2849
Mars Food Australia Pry Lid 8959 :
Mars Food UK Lid 2830 -
8. Other receivables | Preferrad Brands Iniernational Inc. LISA 201 -
C.Otherpayables | Preferred 8ands Iniemaiional Inc. USA - 798
Mars Intermnational India Pvl Lid 328
Peelemred Brands Ausiratia Fiy. Lid. . 277
D.Loans payables | Royal Canin Ingia Pvi. Lid 60000
Expensea charged to retated parties In the nature of:
A. Courier and Preferred Brands Internaiional Inc USA 1181 g.74
postage Frtered Brands Ausirafia Pry. Lid 852 083
8. Travellingand | Frefered Brands intemaional Inc. USA 1028 451
conveyance
C. Relmbursements | Effern Holdings Company - 088
Prefered Brands International, Inc. JSA 4160
Preferred Brands Foods (Indial Frivate Limied 397 055
Kagome Company Limiled - 147
Expense charged by related parties In the nature of;
A Travelling and Pralerred Brands Iniermational Inc JSA : 004
conveyance Kagome Inc. - 247
B.Relmbursemenits | Freferred Brandls Ausiratia Piy. LG, 285 347
Preferred Brands Intemational Inc JSA 1408
Mars Intematicnal india Pvt Lid 1028 -

asly Bile Calailas Limnad
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

m Employee share based payment

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

Background:

Specified employees of the Company wete cligible for equisiy seislod siock opions under Prefores Brand Inc's (FBI Inc ot
the Holaing Company’sl 2009 Non-Qualificd Siock Opiion and £y Plan {the Equiiy Plan’ However, during e year2015
a value peal agreement was entered inlo, by and beween PBE NG, the Company and the holders of ouistanding options
{Holders). wherein PBI Inc.and the Holders agreed 10 cancel the Opiions andierminaie ihe Grant Agieemen s in exchange
for a considerazion pavable by PBI Inc inlieu of such cancellailon of unvesiad options 10 1he employaes of the Company,

The deiails of such aggrepate consideration was as below,

Payout date | Conslderation payable (Amount in USD)
01-Apr-16 1$563184

O1-Apr-17 |$44070

01-ApI-18 | $ 76070

Conditions:

The consideraiionis payable only 10 ihose Holdess who continue their employmani willl The Company on such daies Any
paymenis forlened shall be crediied o 2 segregaied account of the Company and on 1 April 2020 shall be aliocated and
pad prorala among the Holders and each other Holder who s enmployed by the Compaay,

Classification of share based payments:

In acoordance will Incl-AS 102, 1he classificaion of ihe shaic-based paymen! iransaciion: depends on the nawre of the
award granied and whather the enily has an obhigation o senle the ransaction and if the eniity has cuher an obligalion 1o
satile iniis own equily instruments or no obligation !0 setile at all, ihen the [ransaciion is accounied as Equlty Settled. Since.
ihie Company does not have any obligation ioreimburse casresponding cos! of share based payment iransaction io PBIINCG,
it has classified the setiiemen| as Equily Saitied

Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Pt per share dats)
31 March 2018
2657

Particulars
Share based payment

Measurement of settlement:

Since the amount of cash paymant i pic-delermined by the Rolding Company basad on the Value Pool agreemant and
the Employee coverad were specifically mentioned inthe said agreement, the Company is of the view that the share based
payment shall be measured ai such amount egreed since ine Company dees no: have any separate obligation towards
the selliement, Accordingly, ihe detalls of ihe fair value and the inpuis used In (he measurement of the grani-daie farr values
sre noi required. Further, since the sggregsie amoun payable is pre-deiermined and any paymients forleited shall be
sliocaled and paid pro-raia among the Holders who are in employman! wiih tha Campany, deiails such as reconciliaixn of
ouisianding share opiens. wieghied average gic. are not applicatie.

The liabiliies as ai 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018 wete senled by PBIInc. during the year ended 3t March 2018 and
31 March 2019 respectively

SEAnnual Report 201819 ek



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

m Disclosure for revenue from contracts with customers

134

{Currency - INR in Lakhs, except per share daia)

Yearended
Partlculars 31 March 2019
Revenue recognised fram contracts wilh cusiomers 33,692.96
Disaggregation of revenue
{A) Basedoniype olQoods
Sate of gocds
Finished gnods 3353235
Traded goods 76.36
Sale of scrap 8424
33,692.96
(Bl Based on marke
A5 1162203
United Slates ol Amenca 18768 70
Res: of the world 327133
33,692.96

Refer note 25 {0 Revenue [rom opeaiions.

Performance obligations
The Company satishes s performance chligations pertaining o the salz of producta al point intime when the: conirol of goods is
aclually iransfered (o the customers. The conirol of goods is ranslered io Ihe cusiomer basad on the deliverny lerms

Terms of sale Transfer of control
Domesilc salcs

Ex works On dispatch or collection by cusiomers

Door delivery YWhen goods are handed over (o ihe cusiomer
Expor sales On the date of biill of tading

No significant judgement is involved in evaluaing when customar oblaing conuol of the prormissd goods. The paymen s
generally dun within 30-80 days. There are no obligailons on account of refunds or retrns,

Disclosure for transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

There Is no remaining perfommance obligation for any conirac: for which revenue has been recognised illl penod end  Funher.
in accerdance wih paragraph 121 of Ind AS 115, the Company 18 rof requiried 10 disclose informaxion about 115 remaining
performance obligation since the Gompany does noi have any perdormance chiigation that has an onginal expeciad duraion of
more than one year

Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations

There is no significant judgements involved in asceraining Hhe timing of sausfaciion of performance ohiigalions. i evaiualing
when a customer abtains conirol of promised gocds, ransaction price and allocarnon of it 1o ihe perfomiance cbligations,

Determining the transaction price and the amounts allocated to performance obligations
The transaclion price ascenainead for the only performance obligation of ike Company {L.e. Sale of goods) 1s agreed in the comiac!
with Ihe cusiomes. There Is no variable consderation Involved in the iransaciion price

asly Bile Calables Limned
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

m Disclosure for revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Details of contract balances:
There are no coniracl asseis as at 31 March 2019 Refer note 11 {orinformation on irade receiveables.

Details of contract liabilities:
The {ollowing 1able provides information abouil contrac! liabiliiies from coniracss with cusiomers

(Currency - INRin Lakhs, 2xcep! per sharg daia)

Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2019

Contactliabiliies {Advance from cusiomers) 9

The conlract liabilities pamarily welate (o lhe advance consideration recsived from customers, (o which revenue 15 recognised as
and when conirol in promised goods is iransferred

Significani changes i ihe contrac lisbility balances during the yesr ended 31 March 2019 are as follows:

Advance from customers at the beginning of the year 547

Revenue recogrised that was ncluded in the advance from cuglomer at the begirning of the year 647

Increase due ic cash received, excluding amour::s recognised as revenue guang ine year 2
Advance from customers at the end of the year _

Financial instruments - fair value and risk management
A. Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carying amolims and (alf values of financial assets and financial liabilities, nciuding thei
levels in the falr value hicrarchy:

Fvoc1 Amortlsed Level 1°* Levetz" Level 3+

Financial assels measuredat
falrvalue

Fowardexchange contracisused | 14 - 50315 - 50815
{orhedaing
Inierest rate swaps used far 14 - 69565 7 6955 - 6955
hedging

Financlal assets not
measured at fairvalue’
Security deposiis 8 : : 8678 3579
Trade recevables 11 - -l 383686 383688
Cashandcashequivalent | 12 : | T4l 77547
Bank balance oiher than cash 13 - - 807 807
and cash equivalent
Other recalvables {including 15 - - 219 219
contraciually reimbursable cosis
andl inigres!)

Total financial assets - §72.70, 4,658.38] 5,231.08

50315

572.70
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

Financial instruments - fair Value and risk management (continued)

(Currency - INR in Lakhis. excep: per share data)
Fairvalue
Level2

Carrying amount

Level 1** Level 3°*

Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value®

External Commercial Borrowings | 18 258126f 258126

Working capiial loan from related | 19 60000 600.00

pany

Trade payables 21 384374;  3B4374

Curreni porion of unsesuied | 22 87057 67057

Bank loans

imieres accrued butl NOt due on| 22 it21 1121

borowings

Payable for capital goods 22 16250 19250

Deposiis received from dealers 22 500 5,00_

Employee dues 22 31309 31309

Unclaimed dividend D 7.88 789

Other payables zlsorefernoe 44 | 22

for payabies o rclated parties)

Total financlal liabllitles 8,225.28J 8,226.28

31 March 2018 Note Carmrying amount Falr value
FVTPL FVOCI |Amortised| Total Level1:* | Level2 | Level3

cost

Financial assets measured at

falrvalue

Forward exchange coniracis 14 66.21 66.21 66.21

Used for hedging

Inieres: raia swaps LUsed for 14 11968 119.68 118.68

hedging

Financlal assets not

measured al falrvalue’

Secufiry deposiie g 3470 3470

Trade receivables 11 368921 3,689.21

Cash and cash equivalen: 12 56676 56676

8ank balance other hian cash 13 1160 1160

and cash equivalen!

Oiher receivables (including 15 349.31 34931

conuaciually reimbursable coss

and interos)

Total financlal assets 185.89| 4,661.68; 4,837.47 185.89

136
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

47 Financial instruments - fair Value and risk management (continued)

[Currency - INR in Lakns, excep! per share daia)

31 March2018 Note Carrying amount Falr value

FVTPL | FvoCl |Amortised Total Level 1** | Level2': | Levet3*
, cost

Financlalljabllitles not '

measured at falrvalue’

Exiernal Commercial Bormowings | 19 || 8057040 305704

Working Capiial Loans repayable | 18 - 65130 65130

ondemands rom banks

Trage payables 2 . - 2RE764] 256764

Cureent portion of unsecured 22 - K258 56258

bankloans

1% Non-Cumulaive, Non- 2 S| 1137861 117561

Convarliblo Redeemable

Prelesenice Shares

Interes! accrued but rotdueon | 22 .| ] 11.74 11.74

borrowings ,

Payable for capiial goods 27 -| - 11812 11812

Oeposiis receved from dealers 22 - - 200 200

Employea dues 22 - 7952 7952

Undlaimed dwvidend 22 -| . 774 774

(Qrher payabies (also reler noi 2 - - 1116 1115

44 [or payables 1o relaied paries)

Total financial liabilities -| 8,245.42| 8,246.42 . -

' Financial asse's and liabililiies such 2s irade recelvables, employse dues, cash and cash eaqunvalent, bank balance orher ihan cash and
cash equivaleris. securily deposiis, Interss! acciued on fixed deposiis borrowing [rade payables, deposlis from deslers, urclaimed
dwidend, Other payables cic. are largely shon-term in nature. The laic valuas of ihese financial assets and liabilllies approximate their
carying amoun! due 10 ihe shor-iem naiure ol such asscls and habillies,

“ AlsorelerNoie 25

B. Measurement of fair value
Specilic valuatuon iechnique used 0 value nancialinstirumen:s Include.
a)  Theuseof quoied marke: price or dealer quotes of similar nsirumen;s

b)  the fair value of inleres! rate swaps s calculacd at the preseni value of ihe astimaied uiure cash lows based on
observable yield curves

¢} ihefairvalue of forward {oreign exchange coniracts and principle swap s detemined using tonward cxchange ra:es al
I balance sheei daie
d  ihefairvaluz of the emaining fingncial instrumens is delermined using discounied cash low analysis

All ol e resulnng fair value esumates, where the fair values have been de:emined based on preseni values and the discoun:
fales used were agiusiag fof countarparty or own Cfedii figk
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

{Curency - INR In Lakhs, cxcept pershare dara)

| Financial instruments - fair Value and risk management (continued)

C. Financial risk management
The Company has exposure 1o the Tollowing risk arising fiom inancial Insiuments

- orechi sk (sge i betow);

- iquidily risk (sea (in) belowd): and
market nsk (sae fiv) below.
.  Rlsk management framework

The Company’s boardof diraciors has overait responsibiliy for the esiablishment and oversghit of the Company’s
rsk managemeanl framewcerk, The boaid of dirsciors have esiablishied a Risk Managemeni Friamework, which i
jevewed and monilored by e Chief Fnancial Olficer (CFO). The CFO repors regularly 1o the board of directors
ON 1S ACHYACS

TheCompany'srisk managemeni poticies are esiablished o ideniify snd analyse ihe nisksfaced by the Company,
10 sei approprale risk iimiis and conirfols and 1o monlior risks and adhercnce 0 Imits, Risk management palicies
and sysiems are reviewed regulary 10 eflect changes in market condiions and ihe Company's activilies. The
Company, ihrough ils Iranng and estabiished procedures. ams 10 maintan a disciplined and consisucive
canirol enviconment In which all employces understand their roles and obligations.

he Company’s Audin Commiliee oversees how managemen! moniiors compliance wiitt the Compaay's nsk
managemeni palicies and precedures. and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in selation
i0 the nske faced by the Company The Audi Commitiee is asss:cd in iis oversghi rols by iniernal audiiors
iremal auditors underiake requiar reviews ol risk managemeni conirols and preceduwres. 1he resulls of which are
repored :ohe Audit Commillee,

Ii. Creditrisk

Creditriskis thie riskof financial 1oss i@ the Company if a cusiomesr of a counierpany 10 a fnancial insirurmani fads lomeai
ils corraciual cbligalion and ansas principly from ihe Companies receivable rom customet and loans, if any.

The canyirig amounts of financial 28se| represents the maximum Gredii nsk expostire

Trade receivablas are lypically unsecured and are derved from revenue eamed from cusiomers locaied i Indiz
andouiside India Credi nsk s managed hy a panodic review of amounie cuisianding from cusiomars by reasury
head and ihe chief inancial officer. Ori account of adopiion of Ind AS 109, ihe Compary uses expecied cradil
loss model io assess :he impairmeni loss or gain: The Company computes ihe expecicd cred: loss aflowance [or
Irede recovables bascd on avallable exiernal and internal credi sk faciors such as the ageing ol s dues, market
informaucn ahout the cusiomer, indusiry information and the Company’s hisioncal experence (of cuslomers.
The Companys expasire 10 credit rigk is influerced mainly by Ihe Indvidual characiensiics of each cusiomer.
Rowever, manggement also considers (he faciors (hat may influence the credit isk of its cusiomer hase. mciudng
e default risk associaled wiih the indusiny and couniry in which cusiomers operaie

The Company limiis iz exposure 1o credil risk o rade recaivables by esablishing a maximum paymien| padog
Jorcustomers

Reter Note 111or1he lofiowing information

- Exposure ioihe credn nsk for irade receivables by geographic segion
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

47 Financial instruments - fair Value and risk management (continued)

- Expostite 10 the crecii nsk lorirade receaivables by iype of countarparty {conceniration of credt . iski
Movemen: in the allowance (or impaiment

- Carrying amouni of iade reozivables (net of impaiment)

Also refer nowe 3.6 for policy relaied imparmen: of inancis! ng:rumsnis

Cssh and cash equivalent and bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent (“coltectively
referred as Bank balance’)

The Bank balance is held with Banks. Credii nsk on Bank balance s Iimited as the Company generally invesi in
deposiis with banks with high credit raiings assgned by domesuc credit rating agencies Bank balance primarily
include invesimen! infwed deposil wilh banks for a specified ime penod.

Llgoidlty risk

Liquidity risk is the risk :hal ihe Company will ercourier dilficulty m meeling the obligations asscciaied wiiih
i1s fimancial labilines 1hat ate settled by delvenng cash or anoiher financial assel The Company’s spproach (o
managing liquidity is io ensure, 55 far as possible, thai It will have sufficient liquidity 1o meet s kabiliics when ihey
are duz, under baih nomal and sressed conditions, withiou! Incurnng unaccepiable 10s5as of fisking damaye 0
thc Company/’s repuiaison

The Company's ireasury depanment is responsiole for liquidity and lunding The Company manages iis liquidity
risk by conlinuously montoring its working capr:al and by prepanng mont on monih cash flow projecions o
momios liquidity requernents

The Company's pinclpal scurces Of liguidily are casti ard cash equivalents and ihe cash llow ihai is generated
from operalions. The Company beligves thai ihe working capilal 18 sufficient 10 mee; 18 curren requirements
Aocordingly, no liquidy nsk s percetved. The Company aims 10 maintain [bg level of its working capiial at an
amount inexcess of expecied cash oulllows on accouni of (nancial kabiliy over Ihe nex: sik months

(Currency - INRin Lakhs, except per share data)

Working capital .31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Toral curreni assets (Dol - inancial and non hinancial) (A) 1205908 1056250
Toial cunenilabiliiies (oih - inancial and noa inancial) (B) 575470 532581
Working capital (A-B) 6,304.38 5,236.59

n addron, 1Ihc Company mainiains rhe (cllowng line of credit

Facllity Amount of facility Amountuiised

: D19 31 March 2018
\Working capual loan 359280 80000 85130
Total 3,5692.80 600.00 651.30
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

Financial instruments - fair Value and risk management (continued)
Exposure to lquidity risk

The lcfiowing are e remaining contractual matuniies of financial fiabiliizs a1 1he repening date. The amounis am gross and undiscounied.

‘Asat 31 March 2019

Carrying

amount

6 months

orless

6-12
months

{Currency - INRIn Lakhs, except per share daia)

Contractual cash flows
1-2years | 2-6years | More than

Non-derivative financial
liabilities
ECB-Mizuho 147653 14765 147 65 205231 BB5 O 147663
ECB - Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi-| 161550 144,33 144.33 28867 866.00 s 151550
ECB - Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubish- 1) 25880 4330 4330 8680 8680 - 25980
Warking Capiial Loar from Related 600.00 60000 = = = = 60000
Pany
Trade payablzss 384374 384374 384374
Othier curren: inancial labiiies 52069 52089 - - - - 52069
Total 8,225.26| 5,308.71 335.28 670.58| 1,838.52 7217 | 8,225.28
As at 31 March 2018 Canrying Contractual cash flows

amount | g months 612 1-2years | 2-5years | Move than Total

or less months B years

Non-derivative financial
liabilities
ECB - Mizufio 166571 1388 13881 27762 83284 27762 186571
ECB - Bank of Tokyo-Miizubishi-| 1.628 20 8784 13560 27138 814,13 339.22 1,628.26
£CB - Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi- Il 32566 4071 40.71 8141 162.83 - 325.66
Preference shares 1175861 1.22037 - - - 1.220.37
POFC 651,80 65130 E s - 05130
Trade payables 256764 256764 - - - 256764
Other currenit inancial llabilrics 231.27 23127 - - - 231.27
Total 8,245.45| 4,917.94 315.21 630.41| 1,809.81 616.84| 8,290.21

lv. Marketrisk

Markel fisk Is ihe risk thai changes in markel psices - such &s forcign exchange raies and interes raies, will affec ihe
Cormpany's income or ihe valie of i1s haldings of financial insiniments The objectiviz of marka risk managemeniis 1o
manage and conuol marke] risk exposuies wilhin accepiable parameicrs, while oplimising 1he reiurn
The Company & exposed 1o lofeign exchange fisk through purchases from overseas suppliers and sales 10 overseas
customars in varicus foreign currencies. Tha Company uses dernivaiives 1o manage marke! risk Al such iranzacions
are carned cul within ihe guidelines set by the Company. Generatty, the Company seeks 70 apply hiedge accounting 10
manage volaality In piofi: or loss

A) Cumrencynsk

Thiz Company is expased to cutrency risk io 1he exient hat there is a mismacch between ihe currencies in which sales,
purchiases and borrowings are deromnaled and the functional currency INR) of e Company. The exposure is pnmarily

denowsd In US Doltars,

The Company uses forward exchange coriiracis © hedge is curency nsk moes: witha maiuny of less than one vest fromthe
eponing daie Such conwacts are gencrlly designaied as cash low hedges. At any poim of ime, the Company hedges 80
1080% of 11z estimaled foreign cumency exposure inespec of [orecasiad sales Cunency ek relaied io Baernal Commercial
Borowings have been fully hedged using forward contracis on same daies as the loan are dug for repayment.
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for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

Financial instruments - fair Value and risk management (continued)

Exposure to currency risk
The summary of quantialive daia abou! ihe Company's exposule 1o CUITency risk as a1 reporing date is as follows,
{Currency - INRIn Lakhs, excep psf shafe datal

, 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Particulars INR USD
Trade recaivables 1.502.25 2168 191702 2943
Other recewvables 5568 010 = =
Advances for supply of goods 14370 207 - -
Capital Advancas 146.04 211 - -
Borrowings {3.25183) [4684) 14.27080) (65.08)
Tradc pavables 470.46) i6.76) {61245) {8.40)
Other pavables - - 80411 0.12)
Net exqrosure in respect of recognlisad assets (1,623.72) (27.77) (2,874.37) (45.87)
and llabillties

31March 2018
Partioulars — nR | cep M GBP
Trade receivables 66743 738 65231 715
Net exposure [n respect of recognlsed assels 667.43 7.39 652.31 7.15
and liabilities
oartloulars 31March 2018

e [ opy T JPY
Capilat Advances 293 473 -
Net exposure In respect of recognised assets 2.93 4.73 - -
and liabllitles
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

. ne | avp T AUD
Trade receivables 8721 177 2834 059
Olhgr Payables - - (3.46) {0071
Net exposure In respect of recognlsed assets 87.21 1.77 25.88 0.52
and llabilities

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Partlculars INR EUR
Advances [or supply of goods T2 am
Capiial Advances 33730 434 - -
Trade pavables (2.69) (0.03) (2.76) {0.03)
Payable on accouni of capilal purchascs 5 5 (2.77) {0.03)
Net exposure In respect of recognlsed assets 335.73 4.32 (5.05) (0.06}
and llabllitles
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

Financial instruments - fair Value and risk management (continued)

Sensltivity analysls

Areasonably possible strengthening weakening) of ihe US Dallar and oiher curencies against INR ai 21 March wakid have sflected
ihe measurerment of inancial Insirumants denominaled inforeign cunency and affeciad equity and profi; orloss by he amounis shown
below. The anatysis assume that all olher vaniables as remain constant otherihanchange in foreign cunency raie 1o INR

1% inctease ordecrease inforeign curency raie will have fottowing impact on profit belore: iax

{Currency - INRin Lakhs, excepi per share daia)

Impact on profit befoce tax” Impactonequity, netoftax”
D18 31March 2018 <SIUEICH LRSS 31 March 2018

Strengthening | Weakening EiGs' a o ¢ INeE g it E Sirenathening weakemng Strengthening | Weakening
USD (19.24} 1024 (20741 2974 {12:517) 1251 (19.45) 1945
(P 567 667 6.52 16521 4.34 (4.341 427 427
JPY 0.03 (003} - : 0.02 (0.02) -
i\':? 087 (0.871 026 0.26) Q87 {057) 017 017
EUR 336 (3.35) (0.05) 005 218 (2.18) (003! 003
Net exposure (8.31) 8.31 (23.01)]  23.01 (5.40) 5.40 {15.04) 15.04
in raspect of
recognised assets
and liabilities

“ Aamountin hrackets represents unlavourable posiion

B8)

Interest Rate risk

The Company adop:s ihe policy of ensuring 1hat beiween 80 and 90 % Ol 115 interes! 131e lisk exposure 18 2 3 fxed raie. This
is achieved pastly by entering into fixed-raie nstruments and parily by borrowing ai loating faie and using ireres raie swaps
as hedges of vz variabity in cash flows (o interest raie nisk.

Exposure to Interest rate risk

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Varable-rare Instruments (hrancigl labilities) 325183 1.27090
Less Fleci of inierest (aio swap (325183 (3610.65)
Net exposure (n respect of recognised assets and llablliiles (0.00) 651.25

Falr value sensltivity analysls for fixe d-rate Instruments/ cash flow sensRivity analysls for vanable-rate Instruments

Impact onequity, netoftax
31 March 2018 31March 2018
100bp 100bp 100bp
increase increase decrease

Variable-raie (32.52) 3252 4271) {2783) 2793
nstruments {dinancial
liabilines)
Less Cifect ofinterast 3252 132.52) 35.20 (36,20} 2116 {2116} D367 [2357)
(8IS SWED
Sensitivity (net) 0.00 (0.00) (8.51) 6.51 0.00 (0.00) (4.26) 4.26
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Contd.)

Financial instruments - fair Value and risk management (continued)

C) Cashflowhedges - hedge exposures
[Currency - INRIn Lakns excepi per share da‘al

31 March 2019 31March 2018
15| 6-12months' | Morethand BRI s L 8-12 Morethan 1
' : months year

Foreign currency forward contracts
Net exposure 127.32 10146 - 10354 4266
Ave:laoc INR USD foward contrac raie 7222 7325 - 55,56 o0.02
interest rate swaps

{21 exposure 33528 33529 258126 24736 31520 3067.04
Average lixed inigres! rate 253% 253% 253% 253% 253% 253%

Detaills of Itemn deslgnated as hedging Instruments

31 March 2018

Nominal Assets Liabilities
Amount
Forelgn currency forward contracts
Forwaid contracis sales, receivables 16,626.90 50315 975123 6621
Interest rate risk
Inigrest1die swaps 3251.83 6955 361965 119.68 :
19,878.73 572.70 -| 18,370.88 185.89 -

All the gbove caiegones of hedging insiumenis have beenincluded in denvaiive asseis/deivaive [Bbiities Managemen of ihe Company
believes that there are no llems (o be recognised in profit orloss as hedge ncilectie, except lor ealised poron of foreign exchanges against
the relevar fosward conract The amouni reccgnised as effecive Hedge s disclosed undsr Other comprehensve ncome

The following 1able provittes a reconcilialion by risk caicgory of componene:s of equity and anslysis of QG iems ned of 1ax 1resuliing
from cash flow hedige accounting:

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Cash flow hedges -Equity head ‘Effective portion of cash flow hedges’
Change In fairvalue:

Foreyn currency fisk 503 15 6521

inleras! rale risk 6955 11968
572.70 185.89

Amount classified o profit and loss:

Foreign cunengy risk

Interes! raie risk

Tax on movemenis in relevant nems of OCI during the vear (199.50) {654.33)

Balance as at the end of the year 373.20 121.56

For B SR & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Dlrectors of

Chartered Accountanis Tasty Bite Eatables Limited

Fim Regisiation No: 116221W/ W - 100024 CIN: L15418PN1885PLC037347

Raajnish Desal Abhijit Upadhye  Ashok Vasudevan Gaurav Gupta Minal Talwar

Partner Managing Direclor Chairman Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

wMembership No: 1011980 DIN: 07543741 DIN: 00575574

Flace Pune Place Pune

Date, 16 May 2019

Dawe 16 May 2019
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TASTY BITE EATABLES LIMITED
CIN L15119PN19RERLCAGZ /317
Reqistered Otfica 2011-202. Mavfar iowers, YWakdewadi Shivainagar Fune 411005
I rral info@eecrelanal com Website wwwiaslybée con
PROXY FORM
[Pursuant te Secticrt 105(81 o Ihe Companies Act 2013 and 1uls 19(3) of the Companes(Managemen and Administalion) Rules 25147

aa™Annual Ganeral Meeting - August 8, 2018
Name ¢! the Membear(s) f-mailid

Registered acdress Folono /-Cheni il> LPID

- Applicable for Investors helding shares in electronic fom

Ve bemg the Member () of shares ¢ v above narred Cempany, hetehy appamd
L i haung & mailxd orlaling him
Ao d .. havng e-madd orfatimg im
3 Ci . ... bavinge malid .. _.. or tailing hirm

as my our proxy 10 altend and vote ion a poll] for me / s and on ny / curbehall al the 307 Annual General Meeling of he Cormpany, 1o b2 held on
Thursday. AugJdsl 8. 201¢ a1 11 60 am al Heel Shetaten Grand. Pune. RBM Read Pune - 411 001.and al any adioummenl 1thereoi In respect of such
Resolulions as are mdicatad tslow

No Resolution Vote «(Optionst See Note 2)
Fory | Against | Abstain

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1 | Adoption of Fimandcial Statsments and Regon oi the Direc1ors and Auditors thereon

2 | Declaraian of dmdend of Rs 2 par Lauity Shats on 20.65 000 Laquiy shaies 07 Rs 10 each oy the

financial year 2018-18

3 | Re appainimrznt ol Ma Dawn Allan, 38 Director whe relites by rolaticn

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4 | Regularzsion of Additional Dirscior Mr PV Srinivasa Rac

5 | Fation ol rermuneranen of Mr Abhijit Upadhye as Managmg Dreciorn il March 31 2020
G | Reappaniment of ivir Kavas Fatgl as Independant Directer

7o | ssue ol equily share on preferential basic

Signed this day of 2019 Alfix One
Rupes
Signature o the MemberSignature o 1he Praxy hotder(s) Revenue
Stamp here
Notas:
1 Ihrs form. in osgar 1o e sfieciive, shiould be duly stamped, completed, signad snd depnsited al the Reglisleted Gifice of the Company, not less

1han 43 hours before the commencament of the meenng

? I is opticnal o indicale your orelsrence I you keave ihe for aganst or abstain column blank against any or all Resolulions. your proxy will b3

entited 10 vole m the mariner as hel she may deam aprropnale

3 A TR(s0N can aCl as proxy an Behall of Mambers not exceeding ity 2nd holding mn 1he aggregaie nol more than 10% of the 1012 share capiat
i the Company Incase 2 proxy is oposed 10 be appointed by a Member holding more ihan 10% of the tolal share capnat of e Company
camying voing nghis, 1en such proxy shiall not act as a proxy for any oiher person or shiareholder
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TASTY BITE EATABLES LIMITED

CINL15419PNT1885PLCO37347
Regisierad Office’ 201-202. Mayfair Towers Wakdewsd Shivajinagar, Punc - 411005

E-mail info@sccreiarial com Websiie wwww iastybiie.coin

ATTENDANCE SLIP

35th Annual General Meeting - August 8, 2019
FOUO NO. /CHIBNEMD/DP IDN.......ccccccermsrnensmss s mmememsemss s s memes s AR A AR A AR A AR A AR A AR AR AT AR

No. of Shares: -

Name of (he Member/ Proxy holder -
(in BLOCK letlers)

[ cestify ihal | ar a Member / Proxy holder for the Member of the Company.

1 hereby record my presence al the 35(th Annual General Meeting of (he Company, held on Thurs day, August 8, 2019 al 11.00
a.m. al Hole! Sheralon Giand Pune, RBM Road, Pune- 411001,

Signaiure of 1he iMdember/Proxy holdet
** Strike 0ol whichever is not applicable.

Note: Please Ml up this allendance slip and hand It over al the entrance of the meeling hall. Members are requesied 10 biing their
copies of the Annual Report 1o the AGM
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